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our teams worked relentlessly to align Annual Report FY 2024-2025 5

global expertise with Indian complexity.

We bullt infrastructure, launched advanced

BUiIding the digital tracking systems, onboarded
BaCkbon e of frontline talent, and ensured every process,
Movement: Our

Business Initiation Goals

fromm warehousing to compliance, was
As part of our commitment to establishing year's business initiation goals were

Infused with speed, transparency, and trust.

Braceport Logistics as a leading, strategically designed to drive innovation,

scalability, and service excellence:

Of course, no beginning is ever without Its

Journey Begins

What connects life-saving medicines from

trials. Scaling operations in a fragmented
landscape, navigating evolving regulations,

and earning credibility in a competitive

customer-focused logistics partner, this

a lab in India to a clinic in the Amazon? Or a , " —” Market Expansion: — Sustainability Initiatives:
fleet of vehicles from a European port to €casysicin testedioliE fRctiie SBUTIE S WIth ik Entered high-growth industrial corridors Launched a comprehensive green
| _ these challenges that Brace Port’s identity across new regional markets to broaden logistics  program, including  the
dealerships across Southeast Asia? » _ . . . . . . : .
took shape, resilient, forward-looking, and our service footprint and tap into introduction of electric delivery vehicles
It's not just wheels or warehouses. It's fiercely committed to excellence. emerging opportunities. and eco-friendly packaging solutions.
precision, care, and a logistics network , _ _
This year wasnt just about starting a
designed for critical cargo and complex . . .

d J P business. It was about starting a movement. —* Operational Infrastructure: Strategic Partnerships:
movement. A Hevarnent towards Tmore Lintellicent Commissioned two  state-of-the-art Built collaborative alliances with key
In @ country as expansive and energetic as . . ‘ distribution hubs to bolster last-mile industry stakeholders to expand service
India, logistics is far more than cargo logistics. Towards enabling every business, delivery capabilities and improve offerings and enable robust cross-border

_ L , large or local, to move with confidence, turnaround times. logistics solutions.
movement. It is the invisible force powering _ ,

o _ clarity, and consistency.
commerce, bridging supply with demand,
and enabling the everyday miracles of As we |ook ahead, our path Is clear, our — Technology Integration:

modern life. At Brace Port Logistics, our foundation is solid, and our ambition is only

journey began with a powerful belief: that growing stronger. We're here not just to

smart, scalable, and dependable logistics deliver, but to move India forward.
can become the very backbone of India's
economic Momentum. Welcome to Brace Port Logistics

. . Moving Forward, Together.
2020 was not just our launch year; It was our g 2 g

foundation year. A time of laying down
roots, defining direction, and daring to
think beyond traditional logistics. We didn't
enter the market to compete. We entered
to redefine. With a bold vision to become
India’s most agile, tech-enabled,

custemer-first logistics partner, we set out

to bulld from scratch, the right way.

From'strategy rooms to shipping docks,

Deployed a cloud-based Transport
Management System (TMS) to optimize
route planning, real-time tracking, and
load efficiency.
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A Year of Resilienceand Growth

It gives me great pleasure to present this
year's annual report for Braceport LDgiStiCS.
Over the past year, we have continued to
strengthen our position in the logistics
iIndustry thl'Dngh focused execution, strate-
giC expansion, and an UﬂWEWE'I'iﬂg commit-

ment to service excellence.

Despite the evolving challenges of the
market, our team has shown remarkable
resilience and adaptability. We've scaled our
operations, enhanced delivery networks,
transparency, and reliability across our ser-
vices. Our QFDWth IS not only measured in
numbers but in the trust and satisfaction of

the clients we serve daily.

None of this would have been possible with-
out the dedication of our team, the support
of our partners, and the continued confi-
dence of our customers. | extend my heart-

felt thanks to all of you.

Mr. Sachin Arora

Managing Director

Braceport Logistics Limited

As we |ook ahead, we remain focused on
Innovation, operational excellence, and cre-
Etiﬂg Imng~term value for all stakeholders.
We are excited about what the future holds
and confident in our ability to continue deliv-

ering On our promises.

______
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Driving Success Through
Innovation and Agility

IT gives me great pride to pl'ESEI"It this year’s
annual l'Ele't. marking another milestone in
Braceport LDgiStiCS Limited's journey of

growth, resilience, and innovation.

Over the past year, we have strengthened
our operational capabilities, embraced new
technologies, and expanded our service net-
work, all while maintaining the core values of
reliability and customer focus that define us.
Despite global supply chain disruptions and
economic fluctuations, our team demon-
strated remarkable agility and dedication,
enabling us to deliver consistent value to our

clients and partners.

As we move forward, our focus remains on
sustainable logistics, digital transformation,
and building long-term partnerships. We are

confident that our strategic direction will

continue to drive success in the years ahead.

Thank you for your continued trust and sup-

port.

> [ ~ Vi
{é/r ;—;{; /e £

Rishi Trehan
Director

Braceport Logistics Limited

‘r‘the face of change, our
commitment to innovation and
reliability remains unwavering,
driving us toward a future of
sustainable growth and strong
partnerships.”
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MisSsiOon
To accelerate commerce thrc:ugh seaimn-

g 1 less, adaptive logistics, moving goods
gl with intelligence and care to create

e ;| p— = =S N : value far beyond delivery, by continually

embracing cutting-edge technology.

To become the most trusted name in
seamless and smart |Dgi5tiCS, dE”VEI’iﬂg

speed, reliability, and Innovation at

every step.
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BRAND JOURNEY

Charting the Growth of " :_
Brace Port Logistics

l 2020 November 7:

Incorporated in New Delhi as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited.
Launched freight-forwarding operations within weeks, offering both
ocean (LCL/FCL) and air freight services from the Delhi office.

® 2021 April:

Played a critical role during the COVID-19 pandemic by importing air
charters from Germany, China, and Italy, carrying essential medical sup-
plies. Services included nationwide warehousing and distribution.

® 2022 January:

Marked our entry into the Automotive logistics vertical, facilitating
global vehicle movements via RO-RO vessels for brands such as Ford,
Fuzo, and Daimler.

® 2023 August:

Strengthened our domestic presence with new offices in Jaipur,
Mumbai, and Chennai.

August 7:

Transitioned into a public limited company, Brace Port Logistics Limited,
following shareholder approval on July 10.

® 2024 April 21:
Honored with the X2 Logistics Award for Best Sales & Operations.

August 26:

Achieved a major milestone, listed on the National Stock Exchange (NSE).

December:

Expanded global footprint with the launch of our Dubai office.

R
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Yash Pal Sharma

Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Yash Pal Sharma is the Chairman and Non-Executive Director of our Company. He completed his
Bachelor of Commerce from the University of Delhi in 1995. He then joined his family business after
exploring a few options in the Export industry. He completed an executive course in Strategic |Q from
the Harvard Business School, Boston, USA 2014. He has been a strong visionary and has always tried
to bring innovations to the field of logistics. He has an overall experience of over 30 years and has
been a strong visionary and always trying to bring new innovations to the field of logistics. He was the
former President of Air Cargo Forum India (ACFl) From 2022-24 and he was awarded with Logistic Icon
of the Decade by Cargo NXT Recognitions in 2025. He has also been awarded by the industry at vari-
ous forums like Logistics Awards 2023 by EXIM INDIA, Entrepreneur of the Year at India Cargo Awards
2017, Face of the Future at India Cargo Awards, 2015, and many more. He has been associated with
our Company since its incorporation and continues to provide his exemplary services and has been
redesignated as Chairman and Non-Executive Director on August 25, 2023.

-

¥ Tarun Sharma

Non-Executive Director

Tarun Sharma is the Non-Executive Director of our Company. He completed his bachelor’'s in Arts Iin
Business Studies from Leeds Metropolitan University, United Kingdom in 2007. He was employed as a
trainee in Kuehne &amp; Nagel from August 2005 to August 2006, and after completing his gradua-
tion, he joined the family business started by his father in the name of Skyways Group. He took over
the responsibility to take the Ocean business, which was at a very small level, and has transformed
the company'sreach from a small geographical area to Pan India and third-country exports with glob-
ally recognized companies. He is a member of the Managing Committee of the premier ocean freight
association of India - Association of Multimodal Transport Operators of India (AMTOI). He also under-
took a unique volunteering experience with *"Wizcraft International Limited” in supporting the Inter-
national Indian Film Industry (lIFA) in Bangkok. He has an overall experience of 16 years in the ocean
freight industry. He joined our company in 2020 and continues to provide his services to date.
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Sachin Arora

Promoter and Managing Director

Sachin Arora is the Promoter and Managing Director of our Company. He holds a bachelor’'s degree in
Arts from the University of Delhi. He won the best designer award for creating an e-card using Flash
from Websity, a Division of lIS- InfoTech U.K., in November 2000. He has worked with Webtron Infos-
oft, Vision Technologies Inc., Highland House Pvt Ltd, Blue Moon Express Pvt Ltd, Allcargo Global
Logistics Ltd, HTL Logistics India Pvt. Ltd., Golden Coast Global (India) Pvt Ltd. He has an overall
experience of more than 23 years. He is entrusted with the responsibility to build out a robust busi-

ness development strategy for the Company. He was redesignated as Managing Director on August
25, 2025.

Rishi Trehan

Promoter and Whole Time Director

Rishi Trehan is the Promoter and Whole Time Director of our Company. He holds a bachelor’'s degree
iIn commerce from the University of Delhi and pursued a Software Management Diploma Course
(DISM) holder from APTECH. Before joining our Company, he worked with Geodis Overseas (l) Pvt.
Ltd., Falcon Maritime (1) Pvt. Ltd., Atlas Shipping Services Pvt. Ltd and having overall experience of
more than 10 years. He is responsible for general business and administration functions in our Com-
pany. He was redesignated as Whole Time Director on August 25, 2025.
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Himanshu Chhabra

Non-Executive Director

Himanshu Chhabra is the Non-Executive Director of our Company. He completed his bachelor’'s in
commerce in 1999. He also became an associate member of the Institute of Companies Secretaries
of India in the year 2001. He has also cleared the final examination by the Institute of Cost and Works
Accountants of India in 2005. Thereafter, he also did his Post Graduate Diploma in Business Manage-
ment from the Management Development Institute (MDI) in 2009. He has an overall experience of
around 20 years. He joined our Company in 2023 as a Non-executive Director.

Rohit Sehgal

Non-Executive Director

Rohit Sehgal is the Non-Executive Director of our Company. He holds a bachelor's degree in com-
merce from the University of Delhi. He has an overall experience of around 27 years In the freight
forwarding industry, and he oversees every facet of operations with strong project management and
decision-making skills. He joined our Company in 2023.

Independent Director

CA Deepak Sonthaliya is an Independent Director of our Company. He holds a bachelor's degree in
commerce from the University of Delhi and holds the degree of master’'s degree in business adminis-
tration from the Institute of Chartered Financial Analysts of India, University, Sikkim in 2015. He is
also a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. He has an overall experience of 12
years in the field of finance. He started working with Mother Dairy Fruit and Vegetable Private Limited
in 2011 and has continued to provide his knowledge and experience there to date. He joined our Com-
pany as an Independent Director in 2023.
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Gunjan Kayastha Agarwal

Independent Director

Gunjan Kayastha Agarwal is an Independent Director of our Company. She completed her Bachelor's
in Arts in 1999 and Bachelor's in Law in 2002 from the University of Delhi. She also completed her
post-graduation diploma in public relations in 2003. She served as a Senior Associate at Lall & Sethi,
a Law firm from 2003 to 2009, and handled matters related to IPR Prosecution. She then joined Remfry
and Sagar-Attorneys at Law as a Senior Associate in April 2009 on a retainer period till September
2009, and thereafter was appointed to assist and Advise Remfry & Sagar in their practice as attor-
neys-at-law from April 2010 till March 2011. After April 2011, she has been practising as a Lawyer
(part-time) and specializes in providing legal advice, strategic counselling, and matters related to
Intellectual Property Rights. She joined our Company as an Independent Director in November 2023.
However, she has resigned from the Post of directorship on 15 Aug 2025.

Megha Aggarwal

Independent Director

Megha Aggarwal is an Independent Director of our Company. She holds a bachelor's degree in com-
merce from Indira Gandhi National Open University. She is an Insolvency Professional and a fellow
Member of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. She is highly skilled in Corporate Law, Secu-
rities Law, Business and Commercial laws, Corporate Governance, Compliance and \ Legal Advisory
Services. Sheis the proprietor of the firm "M Aggarwal & Co" and has an experience of around 10 years
working as a Practicing Company Secretary. Her expertise includes company incorporation, restruc-
turing, insolvency, securities law, FEMA regulations, and CSR. She joined our Company as an Inde-
pendent Director in 2023.



16 Annual Report FY 2024-2025 Annual Report FY 2024-2025

About Auditors & RTA Financial Q 24-25

1. MUFG INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED

(FORMERLY KNOWN AS LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED) In FY 2024-25, we continued our trajectory of strong growth and operational
C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli (West), excellence. Expanding our reach across key markets, we strengthened client
Mumbai-400083, Maharashtra, India relationships, diversified our sector presence, and ensured consistent deliv-
Tel: +9122 49186200 ery performance across geographies.

Fax: +91- 011 41410591

SEBI Registration Number: INROOOOO04058 Here’'s how the numbers looked

2. STATUTORY AUDITORS Revenue: 85.58 cr

M/s Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co., Total clients- 700+

Chartered Accountants (FRN: 007895N) Location: 4 in India, 1 overseas

2952-53/2, Sangtrashan, D.B. Gupta Road, Sector worked: 20

Paharganj, New Delhi - 110055 Number of shipments: 2135

3. INTERNAL AUDITORS

M/s AEPN and Associates

Address: 509,207,516 Jaina Tower-1
District Centre, Janakpuri, New Delhi-58
E-Mail ID: aepn.audit@gmail.com

4. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

M/s MSTR & Associates,

Company Secretaries

Address: 105 & 302, C-2/4, Pragati Market,
Pragati Market, Delhi-110052

E-MAIL ID: mstrassociate@gmail.com

Ph. 27431426, 27460196, 9811834710
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BOARDS' REPORT

To,

The Members of
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED
(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Your directors take pleasure in presenting their 05" Annual Report on the business and operations
of the Company together with the Audited Financial Statement of Statements for March 31, 2025.

1. FINANCIAL SUMMARY OR HIGHLIGHTS/PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

The financial performance of your company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025 is given
below:

(Amount in Lacs)

Standalone Consolidated
FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24

The brief financial results
are as under

Net Sales/Income from 8558.20 5500.43 8558.20 5500.43
Business Operations

Add-Other Income 93.65 24.16 93.65 2416
Total Income 8651.85 552459 8651.85 5524.59
Less: Expenses 772593 4844 .61 7733.46 4844 6]
Profit before tax 92592 679.98 918.39 679.98
Less: Current Income Tax 24177 177.66 241777 177.66
Less: Deferred Tax (1.96) (0.24) (1.96) (0.24)
expense/(income)

Profit for the Period 686.11 502.56 678.58 502.56
Total Other Comprehensive 0.71 (0.64) 0.78 (0.64)
income/ loss for the year

Total Comprehensive income/ 686.82 50192 679.36 501.92
loss for the year

Earnings per share (Basic) in 6.81 6.09 6.74 6.09
Rs

Earnings per Share (Diluted) 6.81 6.09 6.74 6.09

in Rs.

Blrggze Port

ISTICS LIMITED

Chizlisering with Passion
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PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY:

The Company’'s performance, on a consolidated basis, as compared to previous Financial Year
Is as under:

During the year under review, the Company has a Net profit of Rs. 678.58 (In Lacs) against a profit
of Rs. 502.56 (In Lacs) during the previous Financial Year. The revenue from operations of the
Company has increased to Rs. 8558.20 (In Lacs) as compared to Rs. 5500.43 (In Lacs) in the previous
Financial Year. Consequently, earning per share has increased to Rs. 6.74 compared to Earnings per
share of Rs. 6.09 for the previous Financial Year.

The Company'’s performance, on a standalone basis, as compared to previous Financial Year is
as under:

During the year under review, Company has a Net profit of Rs. 686.11 (In Lacs) against a profit of Rs.
502.56 (In Lacs) during the previous Financial Year. The revenue from operations of the Company
has increased to Rs. 8558.20 (In Lacs) as compared to Rs 5500.43 (In Lacs) in the previous Financial
Year.

Consequently, earning per share has increased to Rs. 6.81 compared to Earnings per share of Rs.
6.09 for the previous Financial Year.

Your directors are hopeful for the bright future of the Company in the years to come.

2. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the financial year, there was no amount proposed to be transferred to the Ceneral Reserves.

3. BRIEF DESCRIPTIOIN OF THE COMPANY'S AFFAIR & FUTURE OUTLOOK

Brace Port Logistics Limited is a company that specializes in providing ocean cargo logistics
services to clients across various sectors of the economy. The company also provides services such
as Air Freight, Warehousing facilities, special cargo services such as handling cargo in foreign
countries and delivery of the same in other foreign countries and customs clearance services. The
company has a strong network that serves customers in various industries including medical
supplies, pharmaceuticals, sports goods, perishables, electronics, consumer durables, and
automotive, both in India and globally.

During the year under review, the Company made its Initial Public Offer ('the Offer’) via Fresh Issue
of equity shares comprising of 30,51,200 Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- each at a price of Rs. 80
(including a share premium of Rs. 70), aggregating to Rs 244096000/- (Rs. Twenty-Four Crores
Forty Lacs Ninety-Six Thousand Only). The Company completed its |PO successfully with
participation of several leading domestic and global institutional investors as well as NRIs, HNIs and
retail Investors.

The equity shares of the Company were listed on National Stock Exchange Emerge Platform (“NSE

Emerge”) on August 26, 2024.

In order to embark its global footprint Company has incorporated a Wholly Owned Subsidiary on
09 December, 2024 in UAE with the name and Style of Braceport Logistics LLC-FZ in UAE.

19
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4. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

During the year under review, there were no changes in the nature of Business of the Company.

5. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL
YEAR OF THE COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE
DATE OF THE REPORT

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the
Company which has occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the
financial statements relate and date of this Report.

6. SHARE CAPITAL

During the year under review, the Company has allotted through the Initial Public Offer (IPO)
30,51,200 equity shares having face value of INR 10/- each at an issue price of INR 80 per equity
share. The Company has not issued any equity shares with differential voting rights or any sweat
equity shares.

7. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL APPOINTED AND
RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR:

During the period under review, there has been no change in composition of the Board of Directors
and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year.

8. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Company has several committees, which have been established as part of best corporate

governance practices and comply with the requirements of the relevant provisions of
applicable laws and statutes.

As on March 31, 2025, Company has 04 (Four) Committees namely Audit Committee,

Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee.

The details of the composition of the Board and its Committees are placed on the Company's
website at www.braceport-logistics.com

The Directors have devised proper systems and processes for complying with the
requirements of applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

(A) AUDIT COMMITTEE

An Audit Committee is in existence in accordance with the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

bracePort

ISTICS LIMITED

Chizlisering with Passion
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Terms of Reference/ Policy:

Apart from all the matters provided under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Audit
Committee reviews reports of the internal auditor, financial performance and meets statutory
auditors as and when required and discusses their findings, suggestions, observations and
other related matters. It also reviews major accounting policies followed by the Company

THE COMMITTEE CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING MEMBERS AS ON MARCH 31, 2025

Name of Committee Status in the Category Number

Members Committee of
meetings
attended

Mr. Deepak Chairman Independent Director 3

Sonthaliya

Ms. Megha Aggarwal Member Independent Director 3

Mr. Sachin Arora Member Managing Director 3

(B) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is in existence in accordance with the provisions of
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Terms of Reference/Policy:

Apart from all the matters provided under section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Stakeholders Relationship Committee reviews the complaints received from the stakeholders

of the company as and when required and discusses their findings, suggestions, observations
and other related matters.

The Committee consists of the following Members as on March 31, 2025:

Name of Committee Status in the Category Number

Members Committee of
meetings
attended

Mr. Deepak Chairman Independent Director N.A.

Sonthaliya

Mr. Rishi Trehan Member Whole-Time Director N.A.

Mr. Sachin Arora Member Managing Director N.A.

(C) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A Nomination and Remuneration Committee is in existence in accordance with the provisions
of sub-section (3) of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company's Policy on
appointment and remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel, has been
disclosed on the Company website www.braceport-logistics.com

Terms of Reference/Policy:

On recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee the Company has
framed a policy as per Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 for selection and appointment
of Directors, Senior Management and their remuneration.

21



22

i;lpli-.*cn ||1|=|__*-"-flrl‘_ F‘mﬁ.'_:il:u_'ul
The Committee consists of the following Members as on March 31, 2025:
Name of Committee Status in the Category Number
Members Committee of
meetings
attended
Mr. Deepak Chairman Independent Director 1
Sonthaliya
Ms. Megha Aggarwal Member Independent Director 1
Mr. Himanshu Member Director 1
Chhabra
(D CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE
The Committee consists of the following Members as on March 31, 2025:
Name of Committee Status in the Category Number
Members Committee of
meetings
attended
Mr. Deepak Chairman Independent Director 1
Sonthaliya
Ms. Megha Aggarwal Member Independent Director 1
Mr. Sachin Arora Member Managing Director 1

9. DETAILS OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

In the Compliance of Provisions of clause (b) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of Companies Act, 2013,
12 Board Meetings were held during the financial year. The intervening gap between the Meetings
was within the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.

During the financial year 2024-25 board of directors met 11 times on 01.04.2024, 03.06.2024,

05.07.2024, 11.07.2024, 18.07.2024, 16.08.2024, 21.08.2024, 22.08.2024, 23.08.2024, 12.11.2024 and
04.03.2025.

10. BOARD EVALUATION

Pursuant to the Provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, Nomination and Remuneration Committee has framed the evaluation process
and the performance evaluation of independent directors, executive directors and board whole as
well as working of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration committee has been carried out during
the financial year 2024-25.

1. STATEMENT ON DECLARATION BY AN INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR(S)

All the Independent directors of the company have given their independency declaration pursuant
to sub-Section (7) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the board
independent directors appointed during the year have integrity, expertise and experience
(including proficiency).

ﬁlrlgge Port

12. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

The particulars of loans, guarantees or investments made during the Financial Year 2024-25, if any,
have been disclosed in the notes attached to and forming part of the Financial Statements of the
Company prepared for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025, as per the provisions of Section 186
and Section 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013.

13. DIVIDEND

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company declare an interim dividend
aggregating the amount of Rs. 187.88 Lacs on equity shares of the Company 2 times, details of
which are as follows:

A. The Board in its board meeting held on 05 July 2024 declares an interim dividend of Rs 1.25/-
per share out of the reserves and surplus of the Company for the financial year 2024-2025 on
Equity shares and that the dividend so declared be paid to those equity shareholders whose

names stand in the register of members or as beneficial owners in the records of NSDL/CDSL
as on 05-07-2024.

B. The Board in its board meeting held on 04™ March 2025 declares an interim dividend of Rs.
Q.75 paise per share, at the rate of 7.5% on each fully paid-up equity share of Rs. 10 be paid
out of the profits of the Company to those Members whose names appear in the Register of
Members as on the Record Date i.e. 17" March 2025 for the payment of interim dividend.

The Board of Director has not recommended any final dividend for the financial year ended 31
March2025. Accordingly, the interim dividend declared and paid shall be considered as the final
dividend for the Financial Year 2024-25.

14. TRANSFER OF AMOUNTS TO INVESTER EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND

The Company does not have any unpaid / unclaimed amount which is required to be transferred,
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 to the Investor Education and Protection Fund
('IEPF’) of the Government of India.

15. DEPOSITS

During the year under review, your Company did not accept any deposits in terms of Section 73 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014.
No amount was outstanding which were classified as Deposit under the applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 as on the Balance Sheet date.

16. STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 007895N) Peer Reviewed Firm was
appointed as statutory auditors of the company at 4™ Annual General Meeting to hold office as
such until the conclusion of the AGM of the company to be held in the year 2029.The statutory
auditors have confirmed that they satisfy the independence criteria required under the Companies
Act, 2013 and other applicable guidelines and regulations.

17. AUDITORS' REPORT

The observations of Auditors in their Report, read with the relevant notes to accounts are self-
explanatory. There are no qualifications, observations or adverse remarks which require comments
of Board of Directors and require further explanations.

o LINMITED
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18. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made thereunder;
the company was appointed (MSTR & ASSOCIATE) Company Secretaries to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial Year ended March 31, 2025. The secretarial Report
has been annexed as ‘Annexure - 1’ to the Directors' Report

There are no qualifications or reservation or adverse remarks or disclaimers in the said report.

19. COST AUDITOR

Pursuant to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Records and
Audit) Rules, 2014 the Cost Audit Report I1s not mandatorily applicable to our Company; hence, no
such audit has been carried out during the year.

20.INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Company has in place an adequate internal audit framework to monitor the efficacy of the
internal controls with the objective of providing to the Board, an independent, objective and
reasonable assurance on the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's processes. M/s AEPN
and Associates was appointed as Internal Auditor of the Company for the financial Year ended
March 31, 2025. The Internal Audit function develops an audit plan for the Company, which inter-
alia, covers core business operations as well as support functions and is reviewed and approved by
the Board on an annual basis. The internal audit approach verifies compliance with the operational
and system related procedures and controls.

Significant audit observations are presented to the Board, together with the status of the
management actions and the progress of the implementation of the recommendations on a
regular basis.

21. REPORTING OF FRAUDS BY AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Auditors of the Company have not reported to the Audit Com-
mittee, under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2103 (“the Act"), any instances of fraud
committed against the Company by its officers or employees, therefore no detail is required to be
disclosed under Section 134 (3) (ca) of the Act.

22. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The statement relating to particulars in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption

and foreign exchange earnings & outgo under the Companies Act 2013 is given in Annexure Il and
forms part of this Report.

23.RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

R & D activities of the Company are focused specifically on development of curriculum based digital
content. This requires continuous research and development, adoption of new and more efficient
technologies and innovation.

(i)Benefits derived as a result of the above R&D

Content created by us enables better learning and enhanced profit.

(ii))Future Plan of Action Aggressive growth

(iii)Expenditure on R&D: NIL

24.DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
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24.DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:

During the year under review, the Company has one Wholly Owned Subsidiary which is as

follows.
Sr Name of Body Corporate Formation No. Relation Country
no.
1. Braceport Logistics L.L.C.- | 2425390 Wholly Dubai
FZ Owned
Subsidiary

Pursuant to sub-section (3) of Section 129 of the Act, the statement containing the salient
feature of the financial statement of a Company's subsidiary or subsidiaries, associate Company

or companies and joint venture or ventures is given in form AOC-1 and attached as Annexure-
1.

Your Company does not have any Associate Company during the Financial Year 2024-25.

However, Brace Port Logistics Limited on 15" May 2025 has incorporated its Associate Company
with the name and Style of AllGlobal Logistics Inc. in Canada.

25. PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES:

During the Financial year under review, the company has entered into related party transactions
prescribed under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, Form AOC -2 is required to
attach this report as Annexure IV. The Company has formulated a policy on dealing with Related
Party Transactions which can be accessed on the Company's website
www.braceport-logistics.com

26. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Company has developed and implemented a risk management policy which identifies major
risks which may threaten the existence of the Company. The same has also been adopted by your
Board and is also subject to its review from time to time. Risk mitigation process and measures
have been also formulated and clearly spelled out in the said policy and the said Policy is available

on Company's website at www.braceport-logistics.com

27.INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. The internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements are adequate
in the opinion of the Board of Directors. Also, the Company has a proper system of internal controls
to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition and that transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly.

During the Financial Year 2024-25, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness
In the design or operation was observed.

28. VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company has established a robust Vigil Mechanism and adopted a Whistle Blower Policy in
accordance with provisions of Section 177(9) of the Act and Regulations of Listing Regulations, to
provide a formal mechanism to its Directors/ Employees/Stakeholders of the Company for report-
ing any unethical behavior, breach of any statute, actual or suspected fraud on the accounting
policies and procedures adopted for any area or item, acts resulting in financial loss or loss of repu-
tation, leakage of information in the nature of Unpublished Price Sensitive Information (UPSI), mis-
use of office, suspected / actual fraud and criminal offences. During the year under review, no such
concern from any whistle-blower has been received by the Company. The Whistle Blower Policy is
availlable on Company's website at www.braceport-logistics.com
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29.WEB ADDRESS

Pursuant to Section 134 (3) (a) of the Act, the annual return for Financial Year 2025 prepared in
accordance with Section 92(3) of the Act is made available on the website of the Company and can
be accessed by using the link www.braceport-logistics.com

30.DETAILS OF APPLICATION / ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND
BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

Neither any application was made nor any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016) during the financial year under review.

31. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME
OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE
BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

During the year under review, it has been observed that there is no difference between amount of
the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan
from the banks or financial institutions along with the reasons thereof hence, this provision Is not
applicable to the Company.

32. RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT:

As directed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), Reconciliation of Share Capital
Audit has been carried out at the specified period, by a Practicing Company Secretary.

33. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Directors' Responsibility Statement referred to in clause ¢) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of
the Act, states that-

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the company at the end of the Financial Year and of the Profit and.

Loss of the Company for that period;

c) the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate ac-
counting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the
company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors, have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

(f) the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

34.DISCLOSURE UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT-2013

The company has in place a policy for prevention of sexual harassment in accordance with the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition &
Redressal) Act, 2013, Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints
received regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary,

trainees) are covered under this policy. The Company did not receive any complain during the year
2024-25.
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35. OBSERVANCE OF THE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

The Directors state that proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the
applicable laws. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 118 of the Act, 2013 during FY 2023, the
Company has adhered with the applicable provisions of the Secretarial Standards ("SS-1" and "SS-
2") relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings' issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (“ICSI") and notified by MCA.

36.PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has also adopted a Insider Trading Rules, 2023. All the Directors, Senior Management
employees and other employees who have access to the unpublished price sensitive information
of the Company are governed by this Rules/code. During the year under report, there has been due
compliance with the said code of conduct for prevention of insider trading based on the SEBI (Pro-
hibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015.

37. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

This report contains forward- looking statements based on the perceptions of the Company and
the data and information available with the company. The company does not and cannot
guarantee the accuracy of various assumptions underlying such statements and they reflect
Company's current views of the future events and are subject to risks and uncertainties. Many
factors like change in general economic conditions, amongst others, could cause actual results to
be materially different.

38.GREEN INITIATIVE

In commitment to keep in line with the Green Initiatives and going beyond it, electronic copy of
the Notice of 5"Annual General Meeting of the Company including the Annual Report for FY 2024-
25 are being sent to all Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the Company /
Depository Participant(s).

39.CASH FLOW AND CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As required under the Regulation 34 (2) of the Listing Regulations, a cash flow statement is part of
the Annual Report 2024-25. Also, the Company has presented the Consolidated Financial State-
ments of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 which forms the part of the Annual Report
2024-25.

40.DISCLOSURE OF ORDERS PASSED BY REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNAL

During the year under review, the Company has not received any Orders from the Regulators or
Courts or Tribunal which can impact the 'going concern’ status of the Company.

41. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

In term of Regulation 34 of the Listing Regulations, Management's Discussion and Analysis Report
for the year under review, is presented in a separate section, forming an integral part of this Annual
Report and is enclosed as Annexure-VI.

42.PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

None of the employees of the Company are in receipt of remuneration exceeding the limits
prescribed in (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Further in
Compliance of Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, the details are as follows:
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I The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the Company for the financial year 2024-25
Sr No. | Name of the Director Ratio of remuneration to the median
remuneration of the employees
1. Sachin Arora 12.60
2. Rishi Trehan 11.10
|l The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief
Executive Officer, Company Secretary or Managet, if any, in the Financial year 2024-25
Sr No. | Name of the Director/ CFO/ Company | % increase over last F.Y.
Secretary
il Sachin Arora 24.09%
. Rishi Trehan 22.77%
3. Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair 46.58%
4. Megha Verma 172.32%
11 The percentage increase/ decrease in | 22.74%
the median remuneration of employees
in the financial year
AY) The number of permanent employees | 34
on the rolls of the Company as on 3lst
March, 2025
% Average percentile increase already | The average percentile increases in the
made in the salaries of employees other | salaries of employees other than managerial
than the managerial personnel in the | personnel in the financial year 2024-25 was
last financial year and its comparison | 6.15%, whereas the percentile increase in
with the percentile increase in the | managerial remuneration was 31.66%.
managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if
there are any exceptional circumstances
for increase in the managerial
remuneration
VI The key parameters for any variable | NIL
component of remuneration availed by
the directors
VII Affirmation that the remuneration is as | Pursuant to Rule 5(1)(xii) of the Companies
per the remuneration policy of the | (Appointment and Remuneration  of
Company Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, it Is
affirmed that the remuneration paid to the
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and
Senior Management s as per the
Remuneration Policy of your Company.
43.POLICIES

All the policies are available on the website of the Company i.e. www.braceport-logistics.com

44, LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE

The Company has launched its Initial Public Offer at the Platform of NSE Emerge and get listed on

26" August, 2024 and shares of the company are traded at NSE Emerge Platform. The Company
has paid Listing fees to National Stock Exchange of India Limited.
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45.DISCLOSURES WITH RESPECT TO DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT/UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE
ACCOUNT

The Provisions of Clause F of Schedule V of Regulation 34 of Details of Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 are not
applicable to the Company as Company does not have any Demat Suspense Account/Unclaimed
Suspense Account as on 3lst March 2025.

46.ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your directors would like to place on record their deep sense of gratitude to Shareholders and
Stakeholders. The Directors place on record their sincere appreciation to all employees of the
Company for their unstinted commitment and continued contribution to the Company.

By order of the Board of Directors
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED
(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

sd/- sd/-
SACHIN ARORA YASH PAL SHARMA

Managing Director Director
DIN: 08952681 DIN: 00520359

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30.08.2025
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Annexure - |

Form No. MR-3

Secretarial Audit Repcflr_"t

For the Financial year ended 2024-25

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule
No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Person-
nel) Rules, 2014]

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of

India Act, 1992 (*SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company:-
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992
and SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;.
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2009; (Not applicable to the Company during the period).

d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee

To, Stock Purchase Scheme) Cuidelines, 1999; (Not applicable to the Company during the

The Members

period).
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED

Plot No. A-390 B, 2" Floor, A-Block,
Road No 2, Mahipalpur Extn., New Delhi-110037

Sir,

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my Opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by
the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on 3lst March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and
also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the

extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED (“The Company”) for the period ended on 31-03-
2025 according to the provisions of:

|. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under;
ll. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA') and the Rules made thereunder; (Not

applicable to the Company during the period).

I1l. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1992 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings;

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; (Not applicable to the Company during the period).

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009
and; (Not applicable to the Company during the period).

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 19298; (Not
applicable to the Company during the period).

We have relied on the presentation made by the Company and its officer for systems and

mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable acts, laws and

regulations as applicable to the Company.
| have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the followings:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretary of India.

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Stock Exchanges(s),

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,

Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

1

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors (if any) that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper Executive Directors
and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors took
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at |least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.
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We

The Company at its meeting held on August 16, 2024 allocated 5,37,600 Equity Sharesto Anchor
Investors @INR 80/- per equity shares (including share premium of INR 70/- per equity share).
The equity shares of the Company were listed on National Stock Exchange Emerge Platform
("NSE Emerge”) on August 26, 2024.

During the year under review, the company has changed its registered office from A-182,
Mahipalpur Extension 5 Road No 4 South Delhi-110037 to Plot No. A-390 B, 2nd Floor, A-Block,
Road No 2, Mahipalpur Extn Southwest Delhi, New Delhi 110037.

During the year under review, the Board of Directors of the Company has declared an interim
dividend aggregating the amount of Rs. 187.88 Lacs on equity shares of the Company 2 times,
details of which are as follows:

a. The Board in its board meeting held on 05* July 2024 declares an interim dividend of Rs
1.25/- per share out of the reserves and surplus of the Company for the financial year
2024-2025 on Equity shares and that the dividend so declared be paid to those equity
shareholders whose names stand in the register of members or as beneficial owners in
the records of NSDL/CDSL as on 05-07-2024.

b. The Board in its board meeting held on 04™ March 2025 declares an interim dividend of
Rs. 0.75 paise per share, at the rate of 7.5% on each fully paid-up equity share of Rs. 10 be
paid out of the profits of the Company to those Members whose names appear in the
Register of Members as on the Record Date i.e. 17" March 2025 for the payment of
interim dividend.

The Company has incorporated “Braceport Logistics L.L.C.-FZ" as Wholly Owned Subsidiary
iIn Dubai vide 2425390 Formation No., during the year under review.

During the year under review, the Company made its Initial Public Offer (‘the Offer’) via Fresh
Issue of equity shares comprising of 30,51,200 Equity Shares of face value Rs. 10/- each at a price
of Rs. 80 (including a share premium of Rs. 70), aggregating to Rs 244096000/- (Rs. Twenty-
Four Crores Forty Lacs Ninety-Six Thousand Only). The offer had been initially authorized by
the Shareholders in their Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held on 25.08.2023. The offer was
open for Public from 19.08.2024 to 21.08.2024. The Company completed its IPO successfully with
participation of several leading domestic and global institutional investors as well as NRls, HNIs
and retail Investors. The Offer was oversubscribed by 657.81 times.

further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company

commensurate with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

Note: Please report specific observations / qualification, reservation or adverse remarks in respect
of the Board Structures/system and processes relating to the Audit period.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of:

|. Redemption / buy-back of securities

I1.
1.

Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction,
Foreign technical collaborations- The Company has incorporated “Braceport Logistics L.L.C.-

FZ" as Wholly Owned Subsidiary in Dubai vide 2425390 Formation No., during the year under
review.

Further, the Company has duly filed applicable forms and returns with the Registrar of
Companies, Delhi & Haryana / Ministry of Corporate Affairs within the prescribed time or with
additional fee in cases of delayed filings. Few forms / returns (if any) which were due for filing
during the financial year, the management has assured compliance with the same in future.

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure 1" and forms
an integral part of this report.

For MSTR & Associates

sd/-

Teena Rani

Sole Proprietor

M. No. 40050

COP No. 21768

UDIN: A040050G000479786
Place: New Delhi

Date: 28.05.2025
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“Annexure A"

To,

The Members

BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED

Plot No. A-390 B, 2" Floor, A-Block,

Road No 2, Mahipalpur Extn., New Delhi-110037

Sub: Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2025 of even date is to be read with
this letter

1) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. We believe that the
processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

4) Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5) The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification
of procedures on test basis.

6) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the
company.

For MSTR & Associates

sd/-

Teena Rani

Sole Proprietor

M. No. 40050

COP No. 21768

UDIN: A040050G000479786
Place: New Delhi

Date: 28.05.2025
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ANNEXURE TO BOARDS' REPORT (2024-25)
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED (Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE

LIMITED)

Information as per Section 134(3) (m) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Accounts) Rules
2014.

Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
The details of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as under:

a) Conservation of Energy:
Steps taken for conservation

The Company lays great emphasis on
saving consumption of energy. Achieving
Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources | reductions in energy consumption is an
of energy ongoing exercise in the Company. Effective

Capital investment on energy conservation | measures have been taken to minimize the
equipments loss of energy, wherever possible.

b) Technology Absorption:

ISTICS LIMITED
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Efforts made for technology | The initiative measures have been taken

absorption by the company.
Benefits derived Nil
Expenditure on Research | Nil

&Development, if any

Details of technology imported, if | Nil

any
Year of import Nil
Whether imported technology fully | Nil
absorbed

Areas where absorption of imported | Nil
technology has not taken place, if
any

c) Foreign Exchange Earnings/ Outgo (In Lacs.):

Earnings 314.65

Ou tgo 1477 24

By order of the Board of Directors
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED
(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)
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Annexure-lll

BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED
ANNEXURE TO BOARD’'S REPORT (2024-25)

FORM NO. AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A": Subsidiaries

Sl. No. Particulars Details

1. Name of the subsidiary Braceport Logistics L.L.C.-FZ

2. Reporting period for the subsidiary [NIL
concerned, if different from the
holding company’s reporting period

8 Reporting currency and Exchange rate NIL
as on the last date of the relevant
Financial year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries

4, Share capital NIL
5. Reserves & surplus NIL
o. Total assets NIL
7. Total Liabilities NIL
8. Investments NIL
9. Turnover NIL
10. Profit before taxation NIL
11. Provision for taxation NIL
12. Profit after taxation NIL
13. Proposed Dividend NIL
14. % of shareholding 100%

By order of the Board of Directors
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED
(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)
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ANNEXURE TO BOARDS' REPORT (2024-25)
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED (Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE

LIMITED)

Information as per Section 134(3) (m) read with Rule 3 of Companies (Accounts) Rules

2014.

Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo
The details of Energy, Technology, Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo are as under:

a) Conservation of Energy:
Steps taken for conservation

The Company lays great emphasis on
saving consumption of energy. Achieving
Steps taken for utilizing alternate sources | reductions in energy consumption is an
of energy ongoing exercise in the Company. Effective

Capital investment on energy conservation | measures have been taken to minimize the
equipments loss of energy, wherever possible.

b) Technology Absorption:

Liciivieting with Fassion
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Efforts made for technology | The initiative measures have been taken

absorption by the company.
Benefits derived Nil
Expenditure on Research | Nil

&Development, if any

Details of technology imported, if | Nil

any
Year of import Nil
Whether imported technology fully | Nil
absorbed

Areas where absorption of imported | Nil
technology has not taken place, if

any

c) Foreign Exchange Earnings/ Outgo (In Lacs.):

Earnings 314.65

Outgo 147 24

By order of the Board of Directors
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED
(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

sd/- sd/-
SACHIN ARORA YASH PAL SHARMA

Managing Director Director
DIN: 08952681 DIN: 00520359

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30.08.2025
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Annexure-Ill

BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED
ANNEXURE TO BOARD'S REPORT (2024-25)

FORM NO. AOC-1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

Sl. No. Particulars Details

1. Name of the subsidiary Braceport Logistics L.L.C.-FZ

Z Reporting period for the subsidiary [NIL
concerned, if different from the
holding company's reporting period

3. Reporting currency and Exchange rate [NIL
as on the last date of the relevant
Financial year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries

4, Share capital NIL
5. Reserves & surplus NIL
B. Total assets NIL
7. Total Liabilities NIL
8. Investments NIL
Q. Turnover NIL
10. Profit before taxation NIL
11. Provision for taxation NIL
T2 Profit after taxation NIL
13. Proposed Dividend NIL
14. % of shareholding 100%

By order of the Board of Directors
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED
(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

sd/- sd/-
SACHIN ARORA YASH PAL SHARMA

Managing Director Director
DIN: 08952681 DIN: 00520359

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30.08.2025
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Annexure- IV

BracePort

FORM NO. AOC-2
Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company
with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
including arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transaction not at arm’s length basis: NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transaction at arm’s length basis

L IKAITED

Crelvering with Fassion

BracePort

Delvering withy Passion

Name of related party and nature
of relationship

1.

3.

4,

Skyways Air Services Pvt. Ltd.-
Holding

a. Sale of Services -Rs. 4.25 Lacs
b. Purchase of Services - Rs.
940./75 Lacs

c. Reimbursement paid- Rs. 3.60
Lacs

d. Rent Expense- Rs. 3.60 Lacs
Phantom Express Pvt. Ltd.
Fellow Subsidiary

Purchase of Services - Rs. 27.63
Lacs

Skyways SLS Logistics GMBH-
Fellow Subsidiary

Sale of Services - Rs. Nill

Forin Container Line Private
Limited- Fellow Subsidiary

a. Sale of Services - Rs. Nill

. Purchase of Services- Rs.
359.56 Lacs

. Surgeport Logistics Private

Limited- Fellow Subsidiary

Sale of Services - Rs. 79.91 Lacs
Skart Global Express Private
Limited- Fellow Subsidiary

a. Purchase of Services - Rs. 2.41
lacs

RIV Worldwide Limited- Fellow
Subsidiary

a. Services Received -Rs. 1497 lacs

. Skyways SLS Logistik Company

Limited (Vietham) - Fellow
Subsidiary

a. Purchase of Services -Rs. 2.96
lacs

9. Skyways SLS Cargo Services
LLC (Dubai-UAE). - Fellow

Subsidiary

a. Sale of Services -Rs. 156191 lacs

b. Purchase of Services- Rs. 25.52
lacs
10. Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd
(Hong Kong)- Fellow Subsidiary
a. Sale of Services -Rs. Nill
b. Purchase of Services -Rs. 6.26
lacs
11. Bolt Freight INC- Fellow
Subsidiary
a. Sale of Services -Rs. 17.56 lacs
b. Purchase of Services-Rs.16.77
lacs
12. Rahat Continental Private
Limited- Fellow Subsidiary
a. Sale of Services - Rs. Nil
b. Purchase of Services- Rs. 5.05
lacs
13. Sgate Tech Solutions Private
Limted-
Fellow Subsidiary

a. Software maintenance - Rs.

Nil
b. Purchase of intangible assets -

Rs.5091lacs

c. Professional charges - Rs.
3.57 Lacs

14. Pradhaan Air Express Private

Limted-Enterprises over which kmp has
significant control

a. Purchase of Services— Rs.

1485.99 lacs

15. Braceport Logistics L.L.C.-FZ-
Wholly owned

Subsidiary
a. Reimbursement Paid-Rs. 7.41
lacs
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16. SLS Retail Super Mart Pvt.
Ltd.- Fellow

Subsidiary
a. Miscellaneous Expense-Rs.
0.16 lacs
b. Advertisement & Business
Promotion-

Rs.0.02 lacs

Sale of Service, Purchase of Service,
Advertisement & Business Promotion and
Miscellaneous Expanse

Duration of NA
contract/arrangement/transaction

Salient terms of contracts or NA
arrangement or transaction

including the value, if any

Date of approval by the Board, if NA
any

Amount paid as advance, if any NIL

By order of the Board of Directors
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED

(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

sd/- sd/-
SACHIN ARORA

Managing Director Director
DIN: 08952681 DIN: 00520359

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30.08.2025

YASH PAL SHARMA

bracelort
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Annexure-V

Annual Report on CSR
[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(o) of the Act and Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility)
Rules, 2014]

BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWNS AS BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

The CSR policy has been instituted based on the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) philosophy
of your Company and is committed to undertake CSR activities in accordance with the CSR
Regulations. Your Company conducts its business in a sustainable and socially responsible manner.
This principle has been an integral part of the Company's corporate values and believes that
corporate growth and development should be inclusive, and every Company must be responsible
and shall contribute towards betterment of the society. Your Company is committed to the safety
and health of the employees, protecting the environment and the quality of life in all regions in
which your Company operates. Donations are made in areas such as the social welfare, Promotion
of veganism & vegetarianism, animal welfare and the environment among others.

The CSR activities of the Company are as per the provisions of Schedule VIl of the Companies Act,
2013 and CSR Policy gives an overview of the projects and programmes which are proposed to be
undertaken by the Company in the coming years.

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:

Name of the Director Designation Nature of Directorship

Deepak Sonthaliya Chairman Independent Director
Megha Aggarwal Member Independent Director
Sachin Arora Member Managing Director

In respect of Monitoring and evaluating of the CSR Policy and amount to be spent, Members of CSR
Committee has discussed the matter in its meeting held on 03.06.2024.

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by
the board are disclosed on the website of the Company:

The CSR policy and CSR projects approved by the Board may accessed at www.braceport-
logistics.com

4. Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule
8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the

report):

Not Applicable
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5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for setoff

BracePort

Cleliverng with Passion

for the financial year, if any

Sl. | Financial Year Amount available for set-off | Amount required to be set-

No from preceding financial years | off for the financial year, if
(in Rs.) any (in Rs.))

L 2023-24 0 O

2 2024-25 0 0

6. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial year as per section 135(5): INR

642.07

7. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above): INR 12.84 Lacs

Lacs

8. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NI

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): INR 13 Lacs/-

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any:

3 BracePort

Clelivering with Passion

Sl. | Particulars

Amount (in lacs)

No.
i. | Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 12.84
135(5)
ii. | Total amount spent for the Financial Year 13
iii. | Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 0.16
Iv. | Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities 0.00
of the previous financial years, if any
v. | Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 0.16

9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding

financial year: Nil

10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so

created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Nil

Total Amount Unspent (in Lacs.)
Amount Total Amount transferred to | Amount transferred to any fund specified
Spent Unspent CSR Account as per | under Schedule VIl as per second proviso to
section 135(6). section 135(5).
Amount Date of | Name of the | Amount Date of
Transfer Fund Transfer
13,000,000 NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
S | Name of the | Item Lo | Location Amount | Mode Mode of
l. . from cal of _ .
Project of the spent implementation
N the list | ar ) implem
& of ea | Project for the antatio Through
activiti | (v project | implementing
es in es/ (in ° Direct agency
schedul | No Rs) (Yes/No
e )- )
VIl to State | Distri Name CSR
the ct Registratio
N number
Act.
1 | EDUCATION | EDUCA | Ye | Delhi Sout |13,00,00 | No GREAT CSRO00091
TION S h 0 VALUE 73
Delhi INSTITUTE
OF
EDUCATIO
N

11. Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net

profit as per section 135(5): N.A.

By order of the Board of Directors
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED
(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

sd/- sd/-
SACHIN ARORA YASH PAL SHARMA

Managing Director Director
DIN: 08952681 DIN: 00520359

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30.08.2025
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Annexure-Vi
Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Brace Port is a service-based logistics company, comprising of 20 plus trained and experienced
professionals. The organization has rich industry. Our aim is to provide highly optimized and
customized supply chain solutions to our customers with unified technology systems. It has a
wholly owned subsidiary i.e. Braceport Logistics L.L.C.-FZ in UAE.
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1. Industry Overview- Logistics Sector

Brace Port Logistics Ltd. (Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED) has
continued to consolidate its position as a trusted and emerging player in the port logistics and
freight forwarding sector. Amidst global trade challenges, supply chain disruptions, and rising
operational complexities, the Company demonstrated robust adaptability, operational
excellence, and a relentless focus on customer-centric services.

A landmark achievement during the year was the successful listing of the Company's equity
shares on the NSE Emerge Platform in August 2024, marking a significant milestone in Brace
Port's corporate journey. This listing not only strengthened the Company's capital base but also
enhanced its credibility and visibility in the logistics ecosystem.

Brace Port is actively working to build long-term partnerships with various entities, focusing on
delivering seamless logistics support tailored to their operational needs. The Company's
objective is to emerge as a preferred logistics partner to various sectors, ensuring transparency,
efficiency, and contributing to national logistics infrastructure development.

With a strong foundation, strategic expansions, and a clear growth roadmap, Brace Port
Logistics Ltd. remains poised to scale new heights in the logistics sector in the coming years.

2. Industry Structure and Developments
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The Indian logistics industry is an essential
pillar of the economy, facilitating the
movement of goods across domestic and
international markets. The sector is highly
fragmented but is steadily moving towards
organized players due to rising demand for
efficient, technology-driven, and cost-
effective logistics solutions.

FREIGHT SERVICES

India’'s logistics market is expected to reach Road. air, train og@ver
more than USD 380 billion by 2026, driven by
strong economic growth, rising e-
commerce penetration, infrastructure
upgrades, and government initiatives such
as:

PM Gati Shakti National Master Plan for multimodal connectivity. Sagarmala Project for port-led
development. Dedicated Freight Corridors (DFCs) to enhance rail-based logistics. National
Logistics Policy (NLP) aimed at reducing logistics cost to 8-10% of GDP The Indian logistics
industry is an essential pillar of the economy, facilitating the movement of goods across
domestic and international markets. The sector is highly fragmented but is steadily moving
towards organized players due to rising demand for efficient, technology-driven, and cost-
effective logistics solutions.

India's logistics market is expected to reach more than USD 380 billion by 2026, driven by strong
economic growth, rising e-commerce penetration, infrastructure upgrades, and government
Initiatives such as:

PM Gati Shakti National Master Plan for multimodal connectivity.

Sagarmala Project for port-led development.

Dedicated Freight Corridors (DFCs) to enhance rail-based logistics.

National Logistics Policy (NLP) aimed at reducing logistics cost to 8-10% of GDP.

The rise of e-commerce, digital supply chains, and increasing emphasis on integrated logistics
solutions have accelerated the sector's growth trajectory. Innovations in warehousing, last-mile
delivery, real-time tracking, and Al-driven route optimization are reshaping the logistics
landscape in India.

However, the sector faces challenges like high operational costs due to fuel price volatility,
iInfrastructure bottlenecks, and regulatory complexities. Companies that can leverage
technology, scale operations, and offer end-to-end logistics solutions are expected to thrive in
this evolving environment.

Brace Port Logistics Ltd., with its focused approach on port logistics, is well-positioned to
capitalize on these growth opportunities, ensuring efficient cargo handling, seamless
connectivity, and superior customer service.

3. Opportunities and Threats

Opportunities:

a. Growing Demand for Integrated Logistics Solutions: With the Indian economy moving
towards more organized logistics infrastructure, there is a rising demand for end-to-end
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integrated logistics services. Companies are preferring single-window logistics partners who
can handle port operations, freight forwarding, warehousing, and last-mile delivery seamlessly.
Brace Port is well-positioned to capitalize on this trend by offering comprehensive logistics
solutions.

b. Government Initiatives & Infrastructure Push: Programs like PM Gati Shakti Master Plan,
Sagarmala Project, National Logistics Policy (NLP), and Dedicated Freight Corridors (DFCs) are
transforming India’s logistics landscape. These initiatives will enhance port connectivity, reduce
turnaround time, and lower logistics costs, presenting significant growth opportunities for port-
centric logistics players like Brace Port.

c. Expansion into Air Freight & Multimodal Logistics: With the acquisition of the IATA License,
Brace Port has unlocked new business avenues in the air cargo segment. The multimodal
logistics approach (Sea, Air, Road) will enable the Company to cater to a wider range of
customers with time-sensitive cargo requirements, enhancing service capability and revenue
diversification.

d. Public Sector Undertaking (PSU) Collaborations: Collaborations with PSUs for their logistics
needs present a huge opportunity for long-term, stable business. Brace Port's focus on
compliance, transparency, and operational efficiency aligns with PSU expectations, positioning
It as a preferred partner.

e. Digital Transformation & Technology Adoption: The logistics sector is undergoing digital
transformation with technologies like Al, loT-enabled tracking, automated warehouses, and
digital documentation. Brace Port's proactive investment in digital solutions will enhance
customer experience, operational control, and supply chain visibility.

f. E-commerce & EXIM Trade Growth: The surge in e-commerce, coupled with increasing
export-import activities, particularly through port infrastructure, is expected to drive demand
for reliable logistics service providers. Brace Port Is strategically positioned to serve this growing
demand efficiently.
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Threats:

a. Intense Competition from Unorganized Sector: The logistics sector remains highly
fragmented with numerous small and unorganized players offering services at lower costs.
Competing with such players on pricing while maintaining service quality is a continuous
challenge.

b. Volatility in Fuel Prices & Rising Operational Costs: Fluctuating fuel prices directly impact
transportation and freight forwarding costs. Additionally, rising labor and infrastructure costs
can affect profit margins, necessitating continuous efficiency improvements.

BracePort
Annual Report FY 2024-2025 LOGISTICS LIMITED
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c. Infrastructure Bottlenecks & Port Congestion: Despite government initiatives, certain ports
and logistics hubs continue to face infrastructure Ilimitations, congestion issues, and
bureaucratic delays which can disrupt service schedules and increase turnaround time.

d. Global Economic Slowdown & Trade Disruptions: Geopolitical tensions, supply chain
disruptions, and global economic uncertainties can adversely affect trade volumes and logistics
demand. Brace Port remains exposed to such external macroeconomic risks.

e. Regulatory Changes & Compliance Burden: The logistics sector is governed by multiple
regulatory frameworks. Changes in taxation (CST), customs regulations, environmental normes,
or trade policies can impose additional compliance burdens, affecting business operations.

g. Cybersecurity Risks: With increasing reliance on digital platforms for cargo tracking,
documentation, and communication, the risk of cybersecurity breaches has also intensified.
Robust data security measures and cybersecurity protocols are essential to mitigate these risks.

4. Segment-wise or Product-wise Performance:

The Company is primarily engaged in providing port logistics services, including cargo handling,
transportation, and warehousing solutions. For the year ended 3lst March, 2025, the Company
achieved a revenue of T 8558.20 Lacs from port logistics operations, registering a growth of
55.59% over the previous year.

5. Financial Performance with respect to Operational Performance
a. Standalone Financial Performance:

For the financial year ended 31st March, 2025, Brace Port Logistics Ltd. has reported a Standalone
Revenue from Operations of 8,558.20 Lacs, reflecting a significant growth of 55.59% over the
previous year's revenue of 5500.43 Lacs. The robust growth in revenue is primarily attributed
to increased cargo volumes handled at ports, expansion into air freight services post IATA
certification, and onboarding of new clients in the EXIM (Export-Import) segment.

The Standalone Profit After Tax (PAT) for the year stood at T 68611 Lacs, marking an
improvement in profitability driven by higher operational efficiency, optimized resource
utilization, and effective cost control measures.

The Company's focus on integrating digital solutions in cargo tracking, streamlining
documentation processes, and adopting multimodal logistics strategies has led to enhanced
service delivery and customer satisfaction, resulting in repeat business from key clients.

b. Consolidated Financial Performance:

On a consolidated basis, including the performance of its subsidiaries, the Company achieved a
Total Revenue of T 8,558.20 Lakhs during FY 2024-25, which represents a growth of 55.59% over
the previous year's consolidated revenue of X 5,500.43 Lacs.

The Consolidated Profit After Tax (PAT) stood at T 678.58 Lacs, reflecting the positive impact of
strategic collaborations, expanded service offerings, and synergies achieved through subsidiary
operations.

The consolidated performance underscores the Company’s successful diversification into value-
added logistics services, including customs clearance, warehousing solutions, and air freight
operations, enhancing its market position as an integrated logistics service provider.
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The salient parameters of the financial performance of the Company during the year under
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The brief financial results Standalone Consolidated

are as under FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
Net Sales/Income from 8558.20 5500.43 8558.20 5500.43
Business Operations

Add-Other Income 93.65 2416 93.65 2416
Total Income 8651.85 5524.59 8651.85 5524.59
Less: Expenses 772593 4844 0] 7733.46 484461
Profit before tax 925.92 679.98 918.39 679.98
Less: Current Income Tax 24177 177.66 24177 177.66
Less: Deferred Tax 1.96 0.24 1.96 0.24
expense/(income)

Profit for the Period 686.11 502.56 678.58 502.56
Total Other Comprehensive 0.71 (0.64) 0.78 (0.64)
income/ loss for the year

Total Comprehensive 686.82 50192 679.36 50192
income/ loss for the year

Earnings per share (Basic) in 6.81 6.09 6.74 6.09
Rs

Earnings per Share(Diluted) 6.81 ©.09 .74 6.09
INn Rs.

6. Risks and Concerns

Dependency on port infrastructure, currency fluctuations and regulatory clearances.
Operational risks including cargo damage, delays, and supply chain disruptions. Geopolitical
risks impacting global trade. Cybersecurity threats due to increasing reliance on digital
platforms.

7. Internal Control Systems and Their Adequacy

The Company has a robust internal control system commensurate with its size and nature of
operations. Internal audits are conducted periodically to assess the effectiveness of internal
controls, financial reporting processes, and compliance with statutory regulations.

’3 bracePort

Human capital is a key asset for the Company. Regular training programs, skill development
workshops, and employee welfare initiatives are undertaken to enhance productivity and job
satisfaction. The industrial relations during the year remained cordial and harmonious the total
number of Employees as on March 31, 2025 on consolidated and stand-alone basis is 34.

8. Human Resources

9. Outlook

With the Indian economy recovering post-pandemic and infrastructure reforms gaining pace,
the outlook for the logistics sector remains robust. The Company aims to enhance its service
offerings by investing in technology-driven solutions, expanding warehousing capacity, and
strengthening strategic partnerships with port authorities and key clients.

Brace Port Logistics Ltd. is confident of sustaining growth momentum by leveraging its
operational expertise, customer-centric approach, and expanding footprint in key port locations.

10.Growth Roadmap & Future Strategy

Looking forward, Brace Port Logistics Ltd. envisions scaling its business by becoming a fully
integrated multimodal logistics service provider. The Company aims to strengthen its
capabilities across sea freight, air cargo, and inland transport, positioning itself as a one-stop
solution provider for clients seeking reliable and cost-effective logistics services.

The management has outlined the following strategic priorities for the coming years:

1. Geographical Expansion: Establishing operational hubs in key port cities and Tier-Il locations
to widen the service footprint.

2. PSU & Corporate Partnerships: Deepening engagements with PSUs and large corporates to
secure long-term logistics contracts.

3. Digital Transformation: Investing in advanced logistics technologies including real-time
tracking systems, Al-based route optimization, and digital documentation workflows.

4. Infrastructure Strengthening: Expanding warehousing capacity near port clusters and
modernizing the fleet with technology-enabled vehicles.

B. Sustainability Initiatives: Implementing green logistics practices aimed at reducing carbon
footprint and promoting energy-efficient operations.

While external challenges such as global trade uncertainties and supply chain disruptions may
persist, the Company is confident that its proactive strategies, customer-centric approach, and
robust operational frammework will enable it to sustain growth and create long-term value for its
stakeholders.

Brace Port Logistics Ltd. is poised to navigate the evolving logistics landscape with resilience
and agility, aiming to emerge as a leading player in the Indian multimodal logistics sector.

11. Disclosure of accounting treatment.

The Company has followed prescribed Accounting Standard in preparation of its financial
statements in order to give true and fair view of the underlying business transaction.
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12. Details of significant changes in key financial ratios and in return on net-worth along
with detailed explanations therefore

sd/- sd/-
Ratio 31** March, 2025 | 31** March, 2024 | % change Reasons SACHIN ARORA YASH PAL SHARMA
Current ratio 9.29 1.86 400.83% Disproportionate Managing Director Director
‘ncrease in fixed DIN: 08952681 DIN: 00520359
deposit with
banks.
Debt-equity ratio 0.01 0.04 (72.83%) Disproportionate Place: New Delhi
increase in share Date: 30.08.2025
capital due to
public issue
made by
company.
Debt Service | 10.50 18.95 (44.61%) Disproportionate
Coverage ratio increase in
earning before
interest and
taxes.
Return on equity | 25.69 4424 (41.93%) Disproportionate
ratio increase in share
capital due to
public Issue
made by
company.
Trade receivable | 5.92 5.26 12.57% NA
turnover ratio
Trade payable | 9.14 6.48 40.88% Disproportionate
turnover ratio INncrease N
purchases.
Net capital turnover | 2.42 4.70 (48.61%) Disproportionate
ratio increase in Sales
Net Profit ratio 8.02 9.14 (12.26%) NA
Return on capital | 23.85 4797 (50.28%) Disproportionate
employed increase N
earning before
interest and
taxes
Return on | 4.23 5.78 (26.69%) Disproportionate
Investment increase in fixed
deposit with
banks.

By order of the Board of Directors
BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED
(Formerly known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED (formerly
known as BRACE PORT LOGISTICS PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated financial statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated financial statements of Brace Port
Logistics Limited (“the Holding Company"”) and its subsidiaries (together referred as
“Group”) which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income,
the Consolidated Cash Flow and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “Consolidated financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate
financial statements and on the other financial information of the subsidiaries, the
aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of their
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, their consolidated profit
including other comprehensive income, their consolidated cash flows and the
consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropria provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters (‘(KAM’') are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These

BracePort

matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our
report.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the
other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Management Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report including Annexures to Board's
Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance Report and
Shareholder's Information but does not include the Consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Holding Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated cash flows of the Group
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as a
foresaid.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the
Group to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of their respective
companies.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatements resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

b) Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section143(3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls system in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

c) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

d) Conclude onthe appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
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on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the Consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

f) Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
entities or the business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial statements of such
entities or business activities included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of
which we are the independent auditors. For the entities or business activities
included in the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by
the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial
statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i)
planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii)
to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and
such other entities included in the Consolidated financial statements of which we are
the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
In internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
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in our auditor's report unless law or regulations precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communications.

OTHER MATTERS

We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of
1 subsidiary, whose financial statements include total assets of Nil as at March 31, 2025,
and total revenues of Nil, total net (loss) after tax of INR 7.53 lacs, total comprehensive
(loss) of INR 7.53 lacs and net cash inflows/(outflows) of Nil for the year ended on that
date. These financial statements and other financial information have been audited by
other auditors, which financial statements, other financial informmation and auditor’s
reports have been furnished to us by the management.

The above subsidiary is located outside India whose financial statements and other
financial information have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in its respective country and which have been audited by other
auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective
country. The Holding Company's management has converted the financial statements
of such subsidiary located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted
in its respective country to accounting principles generally accepted in India. We have
audited these conversion adjustments made by the Holding Company’'s management.
Our opinion in so far as it relates to the balances and affairs of such subsidiary located
outside India is based on the report of other auditors and the conversion adjustments
prepared by the management of the Holding Company and audited by us.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements and our report on Other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is hot modified in respect of the above
matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other
auditor.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”), issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, based on our audit of the
Holding Company, company incorporated in India, we give in the “Annexure A" a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) of the Order.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We / other auditors whose reports we have relied upon have sought and obtained all
the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of

Diafivenng with Pazssion

the aforesaid Consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and reports of the other auditors, except for the
matters stated in the paragraph (j) (vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

e) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under
Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Holding Company as on March 31, 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company, none of the directors of the Group's companies, is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries,
incorporated in India, and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate report in "Annexure B".

g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2025 has
been paid / provided by the Holding Company in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

(i) The Group has disclosed the impact of pending litigations which impact the
consolidated financial position in its Consoclidated financial statements — Refer note 29

to the consolidated financial statements;

(i) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable;

(ili) The Group is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund - Refer note 36 to the consolidated financial statements:

(iv) a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company, whose financial

statements have been audited under the Act, has represented to us that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
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invested (either from share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the company to or in any other persons or entities, including entities
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) The respective Managements of the Holding Company, whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act, has represented to us that, to the
best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the notes to the
accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any persons or
entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries and

c) Based on such audit procedures that the we have considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances on the Holding Company, which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited
under the Act, nothing has come to their notice that has caused them to believe
that the representations made to us under sub-clause (a) and (b) above, contain
any material mis-statements.

(v) The interim dividend, declared and paid by the Holding Company during the year is
in accordance with section 123, as applicable.

(vi) Based on our examination which included test checks for the Holding Company,
company incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, have used accounting software systems for maintaining its books of account
for the financial year ended March 31, 2025, which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant
transactions

Also, in respect of software used in maintaining payroll records, as described in note 42
to the Standalone Financial Statements, in absence of service organisation controls
report in respect of audit trail, we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature
of the underlying database was enabled and operated throughout the year.

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with in respect of accounting software except that in
absence of service organisation controls report, we are unable to comment on the
same in respect of the software used to maintain payroll records.

Additionally, the audit trail to the extent it was enabled has been preserved by the
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Holding Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention except that
in absence of service organisation controls report, we are unable to comment on the
same in respect of the software used to maintain payroll records.

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm's Registration Number: 007895N

sd/-
per Mohit Gupta

Partner
Membership Number: 528337
UDIN:25528337BMLNAG5204

New Delhi
May 28, 2025

ANNEXURE ‘A’ REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH UNDER THE HEADING
“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS”
OF OUR REPORT OF EVEN DATE

RE: BRACE PORT LOGISTICS LIMITED (‘THE COMPANY’)

(XXI) Qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the Companies
(Auditors Report) Order (CARQO) reports of the companies included in the consolidated

financial statements are:

S. No. Name CIN Holding Clause number
company/Sub of the CARO
sidiary report which is

qualified or is
adverse
1 Brace Port U63030DL2020P Holding (ii) (b)
Logistics LC372878 Company

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm’s Registration Number: 007895N
sd/-

per Mohit Gupta

Partner

Membership Number: 528337

UDIN: 25528337BMLNAG5204

New Delhi

May 28, 2025
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE
ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BRACE PORT
LOGISTICS LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Brace Port
Logistics Limited (hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company”) as of and for the
year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the
Group”), which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAIl").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective
company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the

timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company'’s internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards
on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAIl. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
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adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements Iincluded obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained
by the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH REFERENCE
TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statements includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the Group, which are companies incorporated in India, have,
maintained in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference
to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration Number: 007895N

sd/-

per Mohit upta

Partner

Membership Number: 528337
UDIN: 25528337BMLNAG5204

New Delhi
May 28, 2025

BracelPort

it ] l\.'.l ' -E'l I l"a'll. I I |

Dradivering with Passion
Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)
CIN: U63030DL2020PLC372878
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated
Particulars Motes As at As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
Assets
Mon-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 3 14695 122.67 1e.61

intanglble assets under development e 175.70 57.93

Right-of-use assets 5 &6.57 -

Financial assets

{i] Sther financlal assets & B0.84 7554 155.60

Deferred tax assets inet) 7 059 -

Other non-current assets 8 139 1.84 -
Total non-current assets £52.04 267.98 272.2
Current assets

Financial assets

{1} Trade receivables 9 1,161.55 172959 362.05
{li) Cash and cash equivalents 10 41421 187.87 41830
{iii) Bank balances other than (i) abowe mn 1,392.28 272.26

{iv) Loans i 4 0 47

{v) Other financial assets & 105.86 8 .33 O a0

Other current assets 8 B86.88 337N 109.52
Total current assets 3,961.25 2,536.76 8920.77
Total current assets 4,4613.29 2,804.74 1,162.98
EQUITY AND LLIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital [ ] 1,130.02 B825.00 75.00

Other equity T4 281699 562.00 810.08
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 3,947.M 1,587.00 885.08

Mon Controlling Interast
Tm;l r_rurum m: 3.“?-“ 1;“?-“ HHE..DH-
Llabilities
Hon-current labilities

Financial liabilities

{i] Borrowings 5 2593 37.94 4897
[iiy other financial llabilities o 2.81

Frovisions 17 13.20 8.76 3.99

Deferred tax liabilities (net) 7 103 157
Total non-current liabllitles 39.13 50.64 54.53
Current liabilities

Financial llabilities

(i} Borrowings 15 12.00 n.03 1003
(ii) Trade payables 18
(a)total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 4275 8992 -
(b) total cutstanding dues of craditors other than micro and small 27068 1,195.48 13210
{iii) Other financial llabilitles 16 9 66 -

Other current llabilities 19 4531 41.53 .99

Provisions 17 032 .03 0.0

Current tax liabllithes {net) 20 46,52 29.1 6914
Total current llabliities &27.05 1,367.10 223.57
Total liabilities 466.18 1,417.74 277.90
Total equity and llabllities 4,413.29 2,804.74 1,162.98
sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/f-
per Mohit Gupta Sachin Arora Yashpal Sharma Himanshu Chhabra
Partner Managing Director Director Director
Membership No. 528337 DIN - 08952681 DIN - 00520359 DIN - 0290187936

LI 2552833 TEMLMNAGS204
Place: Mew Delhi
Date: May 28, 2025

Place:New Delhi
Date: May 28, 2025

sd/-

Radhakrishnan pattiyll Nalr
Chief Fimancial Officer
PAN: ADNPNBSOZK

Paca:New Dealhi
Date: May 28, 2025

Place:Mew Delhi
Date: May 28, 2025

sd/-
Megha Verma

Company Secretary

Membership Number- AGZE50

Place:Mew Dealhi
Date: May 28, 2025

Place:Meyw Delhi
Date: May 28, 2025
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Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited) Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)
CIN: Ue3030DL2020PLC372878 CIN: Ue3030DL2020PLC372878
Consolidated Statement of proft and loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated
Particulars Notes As at As at Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025
I Income A, Cash flow from Operating activities
Revenue from operations 21 B.558.20 550043 Profit before tax 91839 67398
Other income rl 9365 2416 Adjustrments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Total income (1) 8,651.85 5.524.59 Depreciation and amortisation expense 31.93 15.40
Cost of services recelved 23 7,302.90 4,595.83 Interest income (62.45) {2014}
Emploves beneflts expense 24 18287 120.03 Finance cost 2073 566
Finance costs 25 26,56 9.65 Liabiiities written back [L53) [0.02)
Depreciation and amortization expensa 26 31.93 15.40 Allowance for expected credit loss B.50 -
Other expenses 27 18920 103.69 Working capital adjustments:
Total expenses (II) 7,733.46 4,844.61 (Increase)/ Decrease in trade recelvables 588.08 (1,364.20)
m Profit before share of net profits from Investments accounted :_:ncraaseg Ez:rease !n :’:t;:r Hnar:;lal i 12655 (8.43)
using - 918.39 679.98 ncreasea rease in rassa (544.72) (230.03)
for equity mathod and tax(l - 1) Increase/ |[Decrease) in provisions 548 394
IV  Share of net profit of associates [net of tax) 2 5 Increase/ (Decrease] in trade payable (969.43) 115332
Increase/ [Decreasa) in other financkal Hability &85 2.81
YV Profit before tax (II+WV) 9718.39 679.98 Increase/ (Decreass) In other liability 378 29.54
Cash generated from operations 124.52) 262.83
VI Tax Expence: Income tax paid (ret) (234.59) 217.68
Current tax 28 FE1TT 177.66 Met cash inflow from Operating activities {359.1) 46515
Deferred tax 29 196 024
Total tax expense (Vi) 2393.81 177.42 B. Cash flow from Investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment [4-4.50) {21.46)
VI Profit for the year [V - V1) 678.58 502.56 Purchase of Intangible assets o7.77) {6793}
Purchase of right of use sssets |58.28)
VIO Other comprehensive income / (loss) Loan to employess [ 0.47) Z
(i) items that will not be reclassified to profit o loss Bank withdrawal / [deposit) not consldered as cash and cash equivalents [net) {1,108.63) (120.00)
- Rermeasurement gain / {loss) of the defined benefit plan 0,95 0.85 Interest recaived &5.76 17.94
- Incormne tax relating to thase jterns 0.24 0.21 Met cash outflow from Investing activities 1,273.89 (261.45)
{ii} iterns that will be reclassified to profit or loss
- Exchange differences in translating the financial inforrmation of foreign operations 0.07 = C. Cash flow from Financing activities
Total other comprehensive income [ (loss} for the year (i) 0.78 0.64 Proceads from issue of shares 254096 -
Interest pakd (10.50 (4.66)
IX Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (VEHVII) 579.36 501.92 Proceeds from borrowlngs - -
Repayment of borrowings (11.03) {1013}
Profit for the year attributable to: Share issue expenses (372.33) i
- Equity holders of the parent 678.58 502.56 Dividends paid (187.88) -
- Non-controlling interests X 2 Net cash inflow/{outflow] from Financing activities 1,859.22 (14.73)
Other comprehensive income [ (loss) for the year attributable to: Net inci 3‘15’-"' I_de::n:asei in mhr:"'d ':"f"ﬁh "-‘q‘-:ﬂm:.le""“ (A+B+C) 1:::? [231.1339:!
- Equity holders f the i — — Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 187, %1830
- Non-controlling interests E _ Exchange difference on translation of foreign currency cash and cash equivalents 01z 0.66
Total prehensive incame for the year attributable to: Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 414,21 187.87
- Equity holders of the parent B79.36 50192 Components of cash and cash equivalents
- Non-controlling interests - - Balances with banks (refer note 10)
= Jneurrent account I99.08 180.41
Earnings per equity share of face value of INR 10 each attributable to equity holders (EPS) - Dividend Account 750 .
Basic EPS {]l‘l |H|:ﬂ 674 6.09 - in overdraft account 1.09 1.09
Diluted EPS (in INR) 6.74 6.09
Cash In hand including imprest (refer note 10} 6.54 6.37
&14.21 187.87
ad -
o - : per Mohit Gupta
Partner
sd/- sd/- sd/- sd/- Equity shares of INR 10 aach |ssuad, subscribed and fully paid FMembsership Mo, 52E33T7
per Mohit Gupta Sachin Arora Yashpal Sharma Himanshu Chhabra :m ;’;.,m:i. capital during the year ;;ﬁ:: ::.,E ;2::: ﬁﬁﬂ” e
Partner Managing Director Director Director -;-'l "'-I':l' 31, ﬂ o 7,50,000 825,00 Crate: May 28, 2025
tMembership Mo, 528337 DIN - 0895268 DIN - 00520359 DM - 029018796 P e e T
UDIN: 255283T7BMLNAGE204
Place: New Delhi Place:New Delhi Place:Mew Delhi Place:New Delhi b. Other squity ﬂhl ::"thﬂ "
i F = i nArora 5 harma
Date: May 28, 2025 Date: May 28, 2025 Date: May 28, 2025 Date: May 28, 2025 Yaor ended March 31, 2025 ariagiing Directst Diiractar
ST = Dthor -‘i-::.luu St CHM - OES526E1 CHK - Q0520355
Balanos as I i : =
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Notes forming part of the consolidated consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.01

2.02

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly known as Brace Port Logistics Private
Limited) ("hereinafter referred to the holding Company" or "the parent
company”) was incorporated on November 07, 2020. It is a subsidiary company
of Skyways Air Services Private Limited. The registered office of the Company is
located at A-390 B, 2Nd Floor, A-Block, Road No 2, Mahipalpur Extn., Mahipalpur,
New Delhi -110037, India, which has been shifted during the year from its earlier
registered office at A-182, Mahipalpur Extension, 5, Road No 4, Mahipalpur, South
Delhi, New Delhi-110037.

The Holding Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as “Group”) are
principally engaged in the providing integrated logistics solutions other logistics
services and logistics opeartions.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 are
approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held on May 28, 2025.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these Indian Accounting standards (Ind-AS) consolidated
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to
time) and presentation and disclosure requirements of Division |l of Schedule Il
to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule lll) as amended and
other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting principles generally
accepted in India.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in INR and all values are
rounded to the nearest lacs, except when otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND PREPARATION OF SEPARATE
CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair values at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for services.
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2.04

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 116 'Leases' and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value or value in use in Ind AS 36
''mpairment of Assets'.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the
fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis using historical cost convention and on an accrual method of accounting.

CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT CLASSIFICATION

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/

non-current classification. An asset is treated as current when it is:

> EXxpected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed Iin normal
operating cycle

> Held primarily for the purpose of trading

> Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

> (Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

> A liability is current when:
> |t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
> [tis held primarily for the purpose of trading
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2.06

> |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
> There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting period

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial
assets/liabilities respectively. All other assets/ liabilities are classified as
non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has identified
twelve months as its operating cycle.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has amended the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. These amendments are as follows:

(i) Lease liability in sale and leaseback transaction- Amendments to Ind AS 116:

The amendment to Ind AS 116 introduces new guidance for seller-lessees in sale
and leaseback transactions. It specifies that after the commencement date,
seller-lessees must apply certain paragraphs to the right-of-use asset and lease
liability, ensuring no gain or loss is recognized for the right of use retained.
Additionally, the amendment includes new paragraphs in Appendix C, effective
from April 1, 2024, requiring retrospective application to relevant transactions.
This aims to standardize the accounting treatment and enhance clarity in
financial reporting for these transactions.

(ii) Introduction of new Ind AS 117, Insurance contracts:

The amendment introduced new Ind AS 117, which provides comprehensive
guidance on the accounting for insurance contracts. This new standard is to
apply for annual reporting periods starting on or after April 1, 2024. Ind AS 17
aims to enhance transparency and comparability in consolidated financial
statements by standardising the recognition, measurement, presentation, and
disclosure of insurance contracts.

The amendments had no significant impact on the Group's consolodated
financial statements.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements comprise the standalone financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries as at March 31, 2025.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
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through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee
if and only if the Group has:

> Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee)

> Exposure, or rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee,
and

> The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control.
To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the
voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights

The size of the group's holding of voting rights relative to the size and
dispersion of the holdings of the other voting rights holders

v V VvV V¥V

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of
the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated financial
statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting
policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If a
member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the
consolidated summary statements for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that Group member's
financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to
ensure conformity with the Group's accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are
drawn up to same reporting date as that of the parent company, i.e., year ended
March 31, 2025.

CONSOLIDATION PROCEDURE
(A) Subsidiaries:

(@) > Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
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(b)

(c)

68

> cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose,

income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the
assets and liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements
at the acquisition date.

Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in
each subsidiary and the parent's portion of equity of each subsidiary.
Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related
goodwill.

Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between entities of the
group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are
recognised in assets, such as inventory and Property, plant and
equipment, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses may indicate an
impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial
statements. Ind AS - 12 "Income Taxes" applies to temporary differences
that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from
Intragroup transactions

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI)
are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are
made to the summary statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. All
intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

When the proportion of the equity held by non-controlling interests
changes, the Group adjust the carrying amounts of thecontrolling and
non-controlling interests to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiary. The Group recognisesdirectly in equity any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted and the fair value ofthe consideration paid or received, and
attribute it to the owners of the parent.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. If the Group loses
control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary at their carring amount at the date when control is
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transferred

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests
Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity
Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCl to
profit or loss or retained earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities

v vV V VWV WV VvV OV

(B) Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint
control of the arrangement, have rights to the net assets of the joint venture.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require
unanimous consent of the parties sharing control. The considerations made in
determining whether significant influence or joint control are similar to those
necessary to determine control over the subsidiaries

The Group's investments in its associate are accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint
venture is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is
adjusted to recognise changes in the Group's share of net assets of the associate
or joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or
joint venture is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is not
tested for impairment individually.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group's share of the results of
operations of the associate or joint venture. Any change in OCl of those investees
Is presented as part of the Group's OCI. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of
changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the
extent of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If Group's share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its
interest in the associate or joint venture (which includes any long term interest
that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate or
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joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or
joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the
Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the
profits equals the share of losses not recognised.

The aggregate of the Group's share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint
venture is shown on the face of the statement of profit and loss.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Group. When necessary, adjustments are made to
bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is
necessary to recognise an impairment loss on its investment in its associate or
joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is
objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is
impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of
Impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of
profit of an associate and a joint venture' in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint
venture, the Group measures and recognises any retained investment at its fair
value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment less cost to sell is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group discontinue the use of equity method from the date the investment
Is classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 - Noncurrent Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations and measures the interest in
associate and joint venture held for sale at the lower of its carrying amount and
fair value less cost to sell.

BUSINESS COMBINATION AND GOODWILL

Business combinations other than those under common control transactions
are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured at
acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the noncontrolling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. In respect to the business
combination for acquisition of subsidiary, the Group has opted to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree at the proportionate share of the
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acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related costs are expensed in the
year in which the cost are incurred and the services are received, with the
exception of the costs of issuing debt or equity securities that are recognised in
accordance with Ind AS 32 “Financial Instruments: Presentation” and Ind AS 109
“Financial Instruments”.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose,
the liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present
obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values irrespective of
the fact that outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable.
However, the following assets and liabilities acquired in a business combination
are measured at the basis indicated as mentioned hereinafter

(a) Deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabilities related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in
accordance with Ind AS 12 "Income Tax" and Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits"
respectively.

(b) Potential tax effects of temporary differences and carry forwards of an
acquiree that exist at the acquisition date or arise as a result of the
acquisition are accounted in accordance with Ind AS 12.

(c) Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance
with Ind AS 105 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale" and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that standard.

(d) Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the
remaining contractual term of the related contract. Such valuation does not
consider potential renewal of the reacquired right.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in accordance
with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent conditions
as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives
In host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity
interest is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss or OCI, as appropriate.

FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION CURRENCY

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR),
which is the functional currency of the Group.
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2.10 REVENUE RECOGNITION

2.1

212

Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated cutomer returns, rebates, trade
discounts and other similar allowances.

The new revenue standard supersedes current revenue recognition
requirements under Ind AS. This new standard requires revenue to be
recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in
amounts that reflect the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Sale of services

Incomes from multimodal transport services rendered are recognised on the
completion of the services as per the terms of contract. Revenue towards
satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of
transaction price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performance
obligation. The transaction price of services rendered is net of variable
consideration on account of various discounts offered by the Group as part of the
contract.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis with reference to
effective interest rate method.

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement
of Cash Flows”, whereby profit/loss before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from
operating, investing and financing activities of the Group are segregated based
on the available information.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
(FOR PURPOSES OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash
equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months
or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value.
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2.13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price,
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, and any directly
attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location for its
intended use. It also includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located, wherever
applicable. ltems such as spares are capitalized when they meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components)
of property, plant and equipment. Likewise, on initial recognition, expenditure to
be incurred towards major inspections and overhauls are identified as a separate
component and depreciated over the expected period till the next overhaul
expenditure.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and equipment is
added to its book value only if it increases the future economic benefits from the
existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance/life. All
other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day
repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to
the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are
incurred.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized net within other
income/other expenses in statement of profit and loss.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment has been provided on the
straight-line method (SLM) to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, as
per useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act. Management's assessment of
independent technical evaluation/advice takes into account, inter alia, the
nature of the assets, the estimated usage of the assets, the operating conditions
of the assets, past history of replacement and maintenance support. The
depreciation method, asset’'s residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period prospectively.
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Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on prorata basis on
straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets estimated by
management. The useful life is as follows:

Assets Useful life (in years)
Computers 3 - Bbyears

Office Equipments 5-15years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years

Electrical Equipments 10 years

Vehicles 08 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is dereocgnised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use
of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in statement
of profit aDnedp rleocsisa.tion methods, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each financial year and changes in estimates, if any, are accounted
for prospectively.

IMPAIRMENT OF TANGIBLE AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of
all of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication based on internal/ external factors that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of
cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to
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be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of asset (or
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss
is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

When an impairment loss subseguently reverses, the carrying amount of the
assets (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment |loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs directly relating to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying capital project under construction are capitalised and added to
the project cost during construction until such time that the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use il.e. when they are capable of
commercial production. Where funds are borrowed specifically to finance a
project, the amount capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs incurred.
Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed specifically to finance
a project, the income generated from such current investments is deducted
from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to finance a
project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated
using a weighted average of rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of
the Group during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and
charged to profit and loss during the extended periods when the active
development on the qualifying assets is interrupted.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme,
gratuity fund and compensated absences.

Defined contribution plans

The Group's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance
scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as an
expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and when

services are rendered by the employees.

Defined benefit plans

The Group has a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan"). The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump sum payment to employees who have completed five years or
more of service at retirement, disability or termination of employment, being an
amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number
of years of employment with the Group.
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The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting
the estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to
the terms of the related obligation. The interest cost is calculated by applying
the discount rate to the balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is
included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity planis
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries using
the projected unit credit

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid
in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised during the
year when the employees render the service. These benefits include
compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after
the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under :

(@) incase of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the
services that increase their entitlement of future compensated absences;
and

(b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences
occur.

Long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months
after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related service are
recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as
at the balance sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the period in which they
occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to
statement of profit and loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past service cost.

2.16 LEASES

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified

i)

asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

GROUP AS A LESSEE

The Group's lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for land and building.
The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the
lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available foruse). Right-of-use assets
are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
directcosts incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the building (i.e. 30 and 60 years)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group at the end of the lease
term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are
also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section
'Impairment of non-financial assets'.

LEASE LIABILITIES

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities
measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease
term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a
purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group
exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers
the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
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2.18

interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of |lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a
change inthe lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such
lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

SHORT-TERM LEASES AND LEASES OF LOW-VALUE ASSETS

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term
leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to
be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax
(including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings

per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post
tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and
other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the
dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity
shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted
average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are
deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease
the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive
equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period,
unless they have been issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are
determined independently for each period presented. The number of equity
shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse
share splits and bonus shares, as appropriate.

TAXES ON INCOME

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It Is recognised in
statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates items recognised
directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.

Current income tax
The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit

differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the statement of profit and loss
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The current tax is
calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Group:

i) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and

il) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the Balance sheet method on temporary
differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the
carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits
will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable
right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprenhensive income or directly in equity respectively.



80

BracePort

Chdiveling with Passion

Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)
CIN: U63030DL2020PLC372878
Notes forming part of the consolidated consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.19

2.20

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the

Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an

insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Unwinding of the discount is recognized in statement of profit and loss as a
finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation
that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot
be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements.

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation
and other claims against the Group. There are certain obligations which
management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are
not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such
obligations are treated as Contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but
are not reflected as liabilities in the consolidated financial statements. Although
there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings
in which the Group involved, it is not expected that such contingencies will have
a material effect on its financial pCoosnittiinogne onrt parsosfeittasbailirtey.not
recognised but disclosed in the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss are
recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the
financial assets.

CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost less impairment loss (except for debt investments
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

> The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows: and

> The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

AMORTISED COST AND EFFECTIVE INTEREST METHOD

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on Income is recognised on an
effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the

Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an

insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any
reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
Unwinding of the discount is recognized in statement of profit and loss as a
finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more
uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation
that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely
rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognised because it cannot
be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements.

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation
and other claims against the Group. There are certain obligations which
management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are
not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such
obligations are treated as Contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but
are not reflected as liabilities in the consolidated financial statements. Although
there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings
in which the Group involved, it is not expected that such contingencies will have
a material effect on its financial pCoosnittiinogne onrt parsosfeittasbailirtey.not
recognised but disclosed in the consolidated financial statements when an
inflow of economic benefits is probable.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
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Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through statement of profit and loss are
recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at
either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the classification of the
financial assets.

CLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at amortised cost less impairment loss (except for debt investments
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

> The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows: and

> The contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

AMORTISED COST AND EFFECTIVE INTEREST METHOD

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
debt instrument and of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on Income is recognised on an
effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL. Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (FVTPL)

A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Group has not designated
any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or
loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss is included in the ‘other gains
and losses' line item.

Changes in the carrying amount of FVTOC| monetary financial assets relating to
changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes
in the carrying amount of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI monetary financial assets relating to
changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes
in the carrying amount of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be
impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI
relating to changes in foreign currency rates are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount
egual to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk
on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to
revenue from contracts with customers, the Group measures the loss allowance
at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group uses the change in the risk of a
default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument instead of the
change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is
indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the
financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the
asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss
if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the
Group retains an option to repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Group
allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset between the part it
continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the
transfer. The difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that
Is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part
no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or |loss allocated to it that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if
such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is allocated between the part that
continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the
basis of the relative fair values of those parts.
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

CLASSIFICATION AS DEBT OR EQUITY

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Group are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual

arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by a Group entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted
directly in equity. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

All financial liablilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method or at FVTPL. However, financial liabilities that arise
when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when
the continuing involvement approach applies, financial guarantee contracts
iIssued by the Group, and commitments issued by the Group to provide a loan at
below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the specific
accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either
held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either
held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

> |t has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near
term; or

> Oninitial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

> |t is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

> Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

> The financial liability forms part of a Group of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a
fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information about the Group is
provided internally on that basis; or

> |t forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and
Ind AS 109 permits the entire combined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognised in statement of profit and loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in statement of profit and loss incorporates any interest
paid on the financial liability and is included in the ‘other gains and losses' line
item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at
FVTPL, the amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in statement of profit and loss. The remaining amount of
change in the fair value of liability is recognised in statement of profit and loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk that are
recognised in other comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to
statement of profit and loss.

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued
by the Group that are designated by the Group as at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES SUBSEQUENTLY
MEASURED AT AMORTISED COST

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at
FVTPL are measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently
measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest
method. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is
included in the 'finance costs' line item.
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS AND LOSSES

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are
measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting period, the foreign
exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the
instruments and are recognised in the ‘other gains and losses' line item in the
statement of profit and loss.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of
the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL, the
foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group's
obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INTRUMENTS

The Group uses derivative forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks.
Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the
fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

OPERATING CYCLE

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Group

has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current
non-current classification of assets and liabilities.
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2.22 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with
Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of these consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual results may
differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised and future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and
critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements are
included in the following accounting Critical es tpimoliactieess aanndd/o jru
ndogteems:ents in applying accounting policies

The folowing are the critical judgements, apart from those estimations that the

management has made in the process of applying the Group Accounting
Policies and that have most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES

The significant capital commitments in relation to various capital projects are
not recognized in the balance sheet. In the normal course of business,
contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the
Group. Guarantees are also provided in the normal course of business. There are
certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available
facts and circumstances, are not probable of payment or are very difficult to
quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and
disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final
outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Group involved, it is not expected
that such contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or
profitability.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
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recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted price in active markets
are available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value
of financial.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

In assessing the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for
impairment, factors leading to significant reduction in profits such as changes in
commodity prices, the Group's business plans and changes in regulatory
environment are taken into consideration. The carrying value of the assets of a
cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the recoverable amount of those
assets, that is, the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use.
Recoverable value is based on the management estimates of commmodity prices,
market demand and supply, economic and regulatory climates, long-term plan,
discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to
changes in the abovementioned factors could impact the carrying value of the
assets.

USEFUL LIFE OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as disclosed above are
depreciated over their useful economic lives. Management reviews the useful
economic lives at least once a year and any changes could affect the
depreciation rates prospectively and hence the asset carrying values. The Group
also reviews its property, plant and equipment, for possible impairment if there
are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that carrying values of the
assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and equipment
for impairment, factors leading to significant reduction in profits such as
changes in commodity prices, the Group's business plans and changes in
regulatory environment are taken into consideration.

The carrying value of the assets of a cash generating unit (CGU) is compared
with the recoverable amount of those assets, that is, the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. Recoverable value is based on the
management estimates of commodity prices, market demand and supply,
economic and regulatory climates, long-term plan, discount rates and other
factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above

mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of the assets.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation,
taxation and other claims against the Group. A tax provision is recognised when
the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle that obligation.

Where it is management’'s assessment that the outcome cannot be reliably
quantified or is uncertain the claims are disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the likelihood of an adverse outcome is remote. Such liabilities are disclosed in
the notes but are not provided for in the consolidated financial statements.

When considering the classification of a legal or tax cases as probable, possible
or remote there is judgement involved. This pertains to the application of the
legislation, which in certain cases is based upon management's interpretation of
country specific tax.

2.23 KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAININTY

(a) FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS AND VALUATION PROCESSES

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for
financial reporting purposes. The Board of directors of the Group has
designated the Chief Financial Officer of the Company determines the

appropriate valuation technigues and inputs for fair value measurements.

(b) TAXES

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax
regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future
taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the
long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements,
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made,
or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future
adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The firm
establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of
such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous
tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable
entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation
may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions
prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.
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(c)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. the firm uses judgment in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture & Vehicles Electrical Office Computers Total
calculation, based on firm's past history, existing market conditions as well Fixture Equipments equipments
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period. T ——
Balance as at April 01, 2023 4.15 78.64 : 17.55 16.27 16.61
(d) IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS Additions 0.81 : ; 9.56 .09 2146
. : ; , . Disposals/adjustments . - . . . -
The firm assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication A ——— 6 T ) T anag NGEEeT
that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual Additions . 27.20 7.7 4.80 533 4450
; ; ; ; ; ; \ Disposals/adjustrnents . e ’ . ; "
impairment testing for an asset is required, the firm estimates the asset's T o SRR — o T
recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an
, , . . . . .
asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. It is Aconisalined Georstiabion:
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate Balance as at April 01, 2023 i i _ i _ .
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or Depreciation charge (refer note 26) 0.50 9.46 : 214 3.30 15.40
. , Disposals/adjustments - - - - - -
I
firm's of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its Balance as at March 31; 2024 e T ) T R VS
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down Depreciation charge (refer note 26) 0.57 10.85 0.18 3.20 5.42 20.22
to its recoverable amount DRGNS : ' : ' : :
l ' Balance as at March 31, 2025 1.07 20.31 0.18 5.34 8.72 35.62
In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current Net carrying value:
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to Balance as at April 01, 2023 4.15 78,64 - 12.55 1627  116.61
o 5 : Balance as at March 31, 2024 4.46 69.18 - 24.97 24.06 122.67
the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market Balance as at March 31, 2025 385 85 5% €.99 26.57 2397  146.95

transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are
corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.

2.24 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT EFFECTIVE

There are no standards that are issued but not yet effective on March 31, 2025.

Note :

1. Disclosure of contractual commmitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment has been provided in note 29,
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4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT 5 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

(a) This note provide information for leases where the Company is a lessee29.

Intangible assets
under development

Gross carrying value :

Balance as at April 01, 2023 - Leasehold Containers Total

Additions 67.93

Disposals -

Balance as at March 31, 2024 67.93

Additions 107.77 Balance as at April 01, 2023 2 -

Disposals - Additions - -

Balance as at March 31, 2025 175.70 Disposals/adjustments 2 g
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - -

Accumulated depreciation : Additions 58,28 58.28

Balance as at April 01, 2023 - Disposals/adjustments : -

Amortisation expense (refer note 26) - Balance as at March 31, 2025 58.28 58.28

Disposals -

Balance as at March 31, 2024 -
Amortisation expense (refer note 26) -
Disposals - Balance as at April 01, 2023 - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 = Depreciation charge (refer note 26) - -
Disposals/adjustrnents - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 - -

Accumulated depreciation:

Net carrying value:

Depreciation charge (refer note 26) 1.71 1.7
::3"‘:'5 as a: :1-:“:13:1223314 z Disposals/adjustments - -
ance as a rc ;i 67.9%
Balance as at March 31, 2025 Balance as at March 31, 2025 1.7 1.7
175.70
Net carrying value:

4.1 INTANGIBLE ASSET UNDER DEVELOPMENT AGEING e e ok = :

Balance as at March 31, 2025

4£6.57 46.57
As at March 31, 2025 8
Amount in Intangible asset under development for a period of Total
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years Note :
i. Projects in progress 107.77 67.93 - - 175.70 1. Disclosure of contractual commmitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment has been provided in note 29.
Total 107.77 67.93 - - 175.70
As at March 31, 2025
Amount in Intangible asset under development for a period of Total
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
i. Projects in progress 67.93 - - - 67.93
Total 67.93 - - - 67.93
As at March 31, 2025
Amount in Intangible asset under development for a period of Total
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
i. Projects in progress =~ S = B i
Total - - " - -
Note :

1. Disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment has been provided in note 29,
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For the year ended April 01, 2023 Opening Balance Recognised/ Recognised/ Closing
{reversed) in Profit {reversed) in other balance
6 OTHER FI NANCIAL ASSETS As at As at As at or loss comprehensive Income
(carried at amortised cost) April 01, 2023 April 01, 2023 April 01,2023
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Non Current Accelerated depreciation and (0.24) (2.25) = (2.49)
(unsecured and considered good) amortisation for tax purposes -
, (0.24) (2.25) - (2.49)
Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months (refer note (a) below) 8084 95 54 155.60
B0.84 75.54 155.60 Deferred tax assets in relation to
& : Provision for employee benefits 0.81 0.52 0.41 0.92
(unsecured and considered good) 0.81 0.52 0.41 0.92
Security deposits 3925 1.80 0.90 Deferred tax (liabilities)/ assets (net) 0.57 (1.73) (0.41) (1.57)
Unbilled revenue 66.61 7.53 -
105.86 9.33 0.90
Note : 8 OTHERASSETS As at As at As at
& it includes interest accrued of INR 584 lacs, INR 0.54 lacs and INR 0.03 lacs as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023 respectively.29. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
DE FE RRED TAX BA LANCE S As at As at As at Non Current
April 01, 2023 April 01, 2023 April 01,2023 (unsecured and considered good)
Prepaid expenses 1.39 1.84 -
Deferred tax liabilities (5.62) (4.45) (2.49) 139 I )
Deferred tax assets 6.21 3.32 0.92 Current _
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net) 0.59 (1.13) (1.57) (unsecured and considered good)
Prepaid expenses (refer note (a) below) 6 .17 22.49 -
o e — Advances to vendors (refer note (b) below) 69.41 11.85 3.91
ecognised/ cognised/ ng
FORO YL ANIAT MR L0 Opening Baancs (reversed) in Profit (reversed) in other balance Advances to employees - 1.73 3 .14
or loss comprehensive Income Balances with Government autharities 810.24 301.64 102.47
Other receivables 1.06 - -
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to B86.88 337.71 109.52
Accelerated depreciation and (4.45) (1.17) - (5.62)
amortisation for tax purposes = .
(%&,45) (1.17) - (5.62) Nots ;
(a) Prepaid expense includes INR Nil, INR 21.82 |lacs and INR Nil March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023 respectively
Deferred tax assets in relation to towards |PO expense which will be charged to Other equity in subsequent period on completion of IPO.
Provision for employee 2.2 1.38 (0.24) 335 (b) Advance to vendors include due to related parties INR 0.04 lacs, INR Nil and INR Nil as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024
Allowance for expected credit loss 5 214 . 214 and April 01, 2023 respectively.
Bonus payable - 0.72 - 0.72
Preliminary expenses 0.10 (0.10) = =
Others 1.0 (1.07) . -
3.32 3.13 (0.24) 6.21
Deferred tax (liabilities)/ assets (net) (1.13) 1.96 (0.24) 0.59
Recognised/ Recognised/ Closing
For the year ended March 31, 2025 Opening Balance (re in (ravarsed) inother Sy
or loss comprehensive Income
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Accelerated depreciation and (2.49) (1.96) } (4-45)
amortisation for tax purposes =
(2.49) (1.986) - (4.45)
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits 0.92 1.08 0.21 2.21
Preliminary expenses - 0.10 - 0.10
Others - 1.01 - 1.01
0.92 2.19 0.21 3.32
Deferred tax (liabilities)/ assets (net) (1.57) 0.23 0.21 (1.13)
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9 TRADE RECEIVABLES As at As at As at

April 01, 2023 April 01, 2023 April 01, 2023
Unsecured
Considered good 1022.06 740.03 362.05
Considered credit impaired 8.50 - -
Considered good - Related Parties (refer note 35) 132.49 989.56 -
1,170.05 1,729.59 362.05
Less: Allowance against expected credit loss (8.50) - -
1,161.55 1,729.59 362.05

9.1 TRADE RECEIVABLES AGEING SCHEDULE

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Current but

not due Lecs than 6 & months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
Months 1 year years

Undisputed Trade Recelvables - considered good 421,40 587.57 21.00 131.58 - - 1,J65.55

Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have s p ‘ -
significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade receivable = credit impalred - - - -

Disputed Trade recehables - considered good -

Disputed Trade recehables - which have - - - -

significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - - B.50 - - - 850
Total 427,40 EB7T.57 29.50 131.58 - - 1,170.05

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars Cutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Aot e Less than & 6 months = 1-2 years 2-3years Morathan 3
Months 1year years

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good - 1, 72524 &35 - - . 1,729.59
Undisputed Trade Recelvables — which have - - - -

significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired -

Disputed Trade receivables - conslidered good

Disputed Trade recelvables - which have -

significant Increase |n credit risk

Disputed Trade recehables - credit impaired - -

Total - 1,725,24 435 - - - 1,729.59

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars - e Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
urre
not due Lessthan & & months - 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3

Months 1 year years

Undisputed Trade Recelvables - considerad good - 362.05 - - - - 362.05
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have - -
significant Increase In credit risk

Undisputed Trade receivable = credit impaired -

Disputed Trade recelvables - considered good - - - -

Disputed Trade recehables - which have - - - -

significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade recehables - credit impairad = - - -
Total = 362.05 = . = - 362.05

a. Trade recelvables represents the amount of consideration in exchange of services transferred to the custormers that is unconditional.

b. The average credit period to customears ranges between 45 to 60 days. No interast is charged on trade recelvables upto the due date from the date of the Invoice.

. The Group has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade recelvables based on historical credit loss experience and ad|usted for
forward looking information,

d. Movement In allowance for expected credit loss: vear ended vear anded Yaar ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 1, 2023

Balance at the baginning of the year
Provision for expected credit losses recognisad during the year (refer note 27) B.50
Balance at the end of the year 8.50
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10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS As at As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Balances with banks 399,08 180.41 4177
- on current account 7.50 - -
- Dividend Account 1.09 1.09 599
- in overdraft account 6.54 6.37 0.54
Cash in hand (including imprest) 414.21 187.87 418.30

Note :
a. There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior period.

11 OTHER BANKBALANCES (CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Current
Fixed deposits with orlginal maturity of more than three months but
rermaining maturity of less than twelve months (refer notes below) 139228 272.26
1,392.28 272.26 .
Mote :

a. It includes interest accrued of INR 2765 lacs, INR 1626 lacs and IMR Mil as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023 respect iveby.

b. It includes fixed deposit lien marked with banks of INR 100.00 lacs and INR 100.00 lacs and INR Nil as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023 respectively.

. short-term deposits are made of varying periods between 3 to 12 months depending on the cash requirements of the Group and eam Interest at the respective short-term
deposits rates,

12 LOANS (CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Current
(unsécured and considered good)
Loan to employees (refer notes below) 047 E -
0.47 - -

MNote @

{a). The loans classified as current are repayable on demand and expectation of management to release them in next financial year.
{b). It includes Interest accrued of INR Nil lacs, INR Nl and INR Nil as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April D1, 2023 respactively.
[c). Break up of financlal assets carried at amortised cost:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Other financial assets (non-current) 80.84 75.54 155,60
Trade receivables (current) 1,161.55 1.729.59 262.05
Cash and cash equivalents (current) 4 14.21 187.87 418.30
Other bank balances (current) 1,392.28 272.26 -
Loans (current) 0.47 - -
OCther financial assets (current) 105.86 9,33 0.90
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13 SHARE CAPITAL As at As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Authorised
1,50,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each
(March 31, 2024 : 1,50,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each) 1.500.0 1.500.00 76.00

(April 01, 2023 : 7,60,000 equity shares of INR 10 each)

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

1,13,01,200 equity shares of INR 10 each
(March 31, 2024 : 82,50,000 equity shares of INR 10 eachi) 1130.12 8725.00 75 00
(April 01, 2023 : 7,50,000 equity shares of INR 10 each)

1,130.12 825.00 75.00

MNotes:
(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity
shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Holding Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend
proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
In the event of liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity
shares held by the shareholders.

(ii) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

Issued equity capital
As at Az at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Particulars Number Amount Humber Amount Mumber Amount
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 82,50,000 825.00 7,50,000 75.00 7.50,000 75.00
Add : issued durlng the year 30,51,200 30512 75,00,000 750.00
Equity shares outstanding at the end of 1,13,00,200 1,130.12 B2,50,000 B25.00 750,000 75.00

(iii) Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:

Issued equity capital
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Particulars HNumber % holding Humber % holding HNumber % holding
Equity shares
Skyways Air Services Limited 57,73,900 £1.09% 57,773,900 69.99% 5.70,000 76.00%
Sachin Arara 17,532,500 15 33% 17,532,500 21.00% 1.57.500 21.00%

(iv) Shares held by each promoter [as per section 2(69) of the Companies Act, 2013]:

Issued equity capital
As at As at Change during % change during

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2025 the year the year

S5.No. Hame. Humber of % of total Humber of % of total

shares held shares shares held shares

1 Skyways Air Services Limited £7.73.900 51.09% 57.73,900 69.99% . <18.90%
2 Sachin Arora 1732500 15.23% 17,32,500 Z1.00% - -B.6T%H
3 Rishi Trehan 2.47500 2.19% 2,47 ,500 3.00% - -0.81%
& Yash pal Sharma 84,700 0.75% B4, 700 1LO3% - -0.28%
g Tarun Sharma B4, 700 0.75% B4, 700 1LO3% - -0.28%

79,253,300 T0.11% 79,253,300 06.04%

(v) Increase in authorised share capital

During the previous year ended March 31, 2024, the Holding Company has in aggregate increased its authorised Equity
Share Capital by INR 1,424.00 lacs consist of 1,42,40,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each. vide Shareholders' approval at
Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on April 24, 2023,

(vi} During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Holding Company has offered through the Initial Public Offer (IPO) 30,51,200
equity shares having face value of INR 10/- each at an issue price of INR 80 per equity share. On August 26, 2024, the equity

shares of the holding company were got listed on NSE Emerge.

(vii)During the previous year ended March 31, 2024, the Holding Company has alloted 75,00,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each

as fully paid bonus shares in proportion of 101 vide shareholder's approval at Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) held on
August 25, 2023,
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14

OTHER EQUITY

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

Securities premium (refer note 14.1) 1,763.51 - -
Retained earnings (refer note 14.2) 1,053.4] 562.00 810.88
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (refer note 14.3) 0.07 - -

2,816.99 562.00 810.88
Balance at the beginning of the year - = -
Add : Issued during the year 2,135.84 - -
Less: Share issue expenses [372.33) - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,763.51 - -

14.2

14.3

Nature and purpose of reserve:

Securities premium is used to record premium on issue of shares. The reserves can be utilised only for limited purposesin

accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

RETAINED EARNINGS

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 562.00 810.08 346.83
Profit for the year 678.58 502.56 612.05
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 0.7 (0.64) 1.20
Issue of bonus shares - (750.00) -
Interim Dividend paid on equity shares (187.88) - (150.00])
Balance at the end of the year 1,053.41 562.00 810.88

Nature and purpose of reserve:

Retained earnings are the profits/{loss) that the Group has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general reserve,
dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / {gain) on defined
benefit plans, net of taxes that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

The amount that can be distributed by the Group as dividends to its equity shareholders, is determined based on the

requirements of Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above are not distributable in entirety.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION RESERVE

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year - - -
Increase/(decrease) during the year 0.07 - -
Balance at the end of the year 0.07 - -
15 BORROWINGS As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Non-current
(Secured, at amortised cost)
Vehicle loan (refer note (a)) 37.94 48.97 59.10
Less: Current maturities of Vehicle Loan (12.01) (11.03) (10.13)
25.93 37.94 48.97
Current
(Secured, valued at amortised cost)
Current maturities of Vehicle loan 12.01 1N.03 10.13
12.01 1.03 10.13

Nature and purpose of reserve:

a. Secured by Hypothecation of respective Vehicles and are repayable in equated monthly instalments over the tenure of
loans of 60 months carries interest rate of 8.55%.

b. The holding company has been sanctioned a overdraft limit amounting to INR 90.00 lacs (Yes Bank), INR 100.00 lacs
(IDFC Bank) and INR 500.00 lacs (ICICI Bank), carrying interest rate of 0.75%(Margin) over and above FD rate against which
INR Nil, INR Nil and INR Nil is outstanding as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023 respectively. These facilities

are secured by Fixed deposit amounting to 110% of facility amount and Corporate Guarantee of its ultimate holding

99



BracePort

Chdiveling with Passion
[ b i ]

Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)

CIN: U63030DL2020PLC372878

MNotes forming part of the consolidated consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

company i.e., Skyways Air Services Limited and personal guarantee of Mr. Sudershan Lal Sharma, Mr. Yashpal Sharma and Mr.
Tarun Sharma.

c. The Group has not defaulted on repayment of loans and interest during the year.

d. Changes in liability arising from financing activities:

Particulars Mon Current Hon Current

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Cpening balances 48.97 E9.10
Interest expense 10.50 &.66
Cash Inflows - - - -
Cash Outflows (M.03) 10a3) - -
Interest paid {10.50) [4.66)
Closing balances 37.94 &8.97 =

e. Quaterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the respective company with banks or financial institutions are in
agreement with the books of accounts except to the following on account of variance of entries posted in routine book closure
process which is normally concluded post filing of statements with the banks. This does not have any impact on classification

of loan or any debt covenants:-

For the year ended March 31, 2025

Eor B Port | ; 1 . .I |
Quarter ended Hame of Bank Particulars Amount as per Amount as reported in Discrepancy*

books of the quarterly

accounts return/statemen

(A} (B) (A-B)

June 30, 2024 ICICI Bark Trade Recelvable 152787 L0732 &546.T5
September 30, 2024 ICIC| Bank Trade Recelvable 102693 1,089.07 (62.14)
December 31, 2024 ICICI Bank Trade RBeceivable 1,007.89 1,034.13 (26.24)
March 31, 2025 ICICI Bank Trade Racelvable 1,161.55 1,169.00 (7.45)
June 30, 2024 ICICI Bank Trade Payable 1140.58 37938 761.20
Septernber 30, 2024 ICIC) Bank Trade Payable 349.03 17828 170.75
Decermber 31, 2024 ICICI Bank Trade Payable 181.65 17820 3.45
March 31, 2025 ICICI Bank Trade Payable 313.43 21639 97.04

* variance is on account of entries posted in routine book closure process which is normally concluded post filing of
statements with the banks.

16 OTHERFINANCIAL LIABILITIES Axat As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
MNon-current
Advance from employees for issue of shares under benefit scheme - 2.8]
a 2.81 -

Current
Trada/ security deposits 9.66

9.66 = -
Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost:
Borrowings {non current) 2593 37.94 48.97
Borrowings (current) 12,01 11.03 1013
Trade payables (current) 313.43 1,285.40 1320
Cther financial liabilities [current) 966 - ’
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17 PROVISIONS Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Mon-current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 119 - -
Provision for gratuity (net) (refer note 32) 12.01 8.76 399
13.20 B.76 3.99
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 0.02 - "
Provision for gratuity (net) (refer note 32} 010 0.03 0.01
0.12 0.03 0.1
18 TRADE PAYABLES o A at ARt
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Current
i. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and
small enterprises (refer note 181 below) 4275 89.92 -
ii. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises Ly bl et
313.43 1,285.40 132.10

18.1 MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT

Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,
2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023 is given below. This information has
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Group.

(i) The principal amount and the interest due thereon
remaining unpaid to any supplier covered under MSMED Act:

- Principal amount 42,75 89.92 -
- Interest thereon c * -

(i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section
16, of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
during each accounting year

(iii) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
interest specified under this Act

[iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at
the end of each accounting year

(v) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable
even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest
dues above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the
purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under
section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the
basis of information collected by the management. This has been relied upon by the auditor,
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18.2 TRADEPAYABLE AGEING SCHEDULE

As at March 31, 2025
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Particulars outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Unbllled Dues Mot due
Less than 12 years 2-3 years More than 3
1¥year Years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises &52.75 42,75
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises = =
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprices - -
Total 5.85 2B88.15 19,43 5.85 5.85 IN3.43
As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Cutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Unbilled Dues Not due
Less than 1-2 years 2-% years More than 3
1year years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enberprises 8591 & B9.92
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 0.30 - 1194.58 1,195.48
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises =
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises ;
Total .90 85.91 1.198.59 1,285.40
As at March 31, 2025
Particulars outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Tatal
Unbilled Dues Mot due
Less than 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
1year Years
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprisas and small
enterprises =
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises 0.30 - 131.20 131.10
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - -
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprices - -
Total 0.90 - 151.20 13110
Mote :
a, Theaverage credit period on purchases is up to 90 days for theCroup. The Group however ensures that all payvables are pald within the pre agreed credit perod.
b. Trade Payables include due to relatad parties of INR 102.50 lacs, INR 118856 lacs and INR 3294 lacs as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and Apeil 01, 2023 respectivehy.
&, The amounts are unsecured and non-Interest bearing.
19 OTHERLIABILITIES As at As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Current
Contract liabilities 2.57 2.50 1.62
Statutory liabilities 2087 2418 213
Employee dues 18.84 14.85 824
Others 3.08 - -
£45.31 &1.53 11.99
20 INCOMETAXASSETS i g Asal
AND LIABILITIES March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Current tax liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net of advance tax) 4552 291 69.14
£6.52 29.1M 89.14

21 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS fear anted Yeatandec
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sale of services 8,558.20 5,500.43
8,558.20 5,500.43
(a) REVENUE FROMCONTRACTS WITHCUSTOMERS
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with customers:
Segment
; Year ended Year ended
of good
Type of goods/services March 31, 2025 _March 31, 2024
(i) Type of service
Integrated Logistics Solutions 8,558.20 5,500.43
Total revenue from contracts with customers 8,558.20 5,500.43
(if) Geographical information
Within India 3,862.91 2,790.95
Outside India 4,69529 2,709.48
Total revenue from contracts with customers 8,558.20 5,500.43
(iii) Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred over the time 8,558.20 5,500.43
Total revenue from contracts with customers 8,558.20 5,500.43
(b) RECONCILING THE AMOUNT OF REVENUE RECOGNISED IN THE
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS WITH THE CONTRACTED PRICE
Revenue as per contracted price 8,727.97 6,333.03
Adjustments:
Less: Cradit note (169.77) (832.60)
Revenue from contracts with customers 8,558.20 5,500.43
(c) CONTRACTBALANCES As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade receivables [refer note 9) 1,161.55 1,729.59
Contract liabilities (refer note 19) 252 2.50

The average credit period to ranges between 45 to 60 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables upto the due date from the date of the invoice.
Contract liabilities consist of short-term advances received against supply of services to customer, Such advances are adjusted against supply of
services within a range of 3 months from the reporting date and the revenue is recognised out of the contract liabilities.

(d) CONTRACTBALANCES

Sales of services: The performance obligation in respect of services is satisfied over a period of time and acceptance of the customer. In respect of

these services, payment is generally due upon completion of services.

Total revenue from operations 8,558.20 5,500.43
22 OTHERINCOME Yearended  ~ Yearended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interaest income
Interest income earmed on:
- bank deposits (at amortised cost) 62.38 20.09
- financial assets (at amortised cost) 62.38 0.05
62.45 20.14
Others
Liabilities written back 253 0.02
Gain on foreign currency transactions [net) 2867 4.00
31.20 %.02
Total other income 93.65 24,16
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23 COST OF SE R\"CES R ECE |VE D Year ended Year ended 23 |NCOME TAXE S Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
e 750250 5953 28.1 INCOME TAX RECOGNISED IN TH

24

Current tax
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 S 240.99 177,66
Salaries, wages and bonus 167.75 mMaz In respect of the previous year T :
Contribution to provident and other fund (refer note 32) B.41 1.66 e B EELES
Gratuity expense (refer note 32) &.27 394 Deferred tax
Staff welfare expenses 4.64 326 In respect of the current year (1.96) (0.24)
182.87 120.03 In respect of the previous year - .
(1.96) (0.24)
25 FI NANC E CO STS Year ended Year ended Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 239.81 177.42
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Inberest expense on bormwings atamortisad cost 10.50 4 e The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Interest on delay deposit of income tax 10.23 10.23
Other finance costs 5.83 5 .00 Arcounting profit hefore b Ao 679.38
26.56 9.66
Statutory income tax rate 25.168% 25.168%
Income tax expense at statutory income tax rate 23104 17114
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 7.89 6.28
26 DEPREC IATION AND AMORTI S‘ATION EXPENSE Year ended Year ended Adjustments recognised in the current year In relation to the previous years 0.78 -
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 239.81 177.42
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment [refer note 3) 2022 15.40
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 5) N7 -
15,40 28.2 INCOME TAX RECOGNISED IN OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
27 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE ~— Yearended Vearended N |
March 31. 2025 March 31. 2024 Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
' ' - Rermeasurement of the defined benefit plan {0.24] 0.2
Borarand fisl 1 86 5 91 Total income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income (0.24) 0.21
Rant 33.34 8.05
Repair and maintenance e
S 27 3.83 Effective tax rate has been calculated on profit before tax 26.11% 26.09%
Insurance 176 6.79
Rates and taxes 17.58 14.33
Communication expenses 0.22 0.23
Travelling and conveyance 29.18 80 29 CONTINGENT LIABI LITIES AND COMMITMENTS
Printing and stationery 3.64 372
Commission and brokerage 2.00 - (TO THE EXTENT NOT PROVIDED FOR)
Director sitting fees 1.20 "
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 13.00 2.00
Legal and professional charges 2.20 7.80 A . C'DNTI N'GE NT LIABILIT'ES
Payments to auditors (refer note below) 9.85 1.00
Advirt:i:s and sales promotion expenses oo Gl The Group does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
Bank charges : 0 )
Vehicle running and maintenance 0.61 0.6l ﬁ Nancila I statements.
Membership fees & Subscription 3.48 515
Allowance for expected credit loss on trade receivables (refer note 9) 8.50 -
Miscellaneous expenses 18 905 B . COM M]TM ENTS
Total 189.20 103.69 [a ) E . W -
stimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
Note: account and not provided for are INR 39.34 lacs, INR 147.11 lacs and INR Nil
P ts dit luding i t tax)* . .
A:yg:;ﬂri-:u auditors (excluding input tax) as at March 3], 2025, March 3],2024 and Aprll O.I, 2023 rESpEEHVE":‘yf.
Audit fees 7.20 1.00 . : . .
Tax audit fess 1.90 , (b) The Group does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
h i 35 - . .
R iimmerneat Emamenas s , contracts for which there are any material foreseeable losses.
9.85 1.00
B. UNDRAWN COMMITTED BORROWING FACILITY

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Year ended

Year ended

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS

(i) The Holding Company has availed overdraft facility from Yes Bank
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30
30.1

amounting to INR 90.00 lacs (March 31, 2024: INR 90.00 lacs and April O,
2023: INR 90.00 lacs). This loan is secured by way of charge on Fixed Deposit
amounting to 110% of facility utilize. An amount of INR 90.00 lacs (March 31,
2024: INR 90.00 lacs and April 01, 2023: INR 90.00 lacs) remains undrawn as
at the year end.

(i) The Holding Company has availed working capital and overdraft facility
from ICICI Bank amounting to INR 500.00 lacs (March 31, 2024: INR 500.00
lacs and April 01, 2023: INR 500.00 lacs). This loan is secured by way of
exclusive charge on current assets of the company including fixed deposits
of Skyways both present and future along with personal guarantee of Mr.
Sudershan Lal Sharma, Mr. Yashpal Sharma and Mr. Tarun Sharma along
with corporate guarantee from its ultimate holding company i.e., Skyways
Air Services Limited. An amount of INR 500.00 lacs (March 31, 2024: INR
500.00 lacs and April 01, 2023: INR 500.00 lacs) remains undrawn as at the
year end.

(i) The Holding Company has availed overdraft facility from IDFC Bank
amounting to INR 100.00 lacs (March 31, 2024: INR 100.00 lacs and April 01,
2023: INR Nil). This loan is secured by way of exclusive charge on fixed
deposit with IDFC bank. An amount of INR 100.00 lacs (March 31, 2024: INR
100.00 lacs and April 01, 2023: INR NIl) remains undrawn as at the year end.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
DESCRIPTION OF SEGMENT AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The operations of the Group are limited to one segment viz. integrated logistics
solutions, other specialised logistics services and logistics operations, which is as
per Ind AS - 108 "Operating Segment" is considered the only reportable
segment. Since the group is having only one reportable segment hence
disclosure requirement as per Ind AS 108 is not applicable.

350.2 GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The following table provides an analysis of the Group's sales by region in which
the customer is located, irrespective of origin of the services.

Revenue from operations

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within India 3.B62.9] 2,790.95
Outside India & 69529 279095
Total 8,558.20 5,500.43

Mon-current assets®

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Within India 37061 192.44
Outside India - -
Total X70.61 192.44

*Non-Currant assets for this purpose excludes non-current investments and investments
in assoclates, non-current financial assets, income tax and deferred tax assets,
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30.3 DESCRIPTION OF SEGMENT AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

31

32

There are major customers which accounted for 10% or more of the Group's
revenue amounting of INR 2,557.79 lacs and INR 1,475.28 lacs for the year ended
March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year. Diluted
earnings per share has been computed using the weighted average number of
equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent INR lacs 678.58 502.56
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding Number 1.00,72.36) 82 50.000
during the year for basic earnings per share
Weighted ber of ity sh tstandi

e[g ed average r"ll:.ll'l"l ro ezqm v shares outstanding Number 1.00,72.361 82.50.000
during the year for diluted earnings per share
Nominal value of equity shares INR 10.00 1.00
Basic earnings per share INR 6.74 6.09
Diluted earnings per share INR 6.74 6.09

GRATUITY AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 "Employee Benefits" (notified under the
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act) read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other
relevant provision of the Act) are given below :

. CONTRIBUTION TO DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN,

RECOGNISED AS EXPENSE FOR THE YEAR IS AS UNDER:

The Group makes contributions towards provident fund and employee state
insurance scheme to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for
qualifying employees. The Group's contribution to the Employees Provident
Fund and Employees State Insurance scheme is deposited with the Regional
Provident Fund Commissioner. Under the scheme, the Group is required to
contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefits.

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN - GRATUITY PLAN

The gratuity liability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death of
an employee. The aforesaid liability is calculated on the basis of fifteen days
salary (i.e. last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service subject to
completion of five years service.
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(i)

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH PLAN PROVISIONS

Risks associated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks. These risks are:- (i)
interest rate risk (discount rate risk), (ii) mortality risk and (iii) salary growth risk.

Interest rate risk (discount rate risk) A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rate) will increase the
plan liability
Mortality risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by

reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants.
For this report we have used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14)
ultimate table.

A change in mortality rate will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Salary growth risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated
with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in
future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan
participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the
present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of
the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 2025. The present
value of defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past
service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

PRINCIPALACTUARIAL ASSUMPTIONS:

Principle actuarial assumption used to determine the present value of the
benefit obligation are as follows:

S.No. Particulars Refer note As at As at As at

below March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
i Discount rate (p.a.) ] 6.99% 7.22% 7.36%
i, Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 2 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%
Notes

1. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date
for the estimated term of obligations.

2. The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors.

DEMOGRAPHIC ASSUMPTIONS: A at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

Retirement age 58 Years 58 Years 58 Years

Mortality rate 100% of IALM 100% of |1ALM 100% of |ALM

(2012-14) (2012-14) (2012-14)

Average remaining working life 23.94 Years 21.87 Years 15.70 Years

Number of employees 29 25 i

Attrition rate

- Service up to 30 years 3% 2% 3%

- Service from 31 to 44 years 2% 2% 2%

- Service above 44 years 1% 1% 1%

The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plan and amounts recognised in the Group's financial
statements:

BracePort

Chlisvdering with Passion
5 i

Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)

CIN: UB3030DL2020PLC372878

Notes forming part of the consolidated consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

a. AMOUNTS RECOGNISED IN THE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS IN
RESPECT OF THESE DEFINED BENEFITS PLANS ARE AS FOLLOWS:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Current service cost 3164 3.64 227
Met interest expenses 0.63 030 023
Components of defined benefit costs 4.27 3.94 2.40

b. REMEASUREMENT (GAIN)/LOSS RECOGNISED IN OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ (LOSS) :

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in demographic assumptions a = -
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in financial assumptions 0.31 013 (0.08)
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in experience variance (1.26) 0.72 (1.53)
Component of defined benefit costs {0.95) 0.85 (1.61)

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense’ in the statement of profit and loss,
The remeasurement of the net defined benefit llability is included in the other comprehensive income:

c. NET DEFINED BENEFIT ASSET/ (LIABILITY) RECOGNISED IN THE BALANCE SHEET :

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation 12,11 879 &.00
Unfunded status - deficit 12.1 8.79 4.00
Current portion (refer note 17) 010 0.03 .01
Mon-current portion (refer note 17) 12.01 876 399

d. MOVEMENT IN THE FAIR VALUE OF THE DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Opening defined benefit obligation B.79 4£.00 3.21
Current service cost 164 364 2T
Interest cost 0.63 030 0.23
Actuarial ([gain)/loss on obligation (0.95) 0.85 {1.61)
Closing defined benefit obligations 12.1 B.79 4.00

e. SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase; The sensitivity
analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year, while holding
all other assumptions constant,

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Discount Rate [-/+0.5%)
-Decrease 0.75 0.58 D.26
-Increase (D.69) {0.53) (0.24)
Salary Growth Rate (=/+0.5%)
-Decrease (.70} (0.54) 025
-Increase 0.75 0.58 026

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change
in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity
analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period,
which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the There was no change in the methods and assumptions used
in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
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f. THE EXPECTED MATURITY ANALYSIS OF UNDISCOUNTED DEFINED BENEFIT OBLIGATION IS AS FOLLOWS:

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Expected cash flows over the next
Within the next 12 months 0.0 0.03 0.01
Between 2 and 5 years 1.57 0.89 0.51
More than S years 10.44 7.86 3.48
g. EXPECTED GROUP CONTRIBUTIONS FOR THE NEXT YEAR 5.42 8.78 4£.00

h. ACTURIAL ASSUMPTIONS ON COMPENSATED ABSENCES

S.No. Particulars Refer note below As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

1. Discount rate (p.a.) 1 6.99% - -

iL Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 3 6.00% . -

Notes

1. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Covernment securities as at the balance sheet date
for the estimated term of obligations.

2. The compensated absences plan is unfunded.

3. The estimates of future salary increase considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other

relevant factors.

33 CAPITALMANAGEMENT

For the purposes of Group's capital management, Capital includes equity
attributable to the equity holders of the Group and all other equity reserves. The
primary objective of the Group's capital management is to safeguard its ability
to continue as going concern and to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital
structure and maximize shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of
changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April
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As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Debt including lease liability (a) 37.94 48.97 59.10
Cash and cash equivalents [Mote 10} 41621 187.87 £18.30
Total Cash (b) &14.21 187.87 &18.30
Net debt (c = [(a-b)) (376.27) (138.90) {359.20])
Total equity 29471 1287.00 885.08
Capital and net debt 3,570.84 1,248.10 525.88
Gearing ratio {net debt/capital and net debt) {10.54%) {11.13%) (6B.30%)

33 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVE AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations.
The Group's principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and
cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its operations.

The Group's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and
execute its business strategies. The Group Is exposed to market risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Group's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The
senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and the appropriate
financial risk governance framework for the Group are accountable to the Board
of Directors and Audit Committee. This process provides assurance to Group's
senior management that the Group's financial risk-taking activities are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risk are
identified, measured and managed in accordance with Group policies and
Croup risk objective.

As at March 31, 2025 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised  Total carrying  Total fair
Cost value value

Financial assets

01, 2023. Capital gearing ratio is net debt including lease liability divided by total
capital plus net debt and Net debt is calculated as loans and borrowings less
cash and cash equivalent.

Trade receivables - 1,161.55 1,161.55 1,161.55
Cash and cash equivalents - £14.21 &14.21 41421
Other Bank balances - 1,392.28 1,39228 1,392.28
Loans - 0.47 047 0.547
Other financial assets - 186,70 186.70 186.70
Total . 3,155.21 3,155.21 3,155.21
Financial liabilities

Borrowings - 37.94 3794 37.94
Trade payables - 313.43 313.43 S313.43
Other financial liabilities - 9.66 9.66 9.66
Total - 361.03 361.03 361.03
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As at March 31, 2024 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised  Total carrying  Total fair

Cost

value

value

Financial assets

Trade receivables 1,729.59 1,729.55 1,729.59
Cash and cash equivalents 187.87 187.87 187.87
Other Bank balances 27226 27226 272.26
Other financial assets B4.87 B4.B7 B4.B7
Total = = 2,274.59 2,274.59 2,274.59
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 48,97 4£8.97 4897
Trade payables 1,285.40 1,285.40 1,285.40
Other financial liabilities 2.81 2.81 28
Total = s 1,337.18 1,337.18 1,337.18
As at April 01, 2023 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Total carrying Total fair
Cost value value
Financial assets
Trade receivables 362.05 262.05 362.05
Cash and cash equivalerits 418.30 418.30 418.30
Other financial assets . 156.50 156.50 156.50
Total - = 936.85 936.85 936.85
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 59,10 59.10 59.10
Trade payables 132,10 13210 132700
Total - - 191.20 191.20 191.20

B. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS

1)

4)

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balances, trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings, other current
financial assets, loans and other current financial liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
Instruments.

The fair value of the other financial assets and liabilities is included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks, other non-current
financial assets and non-current financial liabilities is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The valuation requires
management to use unobservable inputs in the model, of which the
significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below.
Management regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives

for those significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the

1) total fair value.

2) The fair values of the Group’s interest-bearing borrowings are determined by
using effective interest rate (EIR) method using discount rate that reflects
the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own
non-performance risk as at March 31, 2025 was assessed to be insignificant.

3) Long-term receivables/payables are evaluated by the Group based on
parameters such as interest rates, risk factors, individual creditworthiness of
the counterparty and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based
on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than gquoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(i.e., derived from prices).
Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).
Fair value as at Fair value Valuation
hierarchy techniques and

As at As at As at (Level) key inputs

Financial assets March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

Trade receivables 1,161.55 1,729,59 362.05 Level 3 see note i below

Cash and cash equivalents 41421 187.87 41830 Level 1

Other Bank balances 1,392.28 272.26 - Level 1

Loans 0.47 - - Level 3 see note | below

Other financial assets 186.70 84.87 156.50 Level 3 see note | below

Total Financial assets 3,155.21 2,274.59 936.85

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 37.94 48.97 59.10 Leval 3 see note i below
Trade payables 313.43 1,285.40 132.10 Level 3 see note | below
Other financial llabilities 9.66 2.8 - Level 3 see note | below
Total Financial Liabilities 261.03 1,337.18 191.20

Notes

i. In the absence of observable inputs to measure fair value the assets and liabilities have been classified as level 3. The
Group has not given further disclosures since the amount involved is not The management considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities having short term maturities recognised in the financial statement
approximates theijr fair values.

Risk management objectives
Risk management framework

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Market risk

- Liquidity risk

- Credit risk

The Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training,
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standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control envireonment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the group's risk management policies and
procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the group. The
audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc
reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

a) Marketrisk:

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market prices comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as
equity price risk and commuodity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks include loans and borrowings,
deposits, investments , and foreign currency receivables and payables. The sensitivity analysis in the following sections
relate to the position as at reporting date. The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the
carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirernent abligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities. The
sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss item and equity is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market
risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial liabilities held as of March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023

(i) Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The Croup's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily
to the Group's operating activities {when revenue or expense is denominated in foreign currency). Foreign currency
exchange rate exposure is partly balanced by purchasing of goods from the respective countries. The Group evaluates
exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows established risk management policies.

Foreign currency risk sensitivity

The following tables dermonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, EUR & AED exchange rates, with
all other variables held constant. The impact on the Group profit before tax and equity is due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities. Foreign currency exposures recognised by the Group that have not been hedged by a
derivative instrument or otherwise are as under:

(ili) Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The exposure of the Croup’s financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

As at Clesing balance Iimpact on profit or loss
1% increasa 1% decrease
Borrowings {Impact on profit and loss) March 31, 2025 3794 {0.38) 0.38
Borrowings (Impact on profit and loss) March 31, 2024 4897 (0.49) 0.49
Borrowings (Impact on profit and loss) April 01, 2023 5910 (0.59) 059

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable
price. The Group's objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liquidity to meet its cash and liquidity
requirements. The Group closely monitors its liguidity position and deploys a robust cash management system. It
maintains adequate source of financing through the use of short term bank deposits, mutual funds and cash credit facility.
Processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Managerment monitors the Group's
liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. The Group assessed the concentration of
risk with respect to its debt and concluded it to be low. The Group remains committed to maintaining a healthy liquidity,
gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening our balance sheet. The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities
based on the remaining period from the date of balance sheet to the contractual maturity date is given in the table below.
The figures reflect the contractual undiscounted cash obligation of the Group.

As at March 31, 2025

Financial llabilities Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings (refer note 15)° 1479 1479 1356 4314
Trade payables {refer note 18) 33.43 - - 3343
Other financial liabilities (refer note 16) 265 - - 9.66
337.88 14.79 13.56 366.23
As at March 31, 2024
Financial liabilities Less than 1 year 12 years 2-5 years More than 5 years Total
Berrowings (refer note 15)* 14,79 T4.79 28.35 57.93
Trade pavables [refer note 18} 1,285.540 - - 1,285.40
Other financial llabilities (refer note 16) 28 - 281
1,300.19 17.60 28.35 134614
As at April 01, 2023

Financial liabilities Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings (refer note 15) 14.79 14.79 43.14 T2T2
Trade payables {refer note 18) 13210 - - 13210
146.88 1479 4314 204.82

Financial assets Currency As at March 31, 2025 Impact on profit before tax and equity
Foreign Currency indian Rupees 1% increase 1% decrease
in Lacs. in Lacs. in Lacs. in Lacs.
Receivable US Dollar (USD) 346 29619 296 (2.986)
Receivable EURD (EUR) 020 18.46 0.8 {0.a8)
Balances with banks US Dollar ([USD) 21 180.63 1.81 1.81)
Payable US Dollar (USD) 1.7 146.01 {1.48) 146
Payable EURO (EUR) 0.01 123 (0.01) oo
Financial assets Currency As at March 31, 2024 Impact on profit before tax and equity
Foreign Currency Indian Rupees 1% increase 1% decrease
in Lacs. in Lacs. in Lacs. in Lacs.
Receivable US Dallar (USD) 340 2B3.76 284 (284)
Receivable EURD (EUR) o 6433 064 (0.64)
Balances with banks US Dollar (USD) 136 Nnises 114 (1.34)
Balances with banks EURD (EUR) 012 10.43 010 {0:10)
Cash in hand United Arab Emirates Dirham [AED) 0.05 115 0.01 {0.00)
Payable US Dollar (USD) 1.04 8653 (0.87) 087
Payable EURD (EUR) 0.07 B8.63 (0.07) 0.07
Financial assets Currency As at March 31, 2025 Impact on profit before tax and equity
Foreign Currency Indian Rupeeas 1% increase 1% decrease
in Lacs. in Lacs. in Lacs. in Lacs.
Receivable US Dollar (USD) 179 147.02 147 {1.47)
Balances with banks US Dollar (USD) 106 arn 0.87 (0.87)
Balances with banks EURD [EUR) o.0n 117 0.01 {0.01)
Payable Us Dollar (USD) 083 &8.10 (0.68) .68
Payable EURD (EUR) 0.02 173 (0.02) 0.02

* It includes contractual interest payment based on [nterest rate prevalling at the end of the reporting period.

c) Credit risk
Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and

from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Possible credit risk

Credit risk related to trade receivables and Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or

loans counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally from the Group's receivables from
customers and investment securities. Credit risk is managed through
credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously
monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which the Group
grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The Group
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Credit risk related to bank balances
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establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that
represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and
other receivables and investments. The loans advanced by the Gro
up carries interest and are granted after evaluating the purpose and
credit worthiness of the counter party.

Mareover, given the diverse nature of the Group's businesses trade
receivables are spread over a number of customers with no
significant concentration of credit risk. No single customer
accounted for 10% or more of trade receivable on a % basis in any of
the years indicated.

Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference
to the Group's normal terms and conditions of business. These
terms and conditions are determined on a case to case basis with
reference to the customer's credit quality and prevailing market
conditions, Receivables that are classified as ‘past due’ in the above
tables are those that have not been settled within the terms and
conditions that have been agreed with that customer.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on
trade receivables by lifetime expected credit loss method based on
provision matrix. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.
The Group does not hold collateral as security. The Group evaluates
the concentration of risk with respect to

Group holds bank balances with reputed and creditworthy banking
institution within the approved exposures limit of each bank. None
of the Group’'s cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks,
are past due or impaired. Credit risk fromn balances with banks and
financial institutions is managed by the Group's treasury
department in accordance with the Group's policy. Investments of
surplus funds are made bank deposits and other risk free securities.
The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and
therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential
failure to make payments.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of
the balance sheet at March 31, 2025 is the carrying amounts . The
Group's maximurmn exposure relating to financial instrument is
noted in liquidity table below.

Trade Receivables and other financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as
debtor failing to engage in the repayment plan with the Group.

Financial assets for which allowance is measured using 12 months

Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)
Cash and cash equivalents

Other Bank balances

Loans

Other financial assets

Financial assets for which allowance is measured using Life time

Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)
Trade receivables

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
414,21 41421 £14.21
1,392.28 1,392.28 1,.392.28
0.47 0.47 0.47
186.70 186,70 186,70
1,161.55 1,161.55 1,161.55

33 RELATEDPARTY DISCLOSURES

List of related parties and relationships

i. List of related parties
Holding

Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Key Managerial Person (KMP)

Key Managerial Person (KMP)

Relative of KMP

Others

Enterprises Over which KMP has significant
control

Skyways Air Services Private Limited

Brace Port Logistics LLC

Skyways SLS Logistik GMBH

Surgeport Logistics Private Limited

Phantom Express Private Limited

SLS Logistik Academy Private Limited

Skart Global Express Private Limited

Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (Vietnam)
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited

Forin Container Line Private Limited

Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC UAE

Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong)

Rahat Continental Private Limited

RIV Worldwide Limited

Bolt Freight INC (Trade Name: RIV Worldwide INC)
SLS Retail Supermart Private Limited

Sachin Arora (Managing Director)

Rishi Trehan {(Whole-Time Director)

Tarun Sharma (Director)

Yashpal Sharma (Director)

Himanshu Chhabra (Director)

Rohit Sehgal (Director)

Gunjan Kayastha Agarwal (Director w.ef. 20.11.23)
Megha Aggarwal (Director w.ef. 05.09.23)
Deepak Sonthaliya (Director w.ef. 06.06.23)
Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair (CFO w.ef. 20.05.23)
Megha Verma (Company Secretary w.e.f, 20.05.23)

Sachin Arora (Managing Director)

Rishi Trehan (Whole-Time Director)

Tarun Sharma (Director)

Yashpal Sharma (Director)

Himanshu Chhabra (Director)

Rohit Sehgal (Director)

Gunjan Kayastha Agarwal [Director w.e.f. 20.11.23)
Megha Aggarwal (Director w.ef. 05.09.23)
Deepak Sonthaliya (Director w.e.f. 06.06.23)
Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair (CFO w.e.f. 20.05.23)
Megha Verma (Company Secretary w.e.f. 20.05.23)

Sarla Arora

Daya Nand Arora
Love Kumar Trehan
Tejinder Kaur

Lata Gul Hariramani

Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (THB)

Zeal Global Services Limited
Pradhaan Air Express Private Limited
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(ii) Transactions occurred during the year
As at March 31, 2025
Particular Relation
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a. Sale of service
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 4.75 16490
Surgeport Logistics Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 79.9] 466,74
Skyways SLS Logistik GMBH Fellow Subsidiaries = 95.91
Forin Container Line Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries - 1.47
Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC UAE Fellow Subsidiaries 1,561.97 61038
Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong) Fellow Subsidiaries . 125.33
Rahat Continental Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries - 257 g
Bolt Freight INC Fellow Subsidiaries 17.56 5.09
Zeal Global Services Limitad Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control = 251 60
1,663.63 1,979.83
a. Sale of service
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 946.73 1,552.43
Phantom Express Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 27.63 14.52
Skart Global Express Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 2.4] 12.04
Forin Container Line Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 359 56 212.86
Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC UAE Fellow Subsidiaries 2552 1.37
Rahat Continental Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 5.05 .
Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd {Hong Kong) Fellow Subsidiaries 6.26 154.58
RIV Worldwide Limited Fellow Subsidiaries = 2.73%
Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (Vietnarm)  Fellow Subsidiaries 296 19.76
Bolt Freight INC Fellow Subsidiaries 1677 .
RIV Worldwide Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 14.97 s
Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (THB) Others 1.96 -
FPradhaan Air Express Private Limited Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control 1,485.99 427.42
Zeal Global Services Limited Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control = 36134
2,895.81 2,760.05
¢. Software maintenance
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries - on
£ o
d. Purchase of Intangible Assets
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 50.9] 2.89
50.91 2.89
e. Professional Charges
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 3.37 0.94
Daya Nand Arora Relation of Key Managerial Person - 375
3.37 4.69
f. Reimbursement paid
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 3.60 7.35
Sachin Arora Key Managerial Person 576 I 00
Rishi Trehan Key Managerial Person 119 2.45
Deepak Sonthaliya Key Managerial Person 0.04 i
Gunjan Kayastha Agarwal Key Managerial Person 0.04% =
Megha Aggarwal Key Managerial Person 0.04 =
10.17 12.80
f. Reimbursement paid
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 360 735
sachin Arora Key Managerial Person 5.76 100
Rishi Trehan Key Managerial Person 1.19 2 45
Deepak Sonthaliya Key Managenal Person 004 -
Gunjan Kayastha Agarwal Key Managerial Person 0.04% -
Megha Aggarwal Key Managerial Person 0.04 =
10.17 12.80
g. Dividend paid
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding N5.48 -
sachin Arora Key Managerial Person 34 B5 .
Rishi Trehan Key Managerial Person 4.95 .
Tarun Sharma Kay Managerial Person 1.69 =
Yashpal Sharma Key Managerial Person 1.69 =
Himanshu Chhabra Key Managerial Person 1.69 =
Rohit Sehgal Key Managerial Person 1.69 .
161.B4 -

(ii) Transactions occurred during the year
Particular Relation AR Mureh 3 300
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
h. Rent Expense
Skyways Air Sarvices Private Limited Holding 3.60 0.70
Lata Gul Hariramani Relation of Key Managerial Person 129 0.80
4.89 1.50
i. Remuneration paid
Sachin Arora Key Managerial Person 4359 34.32
Rishi Trehan Key Managerial Person 37 5] 30.56
Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair Key Managerial Person 16.26 10.87
Megha Verma Key Managerial Person 752 263
Love Kumar Trehan Relation of Key Managerial Person = 1.88
Tejinder Kaur Relation of Key Managerial Person - 1.88
Sarla Arora Relation of Key Managerial Person " 1.00
103.88 B3.14
j- Interest on Corporate Cuarantee
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 5.00 5.00
5.00 5.00
k. Issue of Bonus Shares
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding : 524.90
Sachin Arora Key Managerial Person - 157.50
Rishi Trehan Key Managerial Person . 22.50
Yashpal Sharma Key Managerial Person ; 790
Tarun Sharma Keay Managerial Person - 770
Himanshu Chhabra Key Managerial Person = 7.70
Rohit Sehgal Key Managerial Person 5 770
- 735.70
L Miscellaneous Expense
Skyways Air Sarvices Private Limited Holding - 3.89
SLS Logistik Academy Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries s 0.05
SLS Retail Supermart Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 0.16 0.41
0.16 4.35
m. Advertisement and Business Promotion
SLS Retail Supermart Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 0.02 -
0.02 -
n. Director Sitting Fees
Deepak Sonthaliya Key Managerial Person 0.40 -
Gunjan Kayastha Agarwal Key Managerial Person 0.40 -
Megha Aggarwal Key Managerial Person 0.40 "
1.20 -
(iii) Balances outstanding as at the year end
Particular Relation As at Amount As at Ag at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
a. Trade Payable
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 64.60 97396 2944
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 0.06 0.60 _
Phantom Express Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 1.94 5.03 294
Skart Global Express Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 0.21 0.06 "
Forin Container Line Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 31.68 B6.00 0.55
Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd {Hong Kong) Fellow Subsidiaries 5 29.48 -
Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC UAE Fellow Subsidiaries 1.90 . B
Lata Gul Hariramani Relation of Key Managerial Person on = :
Pradhaan Air Express Private Limited Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control - 76.05 -
Zeal Global Services Limited Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control - 17.38 i
102.50 1,188.56 32.94
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(iiif}y Balances outstanding as at the year end (iv) Remuneration of KMP

The remuneration of key management personnel of the Group are set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in Ind AS 24 Related
Particular Relation As at Amount As at As at

March 31,2025 March 31,2024  April 01, 2023 Ramy deciosure,
a. Trade Payable Year ended Year ended
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 64.60 973.96 29,44 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 0.06 0.60 - Key Management Par I
Phantom Express Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 3.94 203 2.94 Short-term employee benefits * 103.88 7838
Skart Global Express Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 021 0.06 ) B b e
Forin Container Line Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 3168 86.00 0.55
Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong) Fellow Subsidiaries 29.48 =
IE-:}:(:i"_:- :I;Er'-ii?ifﬂrﬁﬂas LLC UAE z::;zil;ﬁ::;:iageﬁm o ng‘::-: : . In::lu::las perquisites, allowances and bonus and does not include the provision made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an
Pradhaan Air Express Private Limited Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control ~ 76.05 : actuarial basis for all the employees together.
Zeal Global Services Limited Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control . 17.38 -
102.50 1,188.56 32.94 Remuneration payable to KMP
b. Trade receivable As at As at
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 177 190.36 > March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rahat Continental Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries - 29918 =
Surgeport Logistics Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries . 192.22 - .
Bolt Freight INC Fellow Subsidiaries 153 173 Hemuneraban peysbie:to Ke St 2
Forin Container Line Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 0.71 7.04 5.81
Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC UAE Fellow Subsidiaries 7218 a
Skyways SLS Logistik GMBH Fellow Subsidiaries - 36.61 3
Zeal Global Services Limited Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control 12919 196,57 3
132.49 989.56 - . . s
36 There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor
c. Corporate guarantee received ] -
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 500.00 500.00 500.00 education and protection fund by the Group.
500.00 500.00 500.00
i oo Relation of Key Managerial Person _ s 37 The Holding Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance
- . 12h of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation
e. Employee Benefit Payable under Sections 92-92F of the Income tax Act, 196l1. Since the law requires
Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair Key Managerial Person 1.26 0.B4 - = _ 3 5 7
Megha Verma Key Managerial Person 0.68 0.25 . existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in
Sachin Arora Keay Managerial Person 276 2.23 147 i = =
Rishi Trehan Managerial Person 34 2.49 13 nature, the Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the
Key g 2 2
e o o international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises during
f. Security Deposit given . .
Pradhaan Air Express Private Limited Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control 33.60 : the year and expects such records to be in existence latest by such date as
LA SRR o PRSI i Pt 029 239 : required under the law. The management is of the opinion that its transactions
33.90 0.30 - A
T — covered under transfer pricing regulations are at arm’s length so that the
sk ol St e it ' e aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial statements,
L = 0.23 particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.
h. Advance to employee
Rishi Trehan Key Managerial Person - 215
: : 38 INTERESTIN OTHERENTITIES
h. Advance to employee SUBS’DIARIES
Rishi Trehan Key Managerial Person 215 . . 5 55 : . = .
. = 215 The Holding Company has following subsidiaries held directly and indirectly by
e T the Holding Company which operate and are incorporated around the world.
Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong) ~ Fellow Subsidiaries 0.04 - Following are the details of shareholdings in the subsidiaries :
0.04 - =
j. Advance from Customer
Forin Container Line Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries Eﬁi a 3 S No NameofC ¢ Principal activities Immadiats halding Countey of As at -
: a ) company incorporation March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
1 Braceport Logistics LLC. - FZ integrated Brace Port UAE 100.00% 0.00%

Logistic Solutions Logistics Lirnited
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39 ADDITIONAL INFORMATION TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS, AS REQUIRED UNDER SCHEDULE Ill OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 OF ENTITIES CONSOLIDATED AS
SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Following is the share of net assets and the profit or loss of the entities which
have been consolidated for preparation of the consolidated financial statements
of Brace Port Logistics Limited for the financial year ended March 31, 2025:

Name of the entity MNet assets Share in profit or (loss) Share in other Share in total
(Total assets minus Total comprehensive income comprehensive income
liabilities) {oClI) (TClI)
Amount As a % of Amount As a % of Amount As a % of Amount As a % of
consolidated net consolidated net consolidated net consolidated net
assets assets assets assets

Brace Fort

3,954.57 100.19% 686.11 101.11% on 91.03% 6BB6.82 101.10%
Logistics Limited
Foreign
Subsidiaries (7.46) (019)% (7.53) (1.11)% 0.07 B.97% (7.46) N30)%
Braceport
Logistics LLC. -FZ
Inter-company
elimination and
consolidation
adjustments

39471 100.00% &78.58 100.00% 0.78 100.00% 879.36 100.00%

40 FIRST-TIME ADOPTION OF IND AS

These are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with
Ind AS. The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in preparing
the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and in
the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April 01, 2023 (the
Company's date of transition).

For all periods upto and including the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company
prepared its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) and complied with accounting standards as
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with rule 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (‘previous GAAP' or IGAAP') to the
extent applicable and the presentation requirements of the Companies Act,
2013.

The transition of Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, with April
01, 2023 being the date of transition. This note explains the exemptions on the
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first-time adoption of Ind AS availed in accordance with Ind AS 101 and an
explanation of how the transition from previous CAAP to Ind AS has affected the
Company's financial position, financial performmance and cash flows.

EXEMPTIONS AVAILED AND MANDATORY EXCEPTIONS

Ind AS 101 'First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards' allows first-time
adopters certain exemptions from retrospective application of certain
requirements under Ind AS. Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional
exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from

A. IND AS OPTIONAL EXEMPTIONS

A.1 CARRYING VALUE AS DEEMED COST FOR PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Ind AS 101 permits, where there is no change in the functional currency on the
date of transition to Ind ASs, a first time adopter to Ind AS may elect to continue
with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment and
investment properties defined as per IND AS 40 as recognised in the financial
statements as at the date of transition to Ind ASs, measured as per the previous
CAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition except to the
extent of capitalisation of the government grant as at transition date.

B. IND AS MANDATORY EXCEPTIONS

B.1 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS
shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with
previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting
policies), unless there is objective evidence that those estimates were an error.

Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2023 are consistent with the estimates as at the
same date made in conformity with previous GAAP.

B.2 DE-RECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Ind AS 101 requires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of
Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions occurring on or after the date of
transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopter to apply the
de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of the
entity's choosing, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to
financial assets and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past
transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those
transactions.
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c. RECONCILIATION OF CASH FLOWS

B.3 CLASSIFICATION AND MEASUREMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the
basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the date of transition. Further, the
standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost
based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if

The adjustments as explained above, are of non-cash nature and accordingly,
there are no material differences in cash flows from operating, investing and

financing activities as per the previous GAAP and as per Ind AS. Previous year
numbers have been reclassified wherever required.

Year ended March 31, 2024

retrospective application is impracticable.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets
bases on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition.
Measurement of the financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done

retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.

a. RECONCILIATION OF OTHER EQUITY BETWEEN IND AS AND PREVIOUS GAAP:

As at March 31, 2024:

Particular Hotes Retained Earnings Tatal
Other equity as per previous GAAP 541.70 541.70
Adjustments

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 2712 2712
Tax impact on adjustmients 2 {6.82) (6.82)
Other equity as per Ind AS 562.00 562.00
As at April 01, 2023:

Particular MHotes Retalned Earnings Total
Other equity as per previous GAAP B06.25 806.25
Adjustmeants

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 5.23 5.23
Tax impact on adjustments 2 (1.40) (1.40)
Other equity as per Ind AS 810.08 B810.08

b. RECONCILIATION OF NET PROFIT AS PER PREVIOUS GAAP AND TOTA
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME AS PER IND AS

As at March 31, 2024:

Particular Hotes March 31, 2024
Net profit as per previous GAAP 4B5.45
Adjustments

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 21.89
Tax impact on adjustments (5.42)
Effect of remeasurement of the defined benefit plan (net of tax) 1 064
Met profit as per Ind AS 502.56
Effect of remeasurement of the defined benefit plan (net of tax) 1 (0.64)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 501.92

Partlcular Previous GAAP Effects of transition As per Ind AS
Net cash flows from operating activities 127.82 (82.67) 4515
Met cash flows from investing activities (343.46) 82.01 (261.45)
MNet cash flows from financing activities (14.79) - (14.79)
Met increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (230.43) (0.66) (231.09)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 418.30 - £18.30
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 187.87 - 187.87

MNotes to first-time adoption of Ind-AS

1. Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan: Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits requires the impact of re-measurement in
net defined benefit liability (asset) to be recognized in other comprehensive income (OCl). Re-measurement of net defined
benefit liability (asset) comprises actuarial gains and losses, return on plan assets (excluding interest on net defined benefit

asset/liability). This was being recognised in the statement of profit and loss in Statement of profit and loss in previous
CAAP.

1. Deferred Tax: Previous GAAP required deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses
on differences between taxable profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for

deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary differences between the carrying amount
of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in recognition
of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under previous GAAP.

In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the
Company has to account for such differences. Deferred tax has been recognised on such temporary differences.

41 OTHER INFORMATION

(i) The Group does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be
registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

(1) The Group have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual
Currency during the financial year

(i)  The Group have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other

person or entity, including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the group (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries

(iv) The Group have not received any fund from any person or entity,
including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether
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42

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries

(V) The Group have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the
books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or
survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961

(vi)  The Group does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding
has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami

property.

(vii) The Group has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(vili) The Group has complied with the number of layers for its holding in
downstream companies prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)
Rules, 2017.

42 The Holding Company, which is a comapny incorporated in India, has
used the accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a
feature of recording audit trail and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

Further, in respect of software used in maintaining payroll records which
operated and maintained by a third party service provider, in absence of service
organisation controls report in respect of audit trail, management is unable to
determine whether audit trail feature of the underlying database was enabled
and operated throughout the year. Further no instance of audit trail feature
being tampered with was noted in respect of accounting software except that in
absence of service organisation controls report, we are unable to assess the
same in respect of the software used to maintain payroll records.

Additionally, the audit trail to the extent it was enabled has been preserved by
the Holding Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention
except that in absence of service organisation controls report, we are unable to
comment on the same in respect of the software used to maintain payroll
records.
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L4

45

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Holding Company has completed its
Initial Public Offer (IPO) of 30,51,200 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each at
and issue price of INR 80 per share. Pursuant to the IPO, the equity shares of the
Company got listed on NSE Emerge on August 26, 2024,

The figures have been rounded off to the nearest lacs of rupees up to two
decimal places. The figure 0.00 wherever stated represents value less than INR

500/-.

Note 1 to 44 form integral part of the consolidated balance sheet and
consolidated statement of profit and loss.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of Brace Port Logistics Limited
(formerly known as ‘Brace Port Logistics Private Limited’)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

OPINION

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Brace Port
Logistics Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), which comprise the
Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, and the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income), Standalone Statement of Changes
in Equity and Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the Standalone Financial Statements, including a summary of the significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the
Standalone Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information
required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2025, and its profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Standalone Financial
Statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters (‘(KAM') are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of
most significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not

Bracelort

Crlincering withy Piassion

provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in our
report.

OTHER INFORMATION

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company's annual report, but
does not include the Standalone Financial Statements and our auditors' report
thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other
information and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
Standalone Financial Statements or our knowledge

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, profit/ loss and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, the Board of Directors is
responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
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concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

> Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

> Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting in preparation of Standalone Financial Statements
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

BracePort

Credivering Wwithy Passion
[} Mo i it | ]

> conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be

OTHER MATTERS

The comparative standalone financial information of the Company as at the transition
date and opening balance sheet as at April 01, 2023 prepared in accordance with Ind
AS, included in these standalone financial statements has been audited by the
predecessor auditor i.e. Girish Mangla & Co. The report of the predecessor auditor on
the comparative financial information and the said opening balance sheet dated
September 06, 2023 expressed and unmeaodified opinion.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations
which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been
kept by the Company so far as it appears from our examination of those
books except for the matters stated in the paragraph (i)(vi) below on
reporting under Rule 11(g).

) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the Standalone
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash
Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply
with the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.
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e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors
as on 31 March 2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B".

g) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during

the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act.

h) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other
matters connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on
reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting
under Rule T1(g).

1) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s
Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor's)
Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

1) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position as at 31 March 2025 - refer note 29 to the Standalone Financial
Statements.

1) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable |osses.

i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company - refer note 37 to the Standalone
Financial Statements.

V) (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and
belief, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Company, or

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Funding Party, or
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provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that
the representations under sub clause (iv) (@) and (iv) (b) contain any material
mis-statement.

V) The interim dividend, declared and paid by the Company during the year is in
accordance with Section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and wherever enabled, the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions.

Also, in respect of software used in maintaining payroll records, as described in note 44
to the Standalone Financial Statements, in absence of service organisation controls
report in respect of audit trail, we are unable to comment on whether audit trail feature
of the underlying database was enabled and operated throughout the year.

Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with in respect of accounting software except that in
absence of service organisation controls report, we are unable to comment on the
same in respect of the software used to maintain payroll records.

Additionally, the audit trail to the extent it was enabled has been preserved by the
Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention except that in
absence of service organisation controls report, we are unable to comment on the
same in respect of the software used to maintain payroll records.

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm'’s Registration Number: 007895N

sd/-

per Mohit Gupta

Partner

Membership Number: 528337
UDIN: 25528337BMLNAG5204
New Delhi May 28, 2025
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ANNEXURE ATO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON

THE STANDALONE FINANCIALSTATEMENTS OF BRACE PORT

LOGISTICS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,

including quantitative details and situation of Property, plant and equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible
assets.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular
programme of physical verification of its Property, plant and equipment by which all
Property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a period of three
years. In accordance with this programme, certain Property, plant and equipment
were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. No
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (including investment
properties) (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease

agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its
Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) during the year.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or
pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition
of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii) (a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)  As disclosed in note 15 to the Standalone Financial Statements, the company
has been sanctioned working capital and cash credit limits in excess of Rs. Five crores
in aggregate from bank on the basis of security of current assets of the company.
Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of financials
statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks
are not in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company on account
of timing difference in reporting to the banks and routine book closure process of the
Company and the details where are as follows:
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(INR lacs)
Amount as reported in the
Amount as per quarterly return /
Class of Assets/ Baoks nlf :}Em““ti stat}!:; i Discrepancy
Liabilities Quarter ended (A-B)
Trade Receivable June 30, 2024 1,527.87 1,073.12 454.75
Trade Receivable September 30, 2024 1,026.93 1,089.07 -62.14
Trade Receivable December 31, 2024 1,007.89 1,034.13 -26.24
Trade Receivable March 31, 2025 1,161.55 1,169.00 -7.45
Trade Payable June 30, 2024 1,140.58 379.38 761.2
Trade Payable September 30, 2024 349.03 178.28 170.75
Trade Payable December 31, 2024 181.65 178.20 3.45
Trade Payable March 31, 2025 313.43 216.39 97.04

(i)  (a) During the year, the Company has provided loans to its employees as follows

Particulars Loans (INR lacs)
Aggregate amount provided during the year

- Others (Loan to employees) 0.83
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of k&ases

- Others (Loan to employees) 0.47

Apart from above, during the year, the Company has not made any investments,
provided guarantee or security or granted any advances in the nature of loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties
and hence not commented upon.

(b) During the year, the investments made and loans given to its employees, the
terms and conditions under which investments were made and loans given to
employees were not prejudicial to the Company’s interest. The Company has not
provided any guarantee or security and granted loans and advances in the nature of
loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties during the
year and hence not commented upon.

(c) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted by the Company,
the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular.

(d)  There are no amounts of loans granted to the employees, which were overdue
for more than ninety days.

(e) The Company has granted loan which had fallen due during the year and were
repaid on or before the due date. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to
settle the overdue loans.

(f) The Company has not granted any loan, which is repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms or period of repayment.

(iv)  The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185
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and section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(V) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to
be deposits from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(Vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central
Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of Company's products/business activity.
Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(vii)(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax ('GST'), Provident fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of
Customs, Cess and other material statutory dues have generally been regularly
deposited with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, Provident
fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other
material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2025 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable. (b) According to the information and
explanations given to us, there are no dues of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State
Insurance, Income-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs, Value added tax, Cess or
other statutory dues which have not been deposited by the Company on account of
disputes.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account,
In the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not defaulted in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government
authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
money raised by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were
obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
and on an overall examination of the Standalone Financial Statements of the
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Company, the Company has not raised any funds on short term basis during the year
or in the previous year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations
of its subsidiaries. The company does not have any associates or joint ventures.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on overall
examination of the standalone financial statements of the Company, the Company has
not raised any loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.
The company does not have any associates or joint ventures

(X)(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
money raised by way of initial public offer were applied for the purposes for which
these were obtained, though idle/surplus funds which were not required for
immediate utilisation have been invested in readily realisable liguid investments.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or (fully, partially or
optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi)(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according
to the information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of
materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company
or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under
sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors
in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 with the Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the
representation made to us by the management of the Company, there are no
whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the year.

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.
(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,

the transactions with related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions
have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the
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applicable Indian Accounting Standards.

(xiv)(a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit
procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for
the period under audit.

(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-lA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by
the management of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment
Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and the
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year.
Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the Standalone
Financial Statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is
not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give
any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one
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year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when
they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does
not have any unspent amount in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project
as at the expiry of the financial year and accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xx)(a)
and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm's Registration Number: 007895N

sd/-

per Mohit Gupta

Partner

Membership Number: 528337
UDIN: 25528337BMLNAG5204
New Delhi May 28, 2025
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF BRACE PORT
LOGISTICS LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements of Brace Port Logistics Limited ("the Company”) as of 31 March 2025 in
conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the Company as
at and for the year ended on that date.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements based on the criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
with reference to Standalone Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated
effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of
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the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statements.

MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A company's internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements is a process desighed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Financial
Statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting

principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

INHERENT LIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIA CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
Standalone Financial Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone
Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements and such internal financial
controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal financial
controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements criteria established by the
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Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note").

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration Number: 007895N

sd/-

per Mohit Gupta

Partner

Membership Number: 528337
UDIN: 25528337BMLNAG5204
New Delhi May 28, 2025
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Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)

CIN: U63030DL2020PLC372878

Notes forming part of the consolidated consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated
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Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)

CIN: U63030DL2020PLC372878

Notes forming part of the consolidated consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

As at March 31, 2024 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised  Total carrying Total fair

value

value

Financial assets

Trade receivables - 1,729.59 1,729.59 1,729.59
Cash and cash eguivalents 187.87 187.87 187.87
Other Bank balances - 272.26 272.26 272.26
Other financial assets - B4.87 B4.87 84.87
Total - - 2,274.59 2,274.,59 2,274.59
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 48.97 48.97 4B.97
Trade payables - 1,285.40 1,285.40 1,285.40
Other financial liabilities - 2.81 2.81 2.81
Total - - 1,337.18 1,337.18 1,337.18
As at April 01, 2023 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Total carrying Total fair
Cost value value
Financial assets
Trade receivables - - 362.05 362.05 362.05
Cash and cash equivalents - - 418.30 418.30 418.30
Other financial assets 156.50 156.50 156.50
Total - - 936.85 936.85 936.85
Financial liabilities
Borrowings - - 59.10 59.10 59.10
Trade payables - - 132.10 132.10 132.10
Total - - 191.20 191.20 191.20

FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS

1) The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balances, trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings, other current
financial assets, loans and other current financial liabilities approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to the short-terrm maturities of these
instruments.

2)

3) The fair value of the other financial assets and liabilities is included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged In a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

4)

5) The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks, other non-current
financial assets and non-current financial liabilities is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The valuation requires
management to use unobservable inputs in the model, of which the
significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below.
Management regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives
for those significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the

1) total fair value.

2) The fair values of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings are determined by
using effective interest rate (EIR) method using discount rate that reflects
the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own
non-performance risk as at March 31, 2025 was assessed to be insignificant.

3) Long-term receivables/payables are evaluated by the Group based on
parameters such as interest rates, risk factors, individual creditworthiness of
the counterparty and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based
on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the expected credit
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly
(e, derived from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value as at Fair value Valuation
hierarchy techniques and

As at As at As at (Level) key inputs
Financial assets March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Trade receivables 1,161.55 1,729.559 362.05 Level 3 sea note | below
Cash and cash equivalents 4142 187.87 4£18.30 Level
Other Bank balances 1,392.28 272.26 - Level 1
Loans 0.47 . - Level 3 see note i below
Other financial assets 186.70 84.87 156.50 Level 3 see note | below
Total Financial assets 31552 2,274.59 936.85
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 3794 4£8.97 59.10 Level 3 see note i below
Trade payables 313.43 1,285.40 132,10 Level 3 see note i below
Other financial liabilities 9.66 2.8 - Level 3 see note | below
Total Financial Liabilities 361.03 1,337.18 191.20
Notes

i. In the absence of observable inputs to measure fair value the assets and liabilities have been classified as level 3. The
Group has not given further disclosures since the amount involved is not The management considers that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities having short term maturities recognised in the financial statement
approximates their fair values.

Risk management objectives
Risk management framework

The Group has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Market risk

- Liquidity risk

- Credit risk

The Group's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and owversight of the Group's risk
management framework.

The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems
are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. The Group, through its training,
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Particulars

Year ended

A. Cash flow from Operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustrments to reconcile profit before taxto net cash fMows:
Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Foreign exchange [gain) / loss (ret)
Interest incomse
Finance cost
Liabilities written back
Allowance for expected credit loss

Working capital adjustments:
(increase)f Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)f Decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/ Decrease in other assets
Increase [Decrease) in provisions
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payable
Increase/ [Decrease) in other financial lability
Increase/ (Decrease) in other lability

Cash generated from operations

Income tax paid (net)

Met cash inflow from Operating activities

B. Cash flow from Investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equiprment
Purchase of intangible assets
Purchase of right of use assets

Loan to employees
Bank withdrawal [ [deposit) not considered as cash and cash equivalents [net)

Interest receed
Het cash outflow from Investing activities

C. Cash flew from Financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares

Interest paid

Procesads from borrowings

Fepayment of borrowings

Share issue expenses

Dinvidends paid

Het cash inflow/{outflow) from Financing activities

Met Increasaf{decreasa) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cashand cash equivalents at the beginning of the vear
Exchange difference on translation of forelgn currency cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks [refer note 10)
= On current account
- Dividend Account

- inoverdraft account

Cash in hand including imprest [refer note 10)

2592

a3
(2857)
{62.45)
2073
(253)

BE8815
(96.53)
{556.18)
(963.50)

378

(124.52)
(234.59)

(359.11)

(@4.50)
(107.77)
(58.28)
(0.47)
(108.63)
4576

2,44096
{10.50]

mos)
{37233
(187.88)

1,859.22

18ve7
a2

414521

39908
750

105

F4 -

March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

67998

(4.00)

(2014)
i

(0.02)

(1,364.20)
{B.43)
{230.03)
I94
115332

29545

26283
{217.68)

(21.46)
(67.93)

190.00)
17.94

261.45

[4.66)

noas)

(231.09)
S1830
066

187.87

180041

103

18787

The above cash flow statement has been prepared under Indirect method as sat out in Ind AS-T7 "Statement of cash flows™.

The above standalone statement of cash flow should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.

sd/- sd/-
per Mohit Gupta Sachin Arora
Partner Managing Director

Membership No. 528337
UDIN: 255283378 MLNAGS204

Place: Maw Delhi
Date: May 28, 2025
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Date: May 28, 2025

sd/-
Radhakrishnan pattivil Nair

Chief Financial Officer
Pan: ADMPMNESAZK

Place:Maw Delhi
Date: May 28, 2025

sd /-

Yashpal Sharma
Director
M = 00520359

Place:Maw Delhi
Date: May 28, 2025

gd/-
Megha Verma
Company Secretary

Membership Number:= As3650

Place:Mew Delkli
Date: May 28, 2025

sd /-

Himanshu Chhabra
Director
DimM - 090187936

Place:Maw Delhl
Cate: May 28, 2025
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Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)
CIN: UB3030DL2020PLC372878

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Equity share capital
Particulars Numbers Amount
Equity shares of INR 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid As at
April 01, 2023 7.50,000 75.00
Changes in equity share capital during the vear 75,000,000 750.00
As at March 31, 2024 7.50,000 825.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 30,51,200 30512
As at March 31, 2025 38,001,200 1,130.12
Other equity
Year ended March 31, 2025
Other equity
particulars Securities premium | Retained earnings Total
Balance as at Aprﬁ 01, 2024 - 562.00 562.00
Profit for the year - &8e.11 e86.T1
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, net of income - Q.7 o7
Total comprehensive income for the year - 686.82 686.82
Add: Issue of equity shares during the year 213584 = 213584
Less: Dividend paid during the year - (187.88) (187.88)
Less: Share issue expenses (37233) - (372.33)
[Balance as at March 31, 2025 1,763.51 1,060.94 282445
Year ended March 31, 2024
Other equity
particulars " Securities premium | Retained earnings Total
Balance as at April 01, 2023 - a810.08 810.08
Profit for the year - 50256 502.56
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year, net of income - (0.64) (0.64)
Total comprehensive income for the year - 501.92 501.92
Less: Bonus shares issued during the year - (750.00) (750.00)
[Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 562.00 562.00

The above standalone statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes,

As per our report of even date

For Bhagi Bhardwaj Gaur & Co.
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 007895N

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Brace Port Logistics Limited ([Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)

sd/- sd/~
per Mohit Gupta Sachim Arora
Partner Managing Director

Membership No. 528337
UDIM: 25528337BMLMNAGS 204

Place: New Delhi
Date: May 28, 2025

DIN - 08952681

Place:Mew Delhl
Date: May 28, 2025

sd/-
Radhakrishnan pattiyil Mair

Chief Financial Officer
PaN: ADMPMNESAZK

Place:Mew Dalhi
Date: May 28, 2025

gd /- g /-

Yashpal Sharma Himanshu Chhabra
Director Directar

DM - 00520359 CiM - 09018796
Place:Maw Delhl PlaceMNew Delhi

Cate: May 28, 2025 Date: May 28, 2025

gd/f-
Megha Verma

Company Secretary
Membership Number- AB3IBS0

Place:Maw Dealki
Date: May 28, 2025
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Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)
CIN: U63030DL2020PLC372878
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated
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sdf-

Particulars

Motes As at

March 31, 2025

Assets
Mon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets under development
Right-of-use assets
Financial assets
(i Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets
Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Bank balances other than (i) above
(iv) Loans
(v} Other financial assets
Other current assets
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity

Liabilities
Mon-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(1) Borrowings
(i) Other financial liabilities
provisions
Deferred tax liabilities (net)
Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
(I Borrowings
(i) Trade payables

(a) total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
{b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small

(iii) Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
FProvisions
Current tax liabilities (net)

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

As at
_March 31,2024 _ April 01,2023

As at

The above standalone balance sheet should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.

per Mohit Gupta

Partrner

Membership Na. 528337
UDIN: 255283378 MLNAGS204
Place: New Delhi

Date: May 28, 2025

sd/-

Sachin Arora

Managing Director
DiIN - 08952681

Place:hew Dealhi
Date: May 28, 2025

sd/-

Radhakrishnan pattiyvil Mair
Chief Financial Officaer
PAN: ADMPNESAZK

Placa:Mew Dalli
Date: May 28, 2025

3 146.95 122.67 1i6.61
4 175.70 &7.93 -
5 45.57 - -
& 80.84 75.54 155.60
7 0.59 - -
B8 1.39 1.84 -
452.04 267.98 272.21
9 116155 172859 3205
10 41420 1B87.87 418 30
m 139228 Zr226 .
2 057 . .
& 10586 913 090
B BO4 34 337.71 109.52
3968.7 2,536.76 B90.77
4420.75 280474 1,163.58
12 113002 B25.00 75.00
15 2 B24.45 5&2.00 810.08
395457 1,387.00 B85.08
15 25.93 37.94 48.97
16 - 2.81 -
17 13.20 8.76 3.99
7 . 1.13 1.57
24913 50.64 54.53
5 120 .03 T3
&
4275 Boa2 .
21068 1195.48 13210
& Q66 - 2
B 4531 41.53 nea
T7 a2 0.03 oot
20 4552 291 8914
4£27.05 1326710 22337
46618 1,477.74 27790
o iy 2, B04&. T4 L1658
sd/- sd/-
Yashpal Sharma Himanshu Chhabra
Director Dhirector
DM - 00520359 DN - 09018796

Place:New Delhi
Date: May 28, 2025

sd /-

Megha Verma
Company Secretary

Membership Number- AB3E50

Place:New Delhi
Date: May 28, 2025

Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)

CIN: UB3030DL2020PLC372878
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated
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BracelPort

TIGS LIMITED
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Particulars Motes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
|  Income
Revenue from operations A 855820 550043
Other income P 93.65 2416
Total income () 8,651.85 EE2459
Il Expenses
Cost of services rendered 23 730290 459583
Employee benefits expense 24 18287 120.03
Finance costs 25 2656 9.66
Depreciation and amortization expense 26 3193 15.40
Other expenses 27 18167 103.69
Total expenses (ll) 7,12593 4,844.61
Il Profit before tax (I-1) 92592 67998
'V Tax Expense:
Current tax 28 .l N 177.66
Deferred tax 28 (1.96) {024)
Total tax expense (IV) 239.81 177.42
v Profit for the year (lll- IV) 686.1 502.56
VI Other comprehensive income / (loss)
(1) Itermns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement gain / (loss) of the defined benefit plan 095 (0.85)
- Income tax relating to these items (0.24) 021
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year (i) 0. (0.64)
VIl Total comprehensive income [ (loss) for the year [V+VI) 686.82 501.92
Earnings per equity share of face value of INR 10 each
Basic EPS (in INR) 681 6,09
Diluted EPS (in INR) 6.81 6,09
The above standalone statement of profit and loss should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes.
sd/- sd/- gd /- sd/-
per Mohit Gupta Sachin Arora Yashpal Sharma Himanshu Chhabra
Partner Managing Director Director Directar
Mernbership No. 528337 DiIN - OB3952681 DIN - 00520259 DiIN - 09018796

UDIN: 2552833 7BMLNAGS204
Blace: Mew Dalhi
Date: May 28, 2025

Place:Mew Delhl
Date: May 28, 2025

Place:Mew Delhi
Cate: May 28, 2025

sd/-

Radhakrishnan pattiyll Mair
Chief Financial Officer
PAN: ADNENBE593K

Place:Mew Dealhl
Date: May 28, 2025

Place:Mew Delhl
Date: May 28, 2025

sd/-

Megha Verma
Company Secretary
Membership Mumber:- ABIE50

Place:Mew Delhl
Date: May 28, 2025

PlaceMew Delhi

Date: May 28, 2025
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Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)
CIN: U63030DL2020PLC372878

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

2.01

2.02

2.03

2.04

Corporate information

Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited) ("hereinafter referred to the
Company”) was incorporated on November 07, 2020. It is a subsidiary company of Skyways Air Services Limited. The
registered office of the Company is located at A-390 B, 2Nd Floor, A-Block, Road No 2, Mahipalpur Extn., Mahipalpur,
MNew Delhi -110037, India, which has been shifted during the year from its earlier registered office at A-182, Mahipalpur
Extension, 5, Road No 4, Mahipalpur, South Delhi, New Delhi-110037.

The company is engaged in providing integrated logistics solutions other specialised logistics services and logistics
operations. These standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 are approved by the Board of
Directors in its meeting held on May 28, 2025.

Summary of material accounting policies

This note provides a list of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Indian Accounting
standards (Ind-AS) standalone financial staterments. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years.

Statement of compliance and basis of preparation

The standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time
to time) and presentation and disclosure requirements of Division |l of Schedule 1l to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind
AS compliant Schedule Ill) as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting principles generally
accepted in India.

The standalone financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lacs, except
when otherwise stated.

Basis of presentation and preparation of separate standalone financial statements

The standalone financial staterments have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurerment and/or disclosure
purposes in these standalone financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 116 'Leases' and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value or value in use in Ind AS 36 'lmpairment of Assets..

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are cbservable and the significance of the inputs to the

fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

- Level 1inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly, and

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

Basis of measurement

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis using historical cost convention
and on an accrual method of accounting.

Current and non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
asset is treated as current when it is:

BracePort
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Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)
CIN: U63030DL2020PLC372878

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

2.05

2.06

2.07

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

Vv V Vv ¥

All other assets are classified as non-current. A liability is current when:

=  [|tisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle

=  |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading

= It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

=  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the report-
ing period

Current assets/liabilities include current portion of non-current financial assets/liabilities respectively. All other assets/
liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and
liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Recent accounting pronouncement

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. These
amendments are as follows:

(i) Lease liability in sale and leaseback transaction- Amendments to Ind AS T16:

The amendment to Ind AS 116 introduces new guidance for seller-lessees in sale and leaseback transactions. It speci-
fies that after the commencement date, seller-lessees must apply certain paragraphs to the right-of-use asset and
lease liability, ensuring no gain or loss is recognized for the right of use retained. Additionally, the amendment
includes new paragraphs in Appendix C, effective from April 1, 2024, requiring retrospective application to relevant
transactions. This aims to standardize the accounting treatment and enhance clarity in financial reporting for these
transactions.

(ii) Introduction of new Ind AS 117, Insurance contracts:

The amendment introduced new Ind AS 117, which provides comprehensive guidance on the accounting for
insurance contracts. This new standard is to apply for annual reporting periods starting on or after April 1, 2024. Ind
AS 117 aims to enhance transparency and comparability in standalone financial statements by standardising the
recognition, measurement, presentation, and disclosure of insurance contracts. The amendments had no significant
impact on the Company's standalone financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

These standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the functional currency of the
Company.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimat-
ed cutomer returns, rebates, trade discounts and other similar allowances.

The new revenue standard supersedes current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. This new standard
requires revenue to be recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in amounts that
reflect the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Sale of services

Incomes from multimodal transport services rendered are recognised on the completion of the services as per the
terms of contract. Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transac-
tion price (net of variable consideration) allocated to that performmance obligation. The transaction price of services
rendered is net of variable consideration on account of various discounts offered by the Company as part of the
contract.

Other income
Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis with reference to effective interest rate method.
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2.08 Cash flow statement

2.09

2.10

Cash flows are reported using indirect method as set out in Ind AS -7 “Statement of Cash Flows", whereby profit/loss
before extraordinary items and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities
of the Company are segregated based on the available information.

Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impair-
ment losses.

The initial cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-re-
fundable purchase taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to working condition and location
for its intended use. It also includes the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restor-
ing the site on which it is located, wherever applicable. Items such as spares are capitalized when they meet the
definition of property, plant and egquipment.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and eguipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. Likewise, on initial recognition, expendi-
ture to be incurred towards major inspections and overhauls are identified as a separate component and depreciat-
ed over the expected period till the next overhaul expenditure.

Subsequent costs and disposal

Subseguent expenditure related to an item of property, plant and eguipment is added to its book value only if it
increases the future economic benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of perfor-
mance/life. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including day-to-day repair and mainte-
nance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the period during
which such expenses are incurred.

GCains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and egquipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds fromn disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment, and are recognized net within
other income/other expenses in statement of profit and loss.

DCepreciation and amortisation

Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method (SLM) to allocate
their cost, net of their residual values, as per useful life prescribed in Schedule Il to the Act. Management's assess-
ment of independent technical evaluation/advice takes into account, inter alia, the nature of the assets, the estimat-
ed usage of the assets, the operating conditions of the assets, past history of replacement and maintenance support.
The depreciation method, asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period prospectively.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on prorata basis on straight-line method using the
useful lives of the assets estimated by management. The useful life is as follows:

Assets Useful life (in years)
Computers 3 - b years

Office Equipments 5-15 years
Furniture & Fixtures 10 years

Electrical EQuipments 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is dereocgnised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and is recognised in staterment of profit Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed
at each financial year and changes in estimates, if any, are accounted for prospectively.
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2.11

2.12

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of all of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication based on internal/ external factors that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the assets for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss,

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the assets (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
statement of profit and loss.

Borrowing costs directly relating to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying capital project under
construction are capitalised and added to the project cost during construction until such time that the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use i.e. when they are capable of commercial production. Where funds are
borrowed specifically to finance a project, the amount capitalised represents the actual borrowing costs incurred.
Where surplus funds are available out of money borrowed specifically to finance a project, the income generated
from such current investments is deducted from the total capitalized borrowing cost. Where the funds used to
finance a project form part of general borrowings, the amount capitalised is calculated using a weighted average of
rates applicable to relevant general borrowings of the company during the year. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended and charged to profit and loss during the extended periods when the active development on the qualify-
iNng assets is interrupted.

Employee benefits

Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund and compensated
absences,

efine ibution pla
The Company's contribution to provident fund and employee state insurance scheme are considered as defined
contribution plans and are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required to be made and
when services are rendered by the employees,

Defined benefit plans

The Company has a defined benefit plan (the "Gratuity Plan”). The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to
employees who have completed five years or more of service at retirement, disability or termination of employment,
being an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with
the Company.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows
by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximat-
ing to the terms of the related obligation. The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the balance
of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and
loss.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratuity plan is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuar-
ies using the projected unit credit
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2.13

Short-term employee benefits

The undiscounted amount of short-termm employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the services
rendered by employees are recognised during the year when the employees render the service. These benefits
include compensated absences which are expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in
which the employee renders the related service.

The cost of short-term compensated absences is accounted as under:
(a) incase of accumulated compensated absences, when employees render the services that increase their entitle-
ment of future compensated absences; and

(b) incase of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur. Long-term employee benefits
Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which
the employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as at the balance sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to
statement of profit and loss. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in the staterment of profit and loss as past service cost.

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for land and building. The Company applies a single
recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e, the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impair-
ment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the building (i.e. 30 and 60 years) If ownership of
the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject
to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 'Impairment of non-financial assets.

i) Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of
a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g, changes to future payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have
a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies
the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.
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2.15

2.16

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordi-
nary items, if any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings
per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if
any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating
to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the
conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conver-
sion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive
equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented. The number of
equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for share splits / reverse share splits and bonus
shares, as appropriate.

Taxes on income

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in statement of profit and loss except to the
extent that it relates items recognised directly in equity or in Other Comprehensive Income.

Current income tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from "profit before tax’ as report-
ed in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pericd.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if, the Company:
i) hasa legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
i) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the Balance sheet method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted

at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets

against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprenhensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obliga-
tion and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of
a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented
in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.
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2.17

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future
cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Unwinding of the discount is
recognized in statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and are
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non- occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a
present obligation that is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognised because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the standalone financial statements.

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Compa-
ny. There are certain obligations which management has concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances,
are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quantify reliably, and such obligations are treated as Contingent
liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as liabilities in the standalone financial statements.
Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings in which the Company
involved, it is not expected that such contingencies will have a material effect on its financial position or profitability.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the standalone financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attribut-
able to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through staterment of profit and loss are recognised immediately in
statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value,
depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment
loss (except for debt investments that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

+ the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

+ the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.

Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significant-
ly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise frorn measuring assets or liabilities or recog-
nising the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses
arising on re- measurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss is included in
the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.

Changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Changes in the carrying amount of FWTOCI| monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates
are recognised in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investrments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign
currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

However, for trade receivables or contract assets that result in relation to revenue from contracts with customers, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument
instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable informa-
tion, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial On derecognition of a financial asset in
its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and accumu-
lated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss
on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to repur-
chase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involverment, and the part it no longer recognises on
the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part no
longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognized in profit or loss on
disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income
is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the basis
of the relative fair values of those parts.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments Classification
as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as eqguity in accor-
dance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FVTPL.
However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or when
the continuing involvernment approach applies, financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company, and commit-
ments issued by the Company to provide a loan at below-market interest rate are measured in accordance with the
specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as
at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either held for trading or it is designated as
at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

- it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing it in the near term; or

- on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Company manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

- it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recogni-
tion if:

»such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would other-
wise arise; or

- the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and
its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Company's documented risk management
or investment strategy, and information about the Company is provided internally on that basis; or

- it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and Ind AS 102 permits the entire
combined contract to be designated as at FVTPL in accordance with Ind AS 109,

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
statement of profit and loss. The net gain or loss recognised in statement of profit and loss incorporates any interest
paid on the financial liability and is included in the 'other gains and losses' line item.

However, for non-held-for-trading financial liabilities that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in the
fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other compre-
hensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in statement of profit and loss. The remaining
amount of change in the fair value of liability is recognised in staterment of profit and loss. Changes in fair value attrib-
utable to a financial liability's credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive income are not subsequently
reclassified to statement of profit and loss.,

Gains or losses on financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments issued by the Company that are designated
by the Company as at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised cost
at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently
measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'finance costs' line item.
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The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of
each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the
instruments and are recognised in the ‘other gains and losses' line item in the statement of profit and loss.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and
translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FVTPL,
the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or they expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liakility derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in statement of profit and loss,

Derivative financial intruments

The Company uses derivative forward contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks. Such derivative financial instru-
ments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which derivative contract is entered into and are subse-
qguently re-measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when
the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or

Operating cycle

Based on the nature of the operations and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the
purpose of current non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of these standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of these
standalone financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses for the years presented. Actual
results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions and conditions,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and future periods affected.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgments in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the standalone financial
staterments are included in the following

Critical estimates and judgements in applying accounting policies

The folowing are the critical judgements, apart from those estimations that the management has made in the
process pf applying the Company Accounting Policies and that have most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the standalone financial statements.

Provisions and contingencies

The significant capital commmitments in relation to various capital projects are not recognized in the balance sheet. In
the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the Company.
Guarantees are also provided in the normal course of business. There are certain obligations which management has
concluded, based on all available facts and circumstances, are not probable of payment or are very difficult to quanti-
fy reliably, and such obligations are treated as contingent liabilities and disclosed in the notes but are not reflected as
liabilities in the standalone financial statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of
the legal proceedings in which the Company involved, it is not expected that such contingencies will have a material
effect on its financial position or profitability.
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Fair value measurement of financial instruments

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The fair
values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet in respect of which quoted price in
active markets are available are measured using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing
fair values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial

Impairment of assets

In assessing the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets for impairment, factors leading to significant
reduction in profits such as changes in commeaodity prices, the Company's business plans and changes in regulatory
environment are taken into consideration. The carrying value of the assets of a cash generating unit (CGU) is
compared with the recoverable amount of those assets, that is, the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. Recoverable value is based on the management estimates of commmeodity prices, market demand and supply,
economic and regulatory climates, long-term plan, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to
cash flow due to changes in the abovementioned factors could impact the carrying value of the assets.

Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as disclosed above are depreciated over their useful economic
lives. Management reviews the useful economic lives at least once a year and any changes could affect the deprecia-
tion rates prospectively and hence the asset carrying values. The Company also reviews its property, plant and equip-
ment, for possible impairment if there are events or changes in circumstances that indicate that carrying values of
the assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the property, plant and equipment for impairment, factors leading to
significant reduction in profits such as changes in commeodity prices, the Company's business plans and changes in
regulatory environment are taken into consideration.

The carrying value of the assets of a cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the recoverable amount of those
assets, that is, the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Recoverable value is based on the
management estimates of commodity prices, market demand and supply, economic and regulatory climates,
long-term plan, discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above
mentioned factors could impact the carrying value of the assets.

Contingencies and commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation, taxation and other claims against the
Company. A tax provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Company will be required to settle that obligation.

Where it is management’s assessment that the outcome cannot be reliably guantified or is uncertain the claims are
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the likelihood of an adverse outcome is remote. Such liabilities are disclosed
in the notes but are not provided for in the standalone financial statements.

When considering the classification of a legal or tax cases as probable, possible or remote there is judgement
involved. This pertains to the application of the legislation, which in certain cases is based upon management's
interpretation of country specific tax.

2.20 Key sources of estimation uncertaininty

(a) Fairvalue measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes. The Board of
directors of the Company has designated the Chief Financial Officer of the Company determines the appropriate
valuation technigues and inputs for fair value measurements.

(b) Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of business relationships and the long-term
nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the
assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and
expense already recorded. The firmm establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such
provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax
regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a
wide variety of issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective domicile of the companies.
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(c) Impairment of Financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. the firm uses judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calcu-
lation, based on firm's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period.

(d) Impairment of non-Financial assets

The firm assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the firm estimates the asset's
recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of
disposal and its value in use. It is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or firm's of assets. Where the carrying amount
of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborat-
ed by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.

2.21 Standards issued but not effective
There are no standards that are issued but not yet effective on March 31, 2025,
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3 Property, plant and equipment
Furniture & Vehicles Electrical Office Computers Total
Fixture Equipments equipments
Gross carrying value:
Balance as at April 01, 2023 4.15 78.64 - 17.55 16.27 116.61
Additions 0.81 - - 956 .09 21.46
Disposals/adjustments ’ & ? 4 ’ %
Balance as at March 31, 2024 4.96 78.64 - 27.1 27.36 138.07
Additions - 2720 717 4.80 533 4450
Disposals/adjustments - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 4.96 105.84 7.7 31.91 32.69 182.57
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at April 01, 2023 - - - - - -
Depreciation charge (refer note 26) 050 9.46 - 214 330 15.40
Disposals/adjustments - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 0.50 9.46 - 214 3.30 15.40
Depreciation charge (refer note 26) 057 10.85 0.18 3.20 542 20.22
Disposals/adjustments - - - - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 1.07 20.31 0.18 5.34 8.72 35.62
Net carrying value:
Balance as at April 01, 2023 415 78.64 - 17.55 16.27 16.61
Balance as at March 31, 2024 4.46 69.18 - 2497 24.06 122.67
Balance as at March 31, 2025 3.89 85.53 ©.99 26.57 2397 146.95

Note:

1. Disclosure ofadrzacyaistoomofirneamesty, plant and equipment has been provided in note 29.
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Intangible assets under development

Intangible assets

under
Gross carrying value :
Balance as at April 01, 2023 -
Additions 67.93
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 67.93
Additions 107.77
Disposals -
Balance as at March 31, 2025 175.70
Accumulated depreciation :
Balance as at April 01, 2023 -
Armortisation expense (refer note 26) -
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2024 -
Amortisation expense (refer note 26) -
Disposals
Balance as at March 31, 2025 -
Net carrying value :
Balance as at April 01, 2023 -
Balance as at March 31, 2024 6793
Balance as at March 31, 2025 175.70
4.1 Intangible asset under development ageing
As at March 31, 2025
Amount in Intangible asset under development for a period o Total
Particulars Less than1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
i. Projects in progress 107.77 6793 17570
Total 107.77 67.93 - - 175.70
As at March 31, 2024
Amount in Intangible asset under development for a period o Total
Particulars Lessthan1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
l. Projects in progress 67.93 - - 6793
Total 67.93 - - = 67.93
As at April 01, 2023
Amount in Intangible asset under development for a period o Total
Particulars Lessthan1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years

l. Projects in progress

Total

Note:

1. Disclosure of contractual commitments for the acquisition of intangible assets under

development has been provided in note 29.
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5 Right-of-use assets

a) This note provide information for leases where the Company is a lessee.

Leasehold Containers Total

Balance as at April 01, 2023 - 5
Additions - -
Disposals . 2

Balance as at March 31, 2024 - =

Additions 5828 58.28
Disposals - -

Balance as at March 31, 2025 58.28 58.28

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance as at April 01, 2023 Depreciation - -
charge (refer note 26) Disposals - -

Balance as at March 31, 2024 - E

Depreciation charge (refer note 26) NnN.71 N7
Disposals - -

Balance as at March 31, 2025 .71 11.71

Net carrying value : Balance
as at April 01,2023 - .

Balance as at March 31, 2024 - 5
Balance as at March 31, 2025 46.57 46.57

BracelPort
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As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
& Other financial assets
(carried at amortised cost)
Hon Current
{unsecured and considered good)
Fixed deposits with original maturity of more than twelve months (refer note (a) below) 8084 7554 15560
BOBS Too% 155.60
_—
Current
(unsecured and considered good)
Security deposits 2925 180 090
Unbilled revenue &6.51 753
105.86 933 0.90

Motes:
a. It includes interest accrued of INR 5.84 lacs, INR 0.54 lacs
and INR 0.03 lacs as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April O1, 2023 respectiehy.

7 Deferred tax balances

March 31, 2025

As at

As at

Az at
March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

Deferred tax liabilities (5.62) (4.45) (2.49)
Deferred tax assets &2 332 0oz
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) {net) 0.59 [113) [.57)
For the year ended March 31, 2025 Opening Balance Recognised/ Recognised/
d) in Profi d) in Closing
(reversed) in Profit (reversed) u'r.hur Lalinte
or loss comprehensive
Income
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Accelerated depreciation and amortisation for tax purposes (4.45) 0.17) (562
{4.45) 17 - (5.62)
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits 22 138 (0.24) 335
Allowance for expected credit loss 245 - 2l&
Bonus payable . 072 a7z
Preliminary expenses 10 (010 .
Dthers 1o (1.01) - -
3.32 % = [0.24] 621
Deferred tax (liabilities)/ assets (net) [1.13) 196 [0.24) 059
For the year ended March 31, 2024 Opening Balance Recognised/ Recognised/ Closing
(reversed) in Profit (reversed) in other balance
or loss comprehensive
Income
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Accelerated depreciation and amortisation for tax purposes (2.49) (1.96) (4.45)
[2.45) (1.96) - [4.45)
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits 092 1.08 oA 22
Preliminary expanses 0.0 010
Others . 1.0 - 100
0.52 219 0.21 I32
Deferred tax (liabilities)/ assets (net) (1.57) 028 0.21 (113)
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For the year ended April 01, 2023 Opening Balance Recognised/ Recognised/ Closing balance
(reversed) in Profit (reversed) in other
or loss comprehensive
Income
Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Accelerated depreciation and amortisation (0.24) 225 £9
for tax purposes [0.24) éﬂsi' = [ELIEI'
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits 0.81 052 (0.4 092
0.81 052 (0.41 0.92
Deferred tax (liabilities)/ assets (net) 0.57 1.73) {0.41) (1.57)
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01,2023
Other assets
Hon Current
{unsecured and considered good)
Prepaid expenses 139 184 .
39 164 x
As at As at As at
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 01,2023
Current
{unsecured and considered good)
Prepaid expenses (refer note (a) below) al7 22.49 -
Advances to vendors (refer note (b) below) 69,41 T.B5 g
Advances to employees - 173 314
Balances with Government authorities Bl0.24 I00.64 102,47
Other receivables g52 . .
89434 3701 T09.52

Notes:
(a) Prepaid expense includes INR
in subsequent period on completion of IPO.

(b) Advance to vendors include due to

Nil, INR 21.89 lacs and INR Nil March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023 respectively towards IPO expense which will be charged to Other equity
related parties INR 0.04 lacs, INR Nil and INR Nil as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023 respectively.

Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)

CIN: UG3030DL2020PLC372878
Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated
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Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31,2024 April 01, 2023
9  Trade receivables

Unsecured
Considerad good 1,029.0& T&H0.03 36205
Considered credit impaired B850 - -
Considered good - Related Parties (refer note 35) 12249 =2 -

1,170.05 1,729.59 36205
Less: allowance against expected credit loss [B.50) -

TTELEE 172555 36205
91 TrageR as
10eIng Echadule
As at March 31, 2025 N -
Particulars Current but Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
not due Lessthan 6 & months =1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considerad go S2 140 58757 21.00 13158 - - 1,161.55

Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have - = - - - = 2
significant increase in credit risk
Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired - - . - = - -

Disputed Trade receables - considered good

Disputed Trade receivables - which have - - - - - - -
significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - -
Total LI40 EE7.57 28,50 131.58 - - 1,170.65

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Current but Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
not due Less than 6 & months -1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered go - 172524 435 - - - 1,729.59

Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have - - - - - - -

significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired - = : B - - =

Disputed Trade recenables - considerad good

Disputed Trade recemvables - which have - -

significant increase in credit risk

Disputed Trade receiqables - credit impaired - = = = - = =

Total = 1, 72524 .35 - = - 1,725.55

As at April 01, 2023

Particulars Current but Outstanding for followlng periods from due date of payment Less Total
not due than & & months =1 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3 years

Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered go - 36205 - - - - 362.05

Undisputed Trade Recaivables - which hawve - - - - - - =

significant increase in credit risk

Undisputed Trade receivable - credit impaired = < : < E = =

Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - = - = - = -

Disputed Trade receivables - which have - - - - - - -

significant increase in credit riek

Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - -

Total - 362.05 - - - - 362.05

a. Trade receivables represents the amount of consideration in exchange of services transferred to the customers that B unconditional.

The average credit period to customers ranges bebween &5 1o 60 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables upto the due date from the date of the Invoice.
c. The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected cradit loss allowance
for trade recelvables based on historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking

o

d. Movement in allowance forexpected credit loss: Year ended Yearended Year ended
March 51, 2025 March 31, 2034 AEI‘II 01, 2023

Balance at the beginning  of the yvear

Provision for expected credit losses recognised during the year (refer note Z7) 850 = =
Balance atthe end of the year B.50 - s
Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
10 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
- @n current account 393,08 18041 HILTT
- Dividend Account 750 - -
- in overdraft account 109 103 593
Cash in hand (including imprest) G54 e37 055
41421 187.87 418.30
Mote:
a. There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior period.
As at Asat As at
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

N Other bank balances [carriedt amortised cost)

Current
Fixed deposits with orginal maturity of more than three months but remaining maturity of less than twelve
months [refer notes below) 139228 TT226 "

i PTG .

Mote:

a. It Includes interest accrued of INR 27.65 lacs, IMR 16.26 lacs and INR Nil as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and &pril 07, 2023 respectively.

b. It Includes fixed deposit lien marked with banks of INR 10000 lacs and INR100.00 lacs and INR Mil as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 arnd April 07, 2023 respactivaly.
c. Short-term deposits are made of varving periods between 3 to 12 months depending

on the cash requirements of the Company and eam interest at the respective short-term deposits rates.
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HAs at
March 321, 2025

12 Loans

13

Current
{unsecured and considered good - carried at amortised cost)
Loan to employees (refer notes below) 047

Motes:
(a). The loans dassified as current are repayable on demand and expectation of management to release them in next financd year.
(b). It includes interest accrued of INR Nil lacs, INR Nil and INR Nil as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023 respectively.

(c). Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost:

As at
March 31, 2025
Other financial assets (non-current) 80.84
Trade receivables (current) 1,161.55
Cash and cash equivalents {current) 414,21
Other bank balances {cuwrent) 1,392.28
Loans {current) 0.47
Other financial assets (current) 105.86
As at
March 31, 2025
Share capital
Authorised
1,50,00,000 equity shares of INR 10 each
(March 31, 2024 : 1,50,00,000 equity shares of INR. 10 each) 1,500.00

(A pril 01, 2023 - 7.60,000 equity shares ofl INR 10 each)

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

1,13,01,200 equity shares of INR 10 each

(March 31, 2024 : 82,50,000 equity shares of INR 10 each) 1,130.12
(April 01, 2023 : 7,50,000 equity shares of INR. 10 sach)

1,130.12

Motes:

Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

Az at
March 31, 2024

BAs at
April 01, 2023

Axs at As at
March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
75.54 155.60
1,729.59 362.05
187.87 418.320
272,26 =
9,33 0.90
As at As at

March 31, 2024

April 01, 2023

1,500.00 75,00
825.00 73.00
825.00 F3.00

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Carmpany
declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is. subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting. In the event of liguidation of the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential

amaunts. The distribution will be in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

(ii} Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:
Issued equity capital
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Particulars Humber Amount Humber Amount NHumber Amount
Equity shares outstanding
at the beginning of the yvear B250,000D 82500 7.50,000 TEOD T 50,000 7500
Add : Issued during the vear 30,551,200 20512 7500000 TS0.00 - -
Equity shares outstanding 1,13,01,200 113032 B82.50,000 825.00 7.50,000 T5.00
at the end of the year
(iii} Sharesheld by each shareholder holding
more than 5 percent shares: As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01,2023
— Mumbers Wholding  Numbers 9% holding Humbers o holding
Equity shares
Skyways Air Services Limited 5773900 51.09% 5773800 59.59% 570,000 76005
Sachin Arora 1732500 1533% 1732500 21.00% 157,500 21.00%
[{iv) Shares held by each promoter [as per section 2(69) of the Companies Act, 2013]:
Disclosure of shareholding of prometer as at March 31, 2025 is as follows:
5. Name As at As at Change during the % change during
Mo. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 wear the year
Humber of shares % of total shares  MNumber of % of total shares
held shares held
1 Skyways Alr Services Limited 5773900 51.09% 5773900 £9.99% - S12890%
2 Sachin Arora 1732500 1535% 1732500 21.00% - 56T
3 Rishi Trehan 247500 219% 2,47500 3.00% - -081%
& Yash pal Sharma B4, 700 O.75% 84,700 103% - -0.28%
5 Tarun Sharma 845700 5% B, 700 1.05% - -0.28%
79,23.300 T0.11% 79,23.300 96.0:4%

(v)

(wi)

[wii)

Increase in authorised share capital

Crurireg the previous year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has In aggregate Increased ks authorised Equity Share Capltal by INR 1,424.00 lacs consist of 14240 000 equity shares of

IMR ¥y each. vide Sharehoiders’ approval at Extracrdinary Seneral Meeting [EGSM] held on April 24, 2023,

Cwurlng the year ended March 3, 2025, the company hasoffered through the initlal Public Offer (IPO} 30,51, 200 eqgulty shares hawving face value of INR10/- each at an issue price of INR B0 per

exquity shere. On August 26, 2024, the egulty shares of the Company were got llsted on MSE Emerge.

Duurlng the presdous year ended March 31, 20024, the company has alloted 75,00,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each as fully pald bonus shares In progortion of 101 vide shareholder's approval

at Extracrdinary Ceneral Meeting (EGK|) hald on Awgust 25, 2023,
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As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
14 Other equity
Securities premium (refer note 14.1) 1,763.5] - -
Retained earnings (refer note 14.2) 1,06094 562.00 810.08
2.824.45 262.00 810.08
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
141  Securities premium
Balance at the beginning of the year - - -
Add : Issued during the year 213584 - -
Less: Share issue expenses (372.33) - -
Balance at the end of the year 1,763.51 - -
Mature and purpose of reserve:
Securities premium is used to record premium on issue of shares. The reserves can be utilised only for limited purposes in
accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
14.2 Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year 562.00 810.08 34683
Profit for the year BE6.11 502.56 612.05
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 0.71 (0.64) 120
Issue of bonus shares - (750.00) -
Interim Dividend paid on equity shares (187.88) - (150.00)
Balance at the end of the year 1,060.94 562.00 810.08

Nature and purpose of reserve:

Retained earnings are the profits/(loss) that the Company has earned/incurred till date, less any transfers to general
reserve, dividends or other distributions paid to shareholders. Retained earnings include re-measurement loss / (gain) on
defined benefit plans, net of taxesthat will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders, is determined based on the
requirements of Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above are not distributable in entirety.
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As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

15 Borrowings

Non-current
(Secured, at amortised cost)

Vehicle loan (refer note (a)) 3794 4897 5910

Less: Current maturities of Vehicle Loan (12.01) {1.03) 1013)
25.93 37.94 48,97

Current

(Secured, valued at amortised cost)

Current maturities of Vehicle loan 12.00 .03 1013
12.01 11.03 10.13

Motes:

a. Secured by Hypothecation of respective Vehicles and are repayable in equated monthly instalments over the tenure of
loans of 60 months carries interest rate of 8.55%.

b.The company has been sanctioned a overdraft limit amounting to INR 20.00 lacs (Yes Bank), INR 100.00 lacs (IDFC Bank)
and INR 500.00 lacs (ICICI Bank), carrying interest rate of 0.75%(Margin) over and above FD rate against which INR Nil, INR
Nil and INR Nil is outstanding as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023 respectively. These facilities are secured
by Fixed deposit amounting to 110% of facility amount and Corporate Guarantee of its holding company i.e, Skyways Air
Services Limited and personal guarantee of Mr. Sudershan Lal Sharma, Mr. Yashpal Sharma and Mr. Tarun Sharma.

c. The Company has not defaulted on repayment of loans and interest during the year.

d. Changes in liability arising from financing activities:

Particulars Non Current Current
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024 March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Cpening balances 4897 5910 = =
Interest expense 1050 £.66 - -
Cash Inflows - - - -
Cash Outflows (1.03) {10.13) - -
Interest paid (10.50) (4.66) - -
Closing balances 37.94 48.97 - .

e. Quaterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the company with banks or financial institutions are in agree-
ment with the books of accounts except to the following on account of variance of entries posted in routine book closure
process which is normally concluded post filing of staterments with the banks. This does not have any impact on classifica-
tion of loan or any debt covenants:-

For the year ended March 31, 2025

Quarter ended Name of Bank Particulars Amount as per Amount as Discrepancy®*
books of reported in the
accounts quarterly
return/statemen
(A) (B) (A-B)

June 30, 2024 ICICI Bank Trade Receivable 152787 1,073.12 454,75
September 30, 202 ICICI Bank Trade Receivable 102693 1,089.07 (62.14)
December 31, 2024 ICICI| Bank Trade Receivable 1,007.89 1,034.13 (26.24)
March 31, 2025 ICICI Bank Trade Receivable 1161.55 1169.00 (7.45)
June 30, 2024 ICICI Bank Trade Payable 114058 37938 761.20
September 30, 202 ICICI Bank Trade Payable 349.03 17828 170.75
December 31, 2024 ICICI Banlk Trade Payable 181.65 178.20 3.45
March 31,2025 ICICI Bank Trade Payable 3343 216.39 97.04

*wvariance is on account of entries posted in routine book closure process which is normally concluded post filing of statements with the banks.
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As at As at As at

16 Other financial liabilities

MNen-current
Advance from employees for issue of shares under benefit scheme

Current
Trade/ security deposits

Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost:

Borrowings (non current)
Borrowings [current)

Trade payables [current)

Other financial liabilities [current)

17 Provisions

Non-current
Provision for employee benefits
Pravision for compensated absences
Provision for gratuity (net) (refer note 32)

Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences
Provision for gratuity (net) (refer note 32)

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

April 01, 2023

g 281 a4
- 2.8 -
9.66 = %
9.66 = =
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
2503 1794 4897
12.01 .03 1013
313,43 1,285.40 13210
9.66 - 4
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
119 : X
12.01 876 390
13.20 8.7¢ 3.99
002 z 2
020 0.03 0.01
oJZ 0.0% 0.01
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Asat Asat Asat
March 31,2025 = March 31,2024  _ AprilOL 2093
18 Trade payables
Current
i. Total outstanding dues of microenterprises and small enterprises (refer note 18 below) 4275 2392 -
il Total outstanding dues of creditors ather than micro enterprises and small enterprises Z70.68 1335.48 13210
S15.43 1,285.50 =210

18.1 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act

Infarmation as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, small and Mediurm Enterprises Developrment Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended March 31, 2025,
March 31, 2024 and April 07, 2023 s given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with

the Company.

(i) The principalamount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid toany supplier covered under MSMED Act:

- Principal amount

- Interest thereon

(i) The amount of Interest paid by the buver In terms of section 16, of the
MESMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier
beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

[iii) The amount of interest due and pavable for the period of delay In making
payment [which have been pald but beyond the appointed day during the
year) but without adding the interest specified under this Act

{iv]) The amount of interest accrued and rermaining unpaid at the end of each
accounting year

{v} The amount of further interest remaining due and pavable even in the
succeeding vears, until such date when the interest dues above are actually
paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

Dwe to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been determined to the extent such partes have bean identified
on the basis of information collected by the managerment. This has been relied upon by the auditor.

18.2 Trade Payable ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2025

42.73

845.92

Particulars Unbilled Dues

Mot dus

__Dutstanding for following periods from due date of payment ~  Total
Less than 1year  1-2years

2-Iyears More than 3 years

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprizses and small -

entarprses
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 585

enterpriges and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises -
and small enterprises

4275

24540

=R

4275

27068

“Totar S5.HS

28815

ToAS

& LSS

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Unbilled Dues

Mot due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small -
enterprses
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 090

enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises -
and small enterprises

8591

Less than 1 year  1-2years
401

1194.58

2-3years More than 3 years

Total a5 )

5T

T TSE5g

As at April 01,

Particulars Unbilled Dues

Qutstan far fo

Less thanlyear  1-2years

riods from due date of

Total

2-3years  More than I years

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small -

enterprses
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 080

enterprises and small enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -

Disputed dues of creditors other than micro enterprises -
and small enterprises

B0

Total 090

HNote:

a. Theaverage credit period on purchases s up to 20 days for the Company. The Company however ensuras that all payables are paid within the pre agreed credit period.
b. Trade Payables include due to related parties of INR 102,50 lacs, INR 118856 lacs and INR 32.93 lacs as at March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023 respactively.

c. The amounts are unsecured and non-interest bearing.

19 Other liabilities

Current

Contract llabilities
Statutory llabiities
Employes dues
Othars

20 Income tax llabilities

Current tax liabilities
Current tax liabilities {net of advance tax and TDS)

172

As at

2087
T8.84

4155

162
AL

LA

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Asat
April 01, 2023

&b 52

29N

(2= [
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21

21.1

(b)

(d)

Year ended
March 31, 2024

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customers

Sale of services 8558.20 5500.43
8,558.20 5,500.43

Disaggregated revenue information

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Segment

Type of goods/services Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(i) Type of service

Integrated Logistics Solutions 8,558.20 5500.43

Total revenue from contracts with customers 8,558.20 5,500.43

(ii) Geographical information

Within India 3,86291 279095

Outside India 4,695.29 2709.48

Total revenue from contracts with customers 8,558.20 5,500.43

(1i1) Timing of revenue recognition

Services transferred over the time 8,558.20 550043

Total revenue from contracts with customers 8,558.20 5,500.43

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price 8,72797 6,533.03
Adjustments:
Less: Credit note (169.77) (832 .60)
Revenue from contracts with customers 8,558.20 5,500.43
As at As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contract balances
Trade receivables (refer note 9) 1,161.55 1,729.59
Contract liabilities (refer note 19) 252 250

The average credit period to ranges between 45 to 60 days. No interest is charged on trade receivables upto the due date
fromn the date of the invoice.

Contract liabilities consist of short-term advances received against supply of services to customer. Such advances are
adjusted against supply of services within a range of 3 months from the reporting date and the revenue is recognised out
of the contract liabilities.

Performance obligations

Sales of services: The performance obligation in respect of services is satisfied over a period of time and acceptance of the
customer. In respect of these services, payment is generally due upon completion of services.

8,558.20 5,500.43

Total revenue from operations
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Year ended

Year ended

22 Other income

Interest income

Interest income earned on:
- bank deposits (at amortised cost)
-financial assets (at amortised cost)

Others
Liabilities written back
Gain on foreign currency transactions (net)

Total other income

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

62.38 20.09

0.07 0.05
62.45 20.14

2.53 0.02
28.67 £.00
31.20 4.02
93.65 24,16

Year ended
March 31,2025

Year ended
March 31,2024

23 Cost of services rendered

Purchase of Services

7,302.90

7,302.90

4,595.83

4,595.83

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31,2024

24 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other fund (refer note 32)
Gratuity expense (refer note 32)

Staff welfare expenses

25 Finance Costs

Interest expense on borrowings at amortised cost
Interest on delay deposit of income tax
Other finance costs

26 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 5)

167.75
B.41
427

LS

182.87

ma7
166
394
326

120.03

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31,2024

10.50
10.23
5.83

4.66

-

5.00

26.56

9.66

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31,2024

20.22
1n.71

15.40

-

31.93

15.40

27 Other expenses

Power and fuel
Rent

Repair and maintenance

- others
Insurance
Rates and taxes

Communication expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Printing and stationery
Commission and brokerage

Director sitting fees

Corporate social responsibility expenditure (refer note 36)
Legal and professional charges

Payments to auditors (refer note below)

Advertising and sales promotion expenses

Bank charges

Vehicle running and maintenance
Membership fees & Subscription
Allowance for expected credit loss on trade receivables (refer note 9)

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

Note:

Payments to auditors (excluding input tax)*

As auditor:
Audit fees
Tax audit fees
Other services

Reimbursement of expenses

*Does not include fees paid to auditors related to | PO,
which has been grouped under IPO expenses and charged directly to rese

Year ended
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 31, 2024

386 29]
3334 8.05
8.7 3.83
176 6.79
10.05 14.33
022 023
2918 13.80
364 372
2.00 -
120 -
13.00 9.00
920 7.80
985 1.00
1492 933
18.97 8.09
0.6 0.61
3.48 515
850 "
918 9.05
181.67 103.69
720 1.00
1.90 -
0.35 -
0.4C
9.85 1.00
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28

28.1

28.2

29

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Income taxes

Income tax recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current tax
In respect of the current year 24099 177 .66
In respect of the previous year 078 -

24177 177.66

Deferred tax
In respect of the current year (1.96) (0.24)
In respect of the previous year " <

(1.96) [0.24)

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 239.81 177.42
The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:
Accounting profit before tax 92592 67998
Statutory income tax rate 25.168% 25168%
Income tax expense at statutory income tax rate 233,04 17114
Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 599 6.28
Adjustments recognised in the current year in relation to the previous years 0.78 -

239.81 177.42
Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan (0.24) 0.21
Total income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income (0.24) 0.21
Note:
Effective tax rate has been calculated on profit before tax 25.90% 26.09%

Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Contingent Liabilities
The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial statements.

Commitments

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for are AED 0.45 lacs and
INR 3934 lacs, INR 14711 lacs and INR Nil as at March 31, 2025, March 31,2024 and April 01, 2023 respectively.

(b) The Company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there are any material
foreseeable losses.

Undrawn committed borrowing facility

The Company has availed working capital and overdraft facility from Yes Bank amounting to INR 90.00 lacs (March 31,
2024 INR 90.00 lacs and April 01, 2023: INR 90.00 lacs). This loan is secured by way of charge on Fixed Deposit amounting
to NMO% of facility utilize. An amount of INR 90.00 lacs (March 31, 2024: INR 90.00 lacs and April 01, 2023: INR 90.00 lacs)
remains undrawn as at the year end.

The Company has availed working capital and overdraft facility from |CICI Bank amounting to INR 500.00 lacs (March 31,
2024 INR 500.00 lacs and April 01, 2023 INR 500.00 lacs). This loan is secured by way of exclusive charge on current assets
of the company including fixed deposits of Skyways both present and future along with personal guarantee of Mr. Suder-
shan Lal Sharma, Mr. Yashpal Sharma and Mr. Tarun Sharma along with corporate guarantee from its holding company i.e.,
Skyways Air Services Limited. An amount of INR 500.00 lacs (March 31, 2024: INR 500.00 lacs and April 01, 2023: INR 500.00
lacs) remains undrawn as at the year end.

The Company has availed overdraft facility from IDFC Bank amounting to INR 100.00 lacs (March 31, 2024 INR 100.00 lacs

and April 01, 2023: INR Nil). This loan is secured by way of exclusive charge on fixed deposit with IDFC bank. An amount of
INR 100.00 lacs (March 31, 2024: INR 100.00 lacs and April 01, 2023: INR NIl) remains undrawn as at the year end.
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30.1

30.2

30.3

31

Segment Information

Description of Segment and principal activities

The operations of the Company are limited to one segment viz. integrated logistics solutions, other specialised logistics
services and logistics operations, which is as per Ind AS - 108 "Operating Segment" is considered the only reportable
segment. 5ince the company is having only one reportable segment hence disclosure requirement as per Ind AS108 is not
applicable.

Geographical Information

The following table provides an analysis of the Company’s sales by region in which the customer is located, irrespective of
origin of the services.

Revenue from operations
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Within India 2.B862.9] 2790.95
Outside India 469529 2.709.48
Total 8,558.20 5,500.43

Non-current assets*
As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Within India 370.61 192 44
QOutside India - -
Total 370.61 192.44

*Non-Current assets for this purpose excludes non-current investments and investments in associates, non-current
fimancial assets, income tax and deferred tax assets.

Major Customer

There are major customers which accounted for 10% or more of the Company's revenue amounting of INR 2,557.79 lacs and
INR 1,47528 lacs for the year ended March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 respectively.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding for the year. Diluted earnings per share has been computed using the weighted average number of
equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year.

Unit As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Met profit after tax INR lacs 68611 50256
Weighted average number of equity shares Number 1,00,72 361 82,50,000
outstanding during the year for basic earnings per

share

Weighted average number of equity shares Number 1,00,72 361 82 50,000
outstanding during the year for basic earnings per

share

Nominal value of equity shares INR 10.00 10.00
Basic earnings per share INR 6.81 6.092
Diluted earnings per share INR 6.81 6.09
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The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plan and amounts recognised in the Company’s financial statements:

Disclosures pursuant to Ind AS - 19 "Employee Benefits" (notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 (the Act)
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 (as amended from time to time) and other relevant

provision of the Act) are given below :

a. Contribution to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the year is as under:

The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and employee state insurance scheme to a defined contribu-
tion retirement benefit plan for qualifying employees. The Company's contribution to the Employees Provident Fund and
Employees State Insurance scheme is deposited with the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. Under the scheme, the
Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit scheme to fund the
benefits.

During the year, the Company has recognised INR 542 Lacs (March 31, 2024: INR 118 lacs) for Employer's contributions to
the Provident Fund and INR 0.32 Lacs (March 31, 2024: INR 0.21 lacs) for Employee State Insurance Scherme contribution in
the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contribution payable to the plan by the Company is at the rate specified in rules to
the scheme.

b. Defined benefit plan - Gratuity plan

The gratuity liability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death of an employee. The aforesaid liability is
calculated on the basis of fifteen days salary (i.e. last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service subject to
completion of five years service.

(i) Risks associated with Plan Provisions

Risks associated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks. These risks are:- (i) interest rate risk (discount rate risk), (ii)
mortality risk and (iii) salary growth risk.

Interest rate risk (discount rate risk) A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rate) will increase the plan liability

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of plan participants. For this report we have used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012- 14)

Mortality risk
ultimate table.

A change in mortality rate will have a bearing on the plan's liability.

Salar}.r gmwth risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated with the assumption of salary
increase rate of plan participants in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan
participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will

have a bearing on the plan's liability.

The gratuity liability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignation and death of an employee. The aforesaid liability is
calculated on the basis of fifteen days salary (i.e. last drawn basic salary) for each completed year of service subject to

completion of five years service.

(ii) Principal actuarial assumptions:
Principle actuarial assumption used to determine the present value of the benefit obligation are as follows:

S. Particulars Refer note below As at As at As at
No. March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

i. Discount rate (p.a.) 1 6.99% 7.22% 7.36%
il. Salaryescalation rate (p.a) 2 6.00% 6.00% 6.00%

Notes

1 The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date
for the estimated term of obligations.

2 The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors.

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
(iii) Demographic assumptions:
Retirement age 58 years 58 years 58 years
Mortality rate 100% of 1ALM 100% of 1ALM 100% of IALM
(2012 - 14) (2012 - 14) (2012 - 14)
Average remaining working life 2394 years 21.87 years 15.70 years
Number of employees 29 25 17
Attrition rate
- Service up to 30 years 3% 3% 3%
- Service from 31 to 44 years 2% 2% 2%
- Service above 44 years 19 1% 1%

a. Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefits plans are as follows:
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Current service cost 364 3.64 217
Net interest expenses 0.63 030 023
Components of defined benefit costs 4,27 3.94 2.40
b. Remeasurement (gain)/ loss recognised in other comprehensive income/(loss) :
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in demographic assumptions - - -
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in financial assumptions 0.3 013 (0.08)
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to change in experience variance (1.26) 072 (1.53)
Component of defined benefit costs (0.95) 0.85 (1.61)
The current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense' in the
statement of profit and loss. The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in the other comprehensive
income.
c. Net defined benefit asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet :
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation 121 879 4,00
Unfunded status - deficit 121 8.79 4.00
Current portion (refer note 17) 010 0.03 0.01
Non-current portion (refer note 17) 12.01 8.76 3.99
d. Movement in the fair value of the defined benefit obligation:
Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Opening defined benefit obligation 8.79 4,00 321
Current service cost 3.64 364 217
Interest cost 063 030 023
Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation (0.95) 085 (1.61)
Closing defined benefit obligations 121 8.79 4.00
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e. Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected
salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assump-
tions occurring at the end of the reporting year, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Particulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023

Discount Rate (

-Decrease 0775 058 026

-Increase (0.69) (0.53) (0.24)
Salary Growth Rate (

-Decrease (070) (0.54) (0.25)

-Increase 075 058 026

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation
as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in
calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the Balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis frorm prior years.

f. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefit obligation is as follows:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01,2023
Expected cash flows over the next
Within the next 12 months 010 0.03 0.01
Between 2 and 5 years 157 0.89 051
More than 5 years 1044 7.86 348
g. Expected Company contributions for the next year 5.42 878 4,00
h. Acturial assumptions on compensated absences
S. No.Particulars Refer note below As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01,2023
i. Discount rate (p.a.) 1 6.99% - -
ii. Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 3 6.00% - -
Notes

1 Thediscount rate is based on the prevailing market vields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date
for the estimated term of abligations.

2 The compensated absences plan is unfunded.

3 The estimates of future salary increase considered takes into account the inflation, seniority, promotion and other
relevant factors.
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Capital Management

For the purposes of Company's capital management, Capital includes eguity attributable to the equity holders of the Company and all other equity
reserves, The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to safeguard its ability to continue as going concern and to ensure that it
maintains an efficient capital structure and maximize shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023. Capital gearing ratio is net debt including lease liability
divided by total capital plus net debt and Net debt is calculated as loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalent.

The following table summarizes the capital structure of the Company:

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Debt including lease liability (a) 3794 4897 5910
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 10} 41421 187.87 £830
Total Cash (b) £146.21 187.87 41830
Net debt (c = (a-b)) (376.27) (138.90) (359.20)
Total equity 395457 1387.00 BE5.08

Capital and net debt
Gearing ratio [(net debt/capital and net debt) (10.52%:) (ML.13%6) (68.30%)

Financial Instruments

Financial risk management objective and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's
operations. The Company’s principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from its
operations.

The Company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company is exposed to market risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors and Audit Committee. This process provides
assurance to Company's senior management that the Company's financial risk-taking activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and
that financial risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company policies and Company risk objective.

Financial assets and liabilities:

The accounting classification of each category of financial instrurnents, and their carrying amounts, are set out below:

Mnr:hA:I:D:E. FVTPL FVTOCI Arortised Cost Total carrying value Total fair value
Financial assets
Trade receivables 118155 116155 1B155
Cash and cash equivalents 41421 4142 41421
Other Bank balances 139228 139228 1,292 28
Loans 047 047 047
Other financial assets 18870 18670 1870
Total 3,155.21 3,155.21 315521
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 3794 3794 3794
Trade payabies 3343 313.43 51343
Other financial liabilities Qeh Q66 =15
Total IE1.03 I61.03 I61.03

Az at ¥ =

March 31, 2024 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total carrying value Total fair value
Financial assets
Trade receivables 172959 172959 172959
Cash and cash equivalents 18787 187.87 187.87
Other Bank balances 27226 27226 27226
Other financial assets B4.87 B4.87 B4.87
Total 2 77459 227459 227459
Financial liabilities
Borrowings &B.97 £8497 4897
Trade payables 1285.40 128540 1,285.40
Other financial liabilities 281 281 281
Total 1337.18 133718 1337.18

As at

April 01,2023 FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised Cost Total carrying value Total fair value
Financial assets
Trade receivables I62.05 362.05 36205
Cash and cash equivalents 41830 418.30 41830
Other financial assets 156.50 156.50 15650
Total 536.85 §36.85 §36.85
Financial liabilities
Emmuings 5910 5910 5910
Trade payables 13210 13210 | 3 (]
Total 191.20 191.20 191.20
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B.

(i)

Fair value measurements

The management assessed that cash and cash eguivalents, other bank balances, trade receivables, trade payables, borrowings, other current financial
assets, loans and other current financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-terrmn maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of the other financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction

between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1) The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans from banks, other non-current financial assets and non-current financial liabilities is estimated by
discounting future cash flows using rates currently available for debt on similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The valuation requires
management to use unobservable inputs in the model, of which the significant unobservable inputs are disclosed in the tables below. Manage-
ment regularly assesses a range of reasonably possible alternatives for those significant unobservable inputs and determines their impact on the
total fair value.

2 The fair values of the Company's interest-bearing borrowings are determined by using effective interest rate (EIR) method using discount rate that

reflects the issuer's borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at March 31, 2025 was assessed to be insignifi-

cant

3) Long-term receivables/payables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, risk factors, individual creditwor-

thiness of the counterparty and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken into account for the

expected credit losses of these receivables,

4) Fair value hierarchy

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Lavel 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e, as prices) or indirectly (i.e,

derived from prices). Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data ([unobservable inputs

Fair value as at Fair value hierarchy Valuation
(Level) techniques and
key inputs
Financial assets As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April 01, 2023
Trade receivables 116155 172959 362.05 Level 3 see note | below
Cash and cash equivalents £4N 187.87 L1830 Leveall
Other Bank balances 139228 27226 : Lewvell
Loans 047 - . Level 3 sea note i below
Other financial assets 186.70 8487 156.50 Level 3 see note i below
Total Financial assets 355 2,2 74%.59 935.85
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 37594 £897 5910 Level 3 sea note i below
Trade payables 3343 128540 13270 Level 3 sea note i below
Other financial liabilities 966 281 . Level 3 sea note i below
Total Financial Liabilities 261.03 1,337.18 191320

i. In the absence of observable inputs to measure fair value the assets and liabilities have been classified as level 3. The Company has not given further
disclosures since the amount involved is The management considers that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities having short
term maturities recognised in the financial staterment approximates their fair values.

Risk management objectives
Risk management framework

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instrurnents:

- Market risk

- Liquidity risk

- Credit risk

The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed periodically to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training, standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by
internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported
to the audit committee.

Market risk :

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices
comprises three types of risk: currency rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial
instruments affected by market risks include loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and foreign currency receivables and payables. The sensitivity
analysis in the following sections relate to the position as at reporting date. The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the
carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assets and liabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant
Profit and Loss itermn and equity is the effect of the assurmed changes in the respective market risks. This is based on the financial assets and financial
liabilities held as of March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and April 01, 2023

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating activities (when revenue or
expense is denominated in foreign currency). Foreign currency exchange rate exposure is partly balanced by purchasing of goods from the respective
countries. The Company evaluates exchange rate exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows established risk management policies.

Foreign currency risk sensitivity
The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD, EUR & AED exchange rates, with all other variables held

constant. The impact on the Company profit before tax and equity is due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities. Foreign currency
exposures recognised by the Company that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as under:

Nature Currency As at Impact on profit before taxand equity
March 31, 2025
Foreign Currency Indian Rupees 1% increase 1% decrease
in Lacs. in Lacs. in Lacs. in Lacs.
Receivable Us Dollar (USD) 245 29519 2596 (2:96)
Receivable EURD [EUR) 020 18.46 018 (018)
Balances with banks US Dollar (USD) 21 18063 151 1.81)
Payable US Dollar (USD) 1M 146.01 (1.46) 146
Payable EUROD ([EUR) 0.01 123 (0.01) 0.01
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Nature Currency As at Impact on profit before tax and equity
March 31, 2024
Foreign Currency Indian Rupees 1% increase 1% decrease in
Lacs. in Lacs. in Lacs. in Lacs.
Receivable USs Dollar (USD) 3450 28376 284 (2.84)
Receivable EURO [EUR) omn 6433 064 (0.64)
Balances with banlks US Dollar {USD) 136 N3588 114 (174}
Balances with banks EURC [EUR) o2 1043 Q0 (00)
Cash in hand United Arab Emirates Dirham (AED) 005 A oo {0.on)
Payable US Dollar (USD) 104 8653 (0.87) 087
Payable EURO [EUR) 0.07 663 (0.07) 0.07
Nature Currency As at Impact on profit before tax and
April 01, 2023 equity
Foreign Currency Indian Rupees 1% increase 1% decrease in
Lacs. in Lacs. in Lacs. in Lacs.
Receivable US Dollar [USD) 179 14702 147 (1.47)
Balances with banks US Daollar (USD) 106 g7n 087 {0.87)
Balances with banks EURC ([EUR) oA 17 2N {0.00)
Payable US Dollar (USD) 083 6810 (0.68) 068
Payable EURO [EUR) 002 173 (0.02) 002

Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
exposure of the Company's financial liabilities to interest rate risk is as follows:

As at Closing balance Impact on profit or loss
. 1% increase 1% decrease
Borrowings (Impact on profit and loss) March 31, 2025 794 (0.38) 038
Borrowings (Impact on profit and loss) March 31, 2024 L8997 {0.49) 049
Borrowings (Impact on profit and loss) April 01, 2023 59.10 {059 059

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at reasonable price. The Company's
objective is to at all times maintain optimum levels of liguidity to meet its cash and liquidity requirements. The Company closely monitors its liquidity
position and deploys a robust cash management system. It maintains adeguate source of financing through the use of short term bank deposits, mutual
funds and cash credit facility. Processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Company's
liguidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to its debt
and concluded it to be low. The Company remains committed to maintaining a healthy liquidity, gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening our
balance sheet. The maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on the remaining period from the date of balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date is given in the table below. The figures reflect the contractual undiscounted cash obligation of the Company.

As at
March 31, 2025
Financial liabilities LessthanTyear T-Zyears Z2-5years More than & years Total
Borrowings (refer note 15)* 1479 1479 1256 - 4314
Trade payables (refer note 18) 313.43 - - - 313.43
Other financial liabilities (refer note 16) =17 . - . 56
337.88 14.79 - 366.23
As at
March 31, 2024
Financial liabilities Less than Tyear 1-2 years 2-Eyears More than 5 years Total
Borrowings (refer note 15)* 14.79 1479 2835 - 5793
Trade payables [refer note 18) 1,28540 - - - 128540
Other financial liabilities (refer note 16} - 28 - - 28
As at
April 01, 2023
Financial liabilities Lessthan1year 1-2Z years 2-BEyears More than 5 years Total
Borrowings [refer note 15)* 1479 1479 4314 . 7272
Trade payables [refer note 18) 13210 - - - 13210
146.89 14.79 4314 - 204.82

* It includes contractual interest payrnent based on interest rate prevailing at the end of the reporting period.
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LOGISTICS LIMITED

c) Credit risk

Credit Risk is the risk that the counter party will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The
Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks,
foreign exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

Possible credit risk Credit risk management

Credit risk related to trade receivables and loans Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the
Company's receivables from customers and investment securities. Credit risk is managed
through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring the
creditworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course
of business. The Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that
represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other receivables and
investrnents. The |locans advanced by the Company carries interest and are granted after
evaluating the purpose and credit worthiness of the counter party.

Moreover, given the diverse nature of the Company’s businesses trade receivables are spread
over a number of customers with no significant concentration of credit risk. No single
customer accounted for 10% or more of trade receivable on a % basis in any of the years
indicated.

Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference to the Company's normal
terms and conditions of business. These terms and conditions are determined on a case to
case basis with reference to the customer's credit quality and prevailing market conditions.
Receivables that are classified as 'past due' in the above tables are those that have not been
settled within the terms and conditions that have been agreed with that custorner.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on trade receivables by lifetime
expected credit loss method based on provision matrix. The maximum exposure to cradit risk
at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Company does
not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect
to trade receivables as low, asits customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries

Company holds bank balances with reputed and creditworthy banking institution within the
approved exposures limit of each bank. None of the Company's cash equivalents, including
time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired. Credit risk from balances with banks and
financial institutions is managed by the Company's treasury departrment in accordance with
the Company's policy. Investments of surplus funds are made in mutual funds, bank deposits
and other risk free securities. The limits are set to minimize the concentration of risks and
therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty's potential failure to make payments.

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk for the componenits of the balance sheet at

March 31, 2025 is the carrying amounts . The Company’s maximum exposure relating to
financial instrument is noted in liquidity table below.

Credit risk related to bank balances

Trade Receivables and other financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery,
such as debtor failing to engage in the repayment plan with the Company.

As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 April O1, 2023

Financial assets for which allowance is measured using 12 months Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)

Cash and cash equivalents £1420 187.87 41830
Other Bank balances 139228 27226 '
Loans 047 . .
Other financial assets 186.70 B84.87 15650
Financial assets for which allowance is measured using Life time Expected Credit Loss Method (ECL)

Trade receivables 116155 172858 26205
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35 Related party disclosures

List of related parties and relationships
i. List of related parties

Holding

Subsidiaries

Fellow Subsidiaries

Key Managerial Person (KMP)

Relative of Key Managerial Person

Others

Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control

Skyways Air Services Private Limited
Brace Port Logistics LLC

Skyways SLS Logistik CGMBH

Surgeport Logistics Private Limited

Phantom Express Private Limited

SLS Logistik Academy Private Limited

Skart Global Express Private Limited

Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (Vietham)
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited

Forin Container Line Private Limited

Skyways 5LS Cargo Services LLC UAE

Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong)

Rahat Continental Private Limited

RIV Worldwide Limited

Bolt Freight INC (Trade Name: RIV Worldwide INC])
SLS Retail Supermart Private Limited

Sachin Arora (Managing Director)

Rishi Trehan (Whole-Time Director)

Tarun Sharma (Director)

Yashpal Sharma (Director)

Himanshu Chhabra (Director)

Rohit Sehgal [Director)

Gunjan Kayastha Agarwal (Director w.e.f. 20.11.23)
Megha Aggarwal (Director w.e.f. 05.09.23)
Deepak Sonthaliya (Director w.e.f. 06.06.23)
Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair (CFO w.e.f. 20.05.23)
Megha Verma (Company Secretary w.ef. 20.05.23)

Sarla Arora

Daya Nand Arora
Love Kumar Trehan
Tejinder Kaur

Lata Gul Hariramani

Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (THB)

Zeal Global Services Limited
Pradhaan Air Express Private Limited
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ii. Transactions occurred during the year
Particular Relation Amount
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a. Sale of service
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 4,25 164.90
Surgeport Logistics Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 79.91 46624
Skyways SLS Logistik GMBH Fellow Subsidiaries - S96.91
Forin Container Line Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries - 147
Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC UAE Fellow Subsidiaries 1,561.91 61038
Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong) Fellow Subsidiaries - 12533
Rahat Continental Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries - 257.91
Bolt Freight INC Fellow Subsidiaries 17.56 509
Zeal Global Services Limited Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control - 25160
1,663.65 1,979.85
b. Purchase of service
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 946,73 1552.43
Phantorm Express Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 2763 14.52
Skart Global Express Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 241 13.04
Forin Container Line Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 359.56 21286
Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC UAE Fellow Subsidiaries 2552 137
Rahat Continental Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 505 -
Skyways SLS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong) Fellow Subsidiaries 626 154.58
RIV Worldwide Limited Fellow Subsidiaries - 273
Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (Vietnam) Fellow Subsidiaries 296 19.76
Bolt Freight INC Fellow Subsidiaries 16.77 -
RIV Worldwide Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 14.97 -
Skyways SLS Logistik Company Limited (THB) Others 1.96 -
Pradhaan Air Express Private Limited Enterprises Over which KMP hassignificant control  1,485.99 42742
Zeal Global Services Limited Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control - 36134
2,895.81 2,760.05
c. Software maintenance
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries - 0T
- on
d. Purchase of Intangible Assets
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 5091 289
50.91 289
e. Professional Charges
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 337 094
Daya Nand Arora Relation of Key Managerial Person - 275
3.37 460
f. Reimbursement paid
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 360 735
Brace Port Logistics LLC Subsidiaries 741 -
Sachin Arora Key Managerial Person 526 300
Rishi Trehan Key Managerial Person 119 245
Deepak Sonthaliya Key Managerial Person 0.04 -
Gunjan Kayastha Agarwal Key Managerial Person 0.04 -
Megha Aggarwal Key Managerial Person 0.04 -
17.58 12.80
g. Dividend paid
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding N5.48 -
Sachin Arora Key Managerial Person 34,65 -
Rishi Trehan Key Managerial Person 495 -
Tarun Sharma Key Managerial Person 1.69 -
Yashpal Sharma Key Managerial Person 1.69 -
Himanshu Chhabra Key Managerial Person 1.69 -
Rohit Sehgal Key Managerial Person 1.69 -
Tel.B& -
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
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ii. Transactions occurred during the year
Particular Relation Amount
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
h. Rent Expense
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 3260 070
Lata Gul Harirarnani Relation of Key Managerial Person 129 0.80
4.89 150
i. Remuneration paid
Sachin Arora Key Managerial Person 4259 34352
Rishi Trehan Key Managerial Person 37.51 2056
Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair Key Managerial Person 16.26 10.87
Megha Verma Key Managerial Person 752 263
Love Kumar Trehan Relation of Key Managerial Person - 1.88
Tejinder Kaur Relation of Key Managerial Person - 1.88
Sarla Arora Relation of Key Managerial Person - 1.00
103.88 8514
j. Interest on Corporate Guarantee
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 5.00 5.00
.00 5.00
k. Issue of Bonus Shares
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding - 52490
Sachin Arora Key Managerial Person - 15750
Rishi Trehan Key Managerial Person - 2250
Yashpal Sharma Key Managerial Person - 7.70
Tarun Sharma Key Managerial Person - 7.70
Himanshu Chhabra Key Managerial Person - 7.70
Rohit Sehgal Key Managerial Person - 7.70
- 735.70
l. Miscellaneous Expense
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding - 389
SLS Logistik Acaderny Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries - 0.05
SLS Retail Supermart Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 016 0.4
0.16 435
m. Advertisement and Business Promotion
SLS Retail Supermart Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 0.02 -
0.02 -
n. Director Sitting Fees
Deepak Sonthaliya Key Managerial Person 0.40 -
Gunjan Kayastha Agarwal Key Managerial Person 0.40
Megha Aggarwal Key Managerial Person %

187



188

Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)

CIN: U63030DL2020PLC372878

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025
All amounts are inINR lacs unless otherwise stated

OGISTIC

bracePort

Cleiviering with FPrassion

iii. Balances outstanding as at the year end

Particular Relation Amount
As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024  April 01, 2023
a. Trade Payable
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Holding 64.60 973596 29.44
Sgate Tech Solutions Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 0.06 050 =
Phantom Express Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 394 503 294
Skart Global Express Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 0A 0.06 -
Forin Container Line Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries 3168 86.00 0.55
Skyways 5LS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong) Fellow Subsidiaries = 29.48 -
Skyways 5LS Cargo Services LLC UAE Fellow Subsidiaries 180 = :
Lata Gul Hariramani Relation of Key Managerial Person on - -
Pradhaan Air Express Private Limited Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control - 76.05 -
Zeal Global Services Limited Enterprises Over which KMP has significant control - 17.38 =
102.50 1,188.56 32.93
————————
b. Trade receivable
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Haolding .77 19036 =
Rahat Continental Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries = 29918 -
Surgeport Logistics Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries - 19222 =
Bolt Freight INC Fellow Subsidiaries 1.53 1.73 -
Forin Container Line Private Limited Fellow Subsidiaries = 0.7 =
Skyways SLS Cargo Services LLC UAE Fellow Subsidiaries - 7218 -
Skyways SLS Logistik GMBH Fellow Subsidiaries - 36.6] -
Zeal Glaobal Services Limited Enterprises Over which KMP 129719 196.57 -
has significant coRErol 132.49 989.56 -
c. Corporate guarantee received
Skyways Air Services Private Limited Helding 500.00 500.00 500.00
d. Professional Charges Payable
Daya Nand Arora Relation of Key Managerial Person o - 1.25
= - 125
e. Employee Benefit Payable
Radhakrishnan Pattiyil Nair Key Managerial Person 126 084 -
Megha Verma Key Managerial Person 068 0.25 =
Sachin Arora Key Managerial Person 276 223 147
Rishi Trehan Key Managerial Person 234 249 1.52
7.04 5.8 279
f. Security Deposit given
Pradhaan Air Express Private Limited Enterprises Over which KMP has significant contrd3.60 - =
Lata Gul Hariramani Relation of Key Managerial Person 030 030 -
3390 030 -
g. Reimbursement Payable
Sachin Arora Key Managerial Person 1.09 % 0.23
Rishi Trehan Key Managerial Person 004
113 - 0235
h. Advance to employee
Rishi Trehan Key Managerial Person = - 215
- - b |
i. Advance to Vendor

Skyways 5LS Logistik Co Ltd (Hong Kong)

j. Advance from Customer
Forin Container Line Private Limited

k. Other Receivable
Brace Port Logistics LLC

Fellow Subsidiaries 0.04%
0.04

Fallow Subsidiaries 0.03
0.03

Subsidiaries 7.4
T4
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iv. Remuneration of KMP

The remuneration of key management personnel of the Company are set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in Ind AS 24 Related
Party disclosures:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Key Management Personnel
Short-term employee benefits * 103.68 78.38
103.88 7838

* Includes perquisites, allowances and bonus and does not include the provision made for gratuity and leave benefits, as they are determined on an
actuarial basis for all the employees together.

Remuneration payable to KMP

As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Remuneration payable to KMP 704 581
7.04 s.81
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Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility

As per provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has to incur at least 2% of average net profits of the preceding three financial
years towards Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR"). Accordingly, a CSR committee has been formed for carrying out CSR activities as per the Schedule
Vil of the Companies Act, 2013. Details are as under:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Details of CSR Expenditure:
Arnount required to be spent as per section 135 of the Act (including CSR expenditure 12.84 867

relating to previous years unspent amount)
Armount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 1284 867

Amountspent during theyearon :
(i} Construction/ acquisition of assets - -
(i) On purpose other than above 13.00 9.00

Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
i} Contribution to Public Trust - :
(i) Contribution to Charitable Trust 15.00 9.00
i) Unspent amount in relation to:
- Ongoing project - -
- Other than ongoing project . -

Total amount spent 13.00 85.00
Add: Excess spent from previous year utilised during the current year . :
Less: Excess spent during the year to be carry forward - -
Add: Provision for shortfall amount recognised during the current year - -
Total amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 13.0C 9.0C

Disclosure for excess amount spent:

Cpening Balance - -
Armount required to be spent during the year [12.84) (B.67)
Arnount spent during the year 13.00 9.00
Provision for shortfall amount / (Excess spent during the year not to be camy forward) during the current year (00&) {0.33)
Closing Balance (Excess spent during the year to be carry forward) - -

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the investor education and protection fund by the Company.

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by the transfer pricing legislation
under Sections 92-92F of the Income tax Act, 1961. Since the law requires existence of such information and documentation to be contemporaneous in
nature, the Company is in the process of updating the documentation for the international transactions entered into with the associated enterprises
during the year and expects such records to be in existence latest by such date as required under the law. The management is of the opinion that its
transactions covered under transfer pricing regulations are at arm's length so that the aforesaid legislation will not have any impact on the financial
staternents, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision for taxation.

Interest in other entities

Subsidiaries

The Company has following subsidiaries held directly and indirectly by the Company which operate and are incorporated around the world. Following
are the details of shareholdings in the subsidiarie

Immediate holding Count
. . ry of As at As at
MO P of pany Principal activities company Incorporation March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
1 Braceport Logistics Integrated Logistic Solutions Brace Port Logistics Limited UAE 100.00% 0.00%
LLC. -FZ

Cn December 09, 2024, The company has incorporated a foreign subsidiary named Braceport Logistics LLC. - FZ in Meydan Free Zone, Dubai with a

subscribed share capital of AED 45,000. As at the year end, The company is in the process of transferring the share capital amount to the said subsidiary.
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A)

B)

B.1

B.2

B.3

First-time adoption of Ind AS

These are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS. The accounting policies set out in note 2 have been applied in
preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April
01, 2023 (the Company's date of transition).

For all periods upto and including the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company prepared its financial statements in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) and complied with accounting standards as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 ('previous GAAP or IGAAP") to the extent applicable and the presentation reguirements of the Companies Act,
2003,

The transition of Ind AS was carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101, with April 01, 2023 being the date of transition. This note explains the exemptions
on the first-time adoption of Ind AS availed in accordance with Ind AS 101 and an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has
affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows.

Exemptions availed and mandatory exceptions

Ind AS 101 'First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards' allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from retrospective application of certain
requirements under Ind AS. Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from

Ind AS optional exemptions

Carrying value as deemed cost for property, plant and equipment

Ind AS 101 permits, where there is no change in the functional currency on the date of transition to Ind ASs, a first time adopter to Ind AS may elect to
continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and egquipment and investment properties defined as per IND AS 40 as recognised in the
financial staterments as at the date of transition to Ind ASs, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition
except to the extent of capitalisation of the government grant as at transition date.

Accordingly, the Company has elected to use the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment on the date of transition and designate the
same as deemed cost on the date of transition.

Ind AS mandatory exceptions

Accounting estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same date in
accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective evidence that those
estimates were an error.

Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2023 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date made in conformity with previous CAAP.

De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Ind AS 101 reguires a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition provisions of Ind AS 109 prospectively for transactions cccurring on or after the date of
transition to Ind AS. However, Ind AS 101 allows a first-time adopter to apply the de-recognition requirements in Ind AS 109 retrospectively from a date of
the entity's choosing, provided that the information needed to apply Ind AS 109 to financial assets and financial liabilities derecognised as a result of past
transactions was obtained at the time of initially accounting for those transactions.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification of financial assets on the basis of facts and circumstances existing as on the date of transition. Further,
the standard permits measurement of financial assets accounted at amortised cost based on facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition if
retrospective application is impracticable.

Accordingly, the Company has determined the classification of financial assets bases on facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition.
Measurement of the financial assets accounted at amortised cost has been done retrospectively except where the same is impracticable.

Reconciliation of other equity between Ind AS and previous GAAP : As

at March 31, 2024:

articulars es etain arnings a

Other equity as per previous GAAP 54170 54170
Adjustments

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 2712 27.02
Tax impact on adjustments 2 (6.82) (6.82)
‘Other equity as perind A5 sez00 56200
As at April 01, 2023:
Particulars Motes Retained Earnings Total

Other equity as per previous GAAP 806.25 806.25
Adjustments

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 523 5.23
Tax impact on adjustments 2 (1.40) (1.40)
"‘Other equity as per Ind AS - 810.08 810.08
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b. Reconciliation of net profit as per previous GAAP and total comprehensive income as per Ind AS

BracelPort
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Particulars Notes March 31, 2024
Met profit as per previous GAAP 485 .45
Adjustments

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 21.89
Tax impact on adjustments 2 (5.42)
Effect of remeasurement of the defined benefit plan 1 0.64
(net of tax)

Net profit as perInd AS 502.56
Effect of remeasurement of the defined benefit plan 1 (0.64)

(net of tax)

- 50192

Total comprehensive Income as per Ind AS

c. Reconciliation of cash flows

The adjustments as explained above, are of non-cash nature and accordingly, there are no material differences in cash flows from operating, investing
and financing activities as per the previous GAAP and as per Ind AS. Previous year numbers have been reclassified wherever required.

Year ended March 31, 2024:

Particulars Previous GAAP Effects of transition As per ind AS

Met cash flows from operating activities 127.82 (82.67) 4515
Met cash flows from investing activities (343.46) 82.01 [261.45)
Met cash flows from financing activities {14.79) - {14.79)
Met increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (230.43) (0.66) (231.09)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 418.30 - 41830
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 187.87 - 187.87

Motes to first-time adoption of Ind-AS

1 Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan: Ind AS 12 Employee Benefits requires the impact of re-measurement in net defined benefit liability
(asset) to be recognized in other comprehensive income (OCI). Re-measurement of net defined benefit liability (asset) comprises actuarial gains and
losses, return on plan assets (excluding interest on net defined benefit asset/liability). This was being recognised in the staterment of profit and loss in
Staternent of profit and loss in previous GAAP.

2 Deferred Tax: Previous GAAP required deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable
profits and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses
on temporary differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS12 approach
has resulted in recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under previous GAAP.

In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the Company has to account for
such differences. Deferred tax has been recognised on such temporary differences.
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42 Ratio analysis and its elements
“Hatio Humerator Crencminator arch 31, arch a1, Bnge Femarks
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities = It 186 00 8% Refer comment |
Debt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's BEquity i) ol (72B3%) Refer cormment 2
Dbt Service Coverage ratio Earnings for debt Cebt service = Interest 1050 1845 [t B196) Refer comment 3
senvice = Met profit & Lease Payments =
after taxes + Mon-cash Principal Repayrments
operating expensas
Return on Equity ratio Met Profits after taxes Axerage Total Equity 25654 ey 245 (a1 S35] Refer cormment 2
Trade Recehable Tumover Ratio Met credit sales = Gross Average Trade L ) 526 1257
credit sales - sales Recahable
retum
Trade Payable Tumover Ratio Met credit purchases = Average Trade Payables a4 =T SOEEW: Refer comment &
Gross credit purchases -
purchase retum
Het Capital Turnower Ratle Met sales = Total sales - Working capital = 242 %70 [EB1%] Refer comment 5
sales refurn Current assets —
Current Exbilities
Het Profit ratio ket Profit Met sales = Total sales - BO2% S1a% el
sales retum
Return on Capital Emnployed Earnings before interest Capital Employed = 23.85% 4T ST [S02B%] Refer cormment 3
and taxes Total Assets- Current
Liabilities
Return on Investrment Interest [Finance Irvestment 4. 2 3% 5TEH [26.6590%] Refer cormment
Incorme)
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Reason for change more than 25%:

1. The movernent in current year is on account of dsproportionate Increase in figed deposit with banks

2, The movernent in current year is on account of disproportionate increase in share capital due to public issue made the company.
3. The movernent incurrent year is on account of disproportionate increase in earming before interest and taxes.

4. The moverment in current year is on account of disproportionate increase in purchases.

3. The movernent in current year is on account of disproportionate increase in sales.

Other Information

{1} The Cormparyy does not have ary charges o satisfection which & yet to be regiEtered with ROC beyond the statutony perod,

(I} The Cormnpany have not traded or invested in Crypto curmency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

(I} The Cornpany have not advenced or losned or invested funds to any other person or entity, iIncuding forelgn entities (Interrmedlaries) with the enderstanding that the Intermediany shall:
{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest inother persons or entithes identified in any mannes whatsoever by or on behalf of the cormpany (Uitimate Beneficiares) or

{b) prosside sry guarantee, security or the ke to or on behalf of the Ultirmate Beneficiarkes

(v} The Company have not recebved any fund from any person or entity, Inciuding foreign entitles [Funding Party) with the understanding [whether recorded inwriting or otherwise) that the Company shalk

{a) directly or indirectly lend or Invest inother persons or entithes identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficlarkes) or

(b} prowvide sy guarantes, security or the ke on behalf of the Ultmate Beneficares

{w} The Cormpéarmy hewe not any such transsction which s not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendened or disclosed as Income during the year Inthe tax sssessrments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (such as, search of survey of any other relevant prosdsions of the Incorme Tas Aot 1961

{wl} The Company does not heve any Benami property, where any proceeding has been inilated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.,

{wil}) The Comparny has not been declared as wilful defauiver by any bank or financial iInstitutlon or govermment or any government authority.

{will) The Company has cormplied with the numiber of layers for its hobding In downstream companies prescribed under clause (BT of sectlon 2 of the Companles Act, 2003 read with the Companles [Restriction
an nurmber of Leyers) Rules, 2017,
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The Company has used the accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software.

Further, in respect of software used in maintaining payroll records which operated and maintained by a third party service provider, in absence of service
organisation controls report in respect of audit trail, management is unable to determine whether audit trail feature of the underlying database was
enabled and operated throughout the year. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with was noted in respect of accounting software
except that in absence of service organisation controls report, we are unable to assess 319 same in respect of the software used to maintain payroll
records.

Additionally, the audit trail to the extent it was enabled has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention
except that in absence of service organisation controls report, we are unable to comment on the same in respect of the software used to maintain
payroll records.

During the year ended March 31, 2025, the Company has completed its Initial Public Offer (IPO) of 30,51,200 equity shares of face value of INR 10 each at
and issue price of INR BO per share. Pursuant to the IPO, the equity shares of the Company got listed on NSE Emerge on August 26, 2024.

The previous year's figure have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever considered necessary to make them comparable with those of the current's year's
classification, none of which it believes to be material, hence no additional disclosure are provided.

The figures have been rounded off to the nearest lacs of rupees up to two decimal places. The figure 0.00 wherever stated represents value less than INR
S00/-,

Note 1to 47 form integral part of the standalone balance sheet and standalone statement of profit and loss.
For Bhagl Bhardwa] Caur & Co. Far and on behalf of the Beard of Directors of

Chartered Acoountants Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)
FCAl Firm Registration Mumber: O07895N

sdf- gd/- sdf-

per Mohit Gupta Sachin Arora Yashpal Sharma
Partner banaging DEector Directar
Membership Mo. 5268337 D - CE852EE1 DM - DOS20E5S
LD 2SI EEITERLMAGER0S

Place: Mew Delhi Place:Mew Dethi Place:Mew Delhl

Dmte: May 28, 2025

Diate: bay 28, 2005

Date: May 28, 2025

gd /- sd/-

Himanshu Chhatra Radhakrishnan pattiyil Mair
Director Chief Financial Cfficer

DIk - D901ETSS PaAR: ADMNPHESSIK
Place:Mew Delhi Place:Mew Dedhi

Crate: May 28, 2025 Date; May 28, 2025

-

Megha Verma

Company Secretary

Membership Nurmber- A53650

Place:mew Delhi
Crate: May 28, 2025

Brace Port Logistics Limited (Formerly Known as Brace Port Logistics Private Limited)
CIN: UB3030DL2020PLC372878

Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated
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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the 05" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of
Brace Port Logistics Limited will be held on Friday, 26'" day of September, 2025 at 1.30
PM. (IST) through Video-Conferencing/Other Audio Visual Means at its registered
office situated at Plot No. A-390 B, 2" Floor, A-Block, Road No 2, Mahipalpur Extn.,
Mahipalpur, New Delhi-110037 (deemed venue), to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a. The Audited Standalone Financial Statement of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with the reports of the Boards
and Auditors thereon; and in this regard, to pass the following resolution as
Ordinary Resolution:

b. The Audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company for the
financial year ended March 31, 2025, together with the reports Auditors
thereon; and in this regard, to pass the following resolution as Ordinary
Resolution:

2. To appeint Mr. Tarun Sharma (DIN: 06501856), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

3. Increase the remuneration of Mr. Sachin Arora (Managing director of the
Company)

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Section 197, 198 and 203 and other applicable Sections
and Provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 other applicable rules (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force),
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable regulations and schedule of SEEI
(Listing obligations and disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015, the consent of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for fixing the scale of remuneration
payable to Mr. Sachin Arora, Managing Director of the Company, effective from 1= April,
2025, for his remaining tenure i.e. till 07" August 2028 .

The scale of remuneration, as agreed between the Board of Directors and acceptable to Mr.
Sachin Arora, is placed before the Members for approval as follows:

Dlafivering withh Pazsion

A. Scale of Remuneration: INR 43,00,000/- to INR 60,00,000/- per annum, including
perguisites.

B. Re-imbursement- The Managing Director shall be entitled to reimbursement of
expenses incurred in connection with the business of the Company.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the above perquisites will be in accordance with the schemes,
policies, and the rules of the Company as applicable from time to time unless the Board
decides to vary to the same specifically.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the aggregate of salary, allowances, and perquisites in any one
financial year shall not exceed the limits prescribed under section 197 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V of the said Act or any
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force except in compliance
of provision as provided in the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board shall have the discretion and authority to modify
the aforesaid terms and remuneration within, however, the limit as approved by the
members.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT any Director of the Company be and is hereby severally
authorized to take necessary steps to give effect to the foregoing resolution and to issue
and authenticate a certified true copy of this resolution wherever required and to sign all /
any e-forms, other forms, returns, documents as may be required to be filed whether
physically or electronically with the any of the regulatory authorities including but not
limited to the concerned Registrar of Companies.

4. Increase the remuneration of Mr. Rishi Trehan (Whole-Time director of the
Company)

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the Section 197, 198 and 203 and other applicable Sections
and Provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"), read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 other applicable rules (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force),
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable regulations and schedule of SEBI
(Listing obligations and disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015, the consent of the

Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for fixing the scale of remuneration
payable to Mr. Rishi Trehan, Whole-Time Director of the Company, effective from Ist April,
2025, for his remaining tenure i.e. till 07™" August 2028.

The scale of remuneration, as agreed between the Board of Directors and acceptable to Mr.
Rishi Trehan, is placed before the Members for approval as follows:

A. Scale of Remuneration: INR 38,00,000/- to INR 55,00,000/- per annum, including
perquisites.

B. Re-imbursement- The Whole-Time Director shall be entitled to reimbursement of
expenses incurred in connection with the business of the Company.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the above perquisites will be in accordance with the schemes,
policies, and the rules of the Company as applicable from time to time unless the Board
decides to vary to the same specifically.
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FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the aggregate of salary, allowances, and perquisites in any one
financial year shall not exceed the limits prescribed under section 197 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V of the said Act or any
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force except in compliance
of provision as provided in the Act.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board shall have the discretion and authority to modify
the aforesaid terms and remuneration within, however, the limit as approved by the
members.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT any Director of the Company be and is hereby severally
authorized to take necessary steps to give effect to the foregoing resolution and to issue
and authenticate a certified true copy of this resolution wherever required and to sign all /
any e-forms, other forms, returns, documents as may be required to be filed whether
physically or electronically with the any of the regulatory authorities including but not
limited to the concerned Registrar of Companies.

For & On behalf of
Brace Port Logistics Limited

Ssd/-

Megha Verma
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
M.No: A63650

Place: New Delhi

Date: 03.09.2025

Dlafivering withh Pazsion

NOTES:

10.

Ministry of corporate Affairs vide its General circulars No. 20/2020 dated May 05,
2020, read with General Circular No.14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, 17/2020 dated April
13,2020, 02/2021 dated 13th January 2021, 19/2021 dated 08th December, 2021, 21/2021
dated December 14, 2021 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, 10/2022 dated 28th
December, 2022, 9/2023 dated September 25, 2023 and 09/2024 dated 19t
September 2024 has permitted to conduct AGM due to be held on or before
30.09.2025, through AVM. Hence, Members can attend and participate in the
ensuing AGM through VC/OAVM.

In compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") read
with the MCA Circulars and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations"), the 05" Annual General Meeting of the
Company is being conducted through VC/OAVM (hereinafter referred to as "AGM").
In accordance with the Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meeting issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) read with Guidance/Clarification
note dated April 15, 2020 issued by ICSI, the proceedings of the ACM shall be
deemed to be conducted at the Registered Office of the Company which shall be
the deemed venue of the ACM.

Since, this AGM is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC/OAVM
facility, physical attendance of members has been dispensed with. Accordingly, the
facility for appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for the e-
ACM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not annexed to this Notice.
Institutional/Corporate shareholders (i.e. other than individuals/HUF, NRI, etc.) are
required to send a scanned copy (pdf/jpg format) of its Board or governing body's
resolution/authorisation, etc., authorising their representative to attend the e-AGM
on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting. The said resolution/authorisation
shall be sent to the scrutinizer by email through its registered email address to
cs@braceport-logistics.com

Brief details of the Director, who are being appointed/reappointed as per
requirements of Regulation 36(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations are annexed
hereto.

Explanatory statement as required under section 102 of the Companies Act 2013 Is
annexed hereto.

The facility of joining the AGM through VC/OAVM will be opened 15 minutes before
and will be open upto 15 minutes after the scheduled start time of the ACM, L.e,, from
01:15 P.M to 01.45 P.M. and will be available for members on a first come first served
basis. This rule would however not apply to participation of shareholders holding 2%
or more shareholding, promoters, institutional investors, directors, key and senior
managerial personnel, auditors, etc.

Institutional Investors, who are members of the Company are encouraged to attend
and vote at the AGM of the Company.

To avoid fraudulent transactions, the identity/ signature of the members holding
shares in electronic/demat form is verified with the specimen signatures furnished
by NSDL/CDSL and that of members holding shares in physical form is verified as
per the records of the share transfer agent of the Company. Members are requested
to keep the same updated.

The Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of

Permmanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market.
Members holding shares in demat form are, therefore, requested to submit PAN
with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding shares in
physical form can submit their PAN to the Company/ MUFG Intime India Private
Limited.
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INn terms of Section-101 and 136 of the Act, read with the rules made thereunder, the
Listed Companies may send the notice of AGM and the annual report, including
financial statements, boards' report, etc. by electronic mode. Pursuant to the said
provisions of the Act read with MCA Circulars, SEBI Circular 2021 read with circular
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/2020/79 date 12th May 2020 and circular no.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated 15th January 2021, SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/
CIR/P/2022/62 dated 13th May 2022 and SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated
5th January 2023, Notice of 05™ AGCM along with the Annual Report is being sent
only through electronic mode to those members whose email addresses are
registered with the Company/depositories. Members may note that the Notice and
Annual Report for FY 2024-25 will also be available on the Company's website
www.braceport-logistics.com in under "Investors" section and under "Business and
Investors” tab.

However, the shareholders of the Company may request physical copy of the Notice
and Annual report from the Company by sending a request at cs@braceport-
logistics.com, in case they wish to obtain the same

To receive communications through electronic means, including Annual Reports
and Notices, members are requested to kindly register/ update their email address
with their respective depository participant, where shares are held in electronic
form. In case of shares held in physical form, members are advised to register their
e-mail address with RTA. Members are requested to register their email id and
support the green initiative efforts of the Company

Members are requested to support our commitment to environment protection by
choosing to receive the Company's communication through email going forward.

With a view to enable the Company to serve the members better, members who
hold shares in identical names and in the same order of names in more than one
folio are requested to write to the Company to consolidate their holdings in one
folio.

The recorded transcript of the forthcoming ACM on 26th September 2025 shall also
be made available on the website of the Company under "Investors" section as soon
as possible after the meeting.

SEBI vide its notification dated 08th June 2018 as amended on 30 November 2018,
has stipulated that w.e.f. 1st April 2019, the transfer of securities (except transmission
or transposition of shares) shall not be processed, unless the securities are held in
the dematerialised formm. The Company has complied with the necessary
requirements as applicable, including sending of letters to shareholders holding
shares in physical form and requesting them to dematerialise their physical
holdings

In case of joint holders, the member whose name appears as the first holder in the
order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to
vote at the AGM.

The Company has been maintaining, inter alia, the statutory registers at its
registered office. In accordance with the MCA Circulars, the said registers will be
made accessible for inspection through electronic mode and shall remain open and
be accessible to any member during the continuance of the meeting.

Members holding shares in physical form are advised to file nomination In the

prescribed Form SH-13. In respect of shares held in Electronic/Demat form, the
members may please contact their respective Depository participant.
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In terms of Section 124(5) of the Act, the Company does not have amount needs to
be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by
the Central GCovernment. Members who have not encashed their dividend
pertaining to the financial year 2024-25 (April 2024 - March 2025) are advised to write
to the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company immediately for claiming
dividends declared by the Company.

Since the meeting will be conducted through VC/ OAVM facility, the route map is
not annexed to this Notice.

In case a person becomes a member of the Company after dispatch of AGM Notice,
and is a member as on the cut-off date for e-voting, such person may obtain the
user id and password from our RTA or by emall request to cs@braceport-

logistics.com

Only those members/shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through video
conferencing facility and have not cast their vote through remote e-voting and are
otherwise not barred from doing so are eligible to vote through e-voting at the AGM.
However, members who have voted through remote e-voting may attend the ACM.

Members attending the AGM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the
guorum under Section 103 of the Act.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20
of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015
(as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated April
08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-
Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the ACGM. For this
purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with MUFG Intime India Private
Limited (RTA) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized
agency.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE
AS UNDER:

26.

27,

28.

29.

Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better
experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good
speed to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or
through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss
due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use
Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.
Shareholders who would like to express their views/ have gquestions may send their
questions in advance mentioning their name demat account number/folio
number, email id, mobile number at: cs@braceport-logistics.com by Friday, 19"
September, 2025. The gueries may be raised precisely and in brief to enable the
Company to answer the same suitably depending on the availability of time at the
meeting

INSTAMEET VC INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS

MITED
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In terms of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) General Circular No. 09/2024 dated
19.09.2024, the Companies can conduct their ACMs/ EGMs on or before 30 September 2025
by means of Video Conference (VC) or other audio-visual means (OQAVM).

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their
demat gccounts to access InstaMeet facility.

Login method for shareholders to attend the General Meeting through InstaMeet:

a) Visit URL: https://instameet.in.mpms.mufg.com & click on “Login".

b) Select the "Company Name" and register with your following details:

c) Select Check Box - Demat Account No./ Folio No. / PAN

M Shareholders holding shares in NSDL/ CDSL demat account shall select check
box - Demat Account No. and enter the 16-digit demat account number.

M Shareholders holding shares in physical form shall select check box — Folio No.
and enter the Folio Number registered with the company.

M Shareholders shall select check box — PAN and enter 10-digit Permanent
Account Number (PAN). Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with
the Depository Participant (DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number
provided by MUFG Intime, if applicable.

B Mobile No: Mobile No. as updated with DP is displayed automatically.
Shareholders who have not updated their Mobile No with the DP shall enter
the mobile no.

M Email ID: Email Id as updated with DP is displayed automatically. Shareholders
who have not updated their Mobile No with the DP shall enter the mobile no.

d) Click “Go to Meeting”
You are now registered for InstaMeet, and your attendance is marked for the
meeting.

Instructions for shareholders to Speak during the General Meeting through
InstaMeet:

a) Shareholders who would like to speak during the meeting must register their
request with the company.

b) Shareholders will get confirmation on first cum first basis depending upon the
provision made by the company.

c) Shareholders will receive “speaking serial number” once they mark attendance for
the meeting. Please remember speaking serial number and start your conversation
with panellist by switching on video mode and audio of your device.

d) Other shareholder who has not registered as "Speaker Shareholder” may still ask
guestions to the panellist via active chat-board during the meeting.

*Shareholders are requested to speak only when moderator of the meeting/ management
will announce the name and serial number for speaking.

Instructions for Shareholders to Vote during the General Meeting through InstaMeet:

BracePort
LOGISTICS LIMITED
Qt-u'«.fc-rll*.ghwil E F‘asf:i::u_'n

Once the electronic voting Is activated during the meeting, shareholders who have not
exercised their vote through the remote e-voting can cast the vote as under:

a) Onthe Shareholders VC page, click on the link for e-Voting "Cast your vote”

b) Enter your 16-digit Demat Account No. / Folio No. and OTP (received on the
registered mobile number/ registered email Id) received during registration for
InstaMeet

c)] Clickon 'Submit'.

d) After successful login, you will see "Resolution Description™ and against the same
the option “Favour/ Against” for voting.

e) Castyour vote by selecting appropriate option i.e. “Favour/Against” as desired. Enter
the number of shares (which represents no. of votes) as on the cut-off date under
‘Favour/Against'.

f) After selecting the appropriate option i.e. Favour/Against as desired and you have
decided to vote, click on “Save”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to
confirm your vote, click on “Confirm”, else to change your vote, click on "Back” and
accordingly modify your vote. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will
not be allowed to modify or change your vote subsequently.

Note:

Shareholders/ Members, who will be present in the General Meeting through InstaMeet
facility and have not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and
are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting facility
during the meeting.

Shareholders/ Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting prior to the General
Meeting will be eligible to attend/ participate in the General Meeting through InstaMeet.
However, they will not be eligible to vote again during the meeting.

Shareholders/ Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Tablets/ Laptops
connected through broadband for better experience.

Shareholders/ Members are required to use Internet with a good speed (preferably 2 MBPS
download stream) to avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Shareholders/ Members connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or
through Laptops connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Visual loss due to
fluctuation in their network. It is therefore recommended to use stable Wi-FI or LAN
connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Helpdesk:

Shareholders facing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAMEET helpdesk by
sending a request at instameet@in.mpms.mufg.com or contact on: - Tel: 022 — 4918 6000 /
4918 6175.

REMOTE E-VOTING INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD2/CIR/P/2023/120 dated July 11, 2023,
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their
demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.
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Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id correctly in their
demat accounts to access e-Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL
METHOD 1 - Individual Shareholders registered with NSDL IDeAS facility
Shareholders who have registered for NSDL IDeAS facility:

a) Visit URL: https;//eservices.nsdl.comand click on “Beneficial Owner” icon under
“Login”.

b) Enter User ID and Password. Click on “Login”

c) After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under
Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services.

d) Clickon"MUFGC InTime” or "evoting link displayed alongside Company's Name” and
yvou will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote
e-voting period.

OR
Shareholders who have not registered for NSDL IDeAS facility:

a) To register, visit URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com and select “Register Online for
IDeAS Portal” or click on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReq.jsp

b) Proceed with updating the required fields.

c) Post successful registration, user will be provided with Login ID and password.

d) After successful login, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added
services. Click on "Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services.

e) Clickon"MUFG InTime" or "evoting link displayed alongside Company’'s Name” and
you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the remote
e-voting period.

METHOD 2 - Individual Shareholders directly visiting the e-voting website of NSDL

a) Visit URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com

b) Click onthe “Login” tab available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

c)] Enter User ID (i.e, your sixteen-digit demat account number held with NSDL),
Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

a) Postsuccessful authentication, you will be re-directed to NSDL depository website
wherein you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added services. Click
on "Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services.

b) Click on "MUFC InTime"” or “evoting link displayed alongside Company's Name”
and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the vote during the
remote e-voting period.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with CDSL
METHOD 1 - Individual Shareholders registered with CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility

Shareholders who have registered/ opted for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility:
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a) Visit URL: https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Home/Login or

www.cdslindia.com.

b) Click on New System Myeasi Tab

c) Login with existing my easl username and password

d) After successful login, user will be able to see e-voting option. The evoting option
will have links of e-voting service providers i.e,, MUFG InTime, for voting during the
remote e-voting period.

e) Click on “Link InTime/ MUFG InTime” or “evoting link displayed alongside
Company's Name" and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the
vote during the remote e-voting period.

OR

Shareholders who have not registered for CDSL Easi/ Easiest facility:

a) Toregister, visit URL:
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Reqgistration/EasiRegistration /
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasitoken/Registration/EasiestRegistration

b) Proceed with updating the required fields.

c) Postregistration, user will be provided username and password.

d) After successful login, user able to see e-voting menu.

e) Click on “Link InTime / MUFG InTime" or “evoting link displayed alongside
Company's Name"” and you will be redirected to InstaVote website for casting the
vote during the remote e-voting period.

METHOD 2 - Individual Shareholders directly visiting the e-voting website of CDSL

a) Visit URL: https://www.cdslindia.com

b) GCotoe-voting tab.

c] Enter Demat Account Number (BO ID) and PAN No. and click on “Submit”.

d) System will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile and Emall
as recorded in Demat Account

e) After successful authentication, click on “Link InTime / MUFG InTime”" or “evoting
link displayed alongside Company's Name” and you will be redirected to InstaVote
website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with Depository
Participant

Individual shareholders can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your depository participant registered with NSDL / CDSL for e-voting facility.

a) Loginto DP website

b) After Successful login, user shall navigate through “e-voting” option.

c) Click on e-voting option, user will be redirected to NSDL / CDSL Depository website
after successful authentication, wherein user can see e-voting feature.

d) After successful authentication, click on “Link InTime / MUFG InTime" or “evoting
link displayed alongside Company's Name"” and you will be redirected to InstaVote
website for casting the vote during the remote e-voting period.

Login method for shareholders holding securities in physical mode /
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Non-Individual Shareholders helding securities;in demat mode - After successful login, you will be able to see the "Notification for e-voting”.

A.

B. Select View' icon.

C. E-voting page will appear.
D

securities in demat mode as on the cut-off date for e-voting may register for InstaVote option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click
as under: on the 'View Resolution’ file link).

E. After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’.
a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on

. ) . Yes, else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.
Shareholders who have not reqgistered for INSTAVOTE facility:

_ i _ _ _ Guidelines for Institutional shareholders (“Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund”)
b) Click on “Sign Up"” under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab and register with your following

details:

A. User ID: STEP 1- Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Registration
NSDL demat account — User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client | Wy B ;
D. a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

i (1] L} ] i ® "
CDSL demat account — User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. b) Click on “Sign Up” under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund

Shareholders holding shares in physical form — User ID is Event No + Folio c) Fillup your_entlty details and su_bm.ltthe fqrm. _
Number registered with the Company. d) A declaration form and organization ID is generated and sent to the Primary

B. PAN: contact person email ID (which is filled at the time of sign up). The said form is to be
signed by the Authorised Signhatory, Director, Company Secretary of the entity &
stamped and sent to insta.vote@linkintime.co.in.

e] Thereafter, Login credentials (User ID; Organisation ID; Password) is sent to Primary
contact person’'s email ID. (You have now registered on InstaVote)

Enter your 10-digit Permanent Account Number (PAN)
(Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Depository Participant
(DP)/ Company shall use the sequence number provided to you, if applicable.

C. DOB/DOI: _
Enter the Date of Birth (DOB) / Date of Incorporation (DOI) (As recorded with STEP 2 - Investor Mapping
your DP / Company - in DD/MM/YYYY format)
a) Visit URL: httpsy//instavote.linkintime.co.inand login with InstaVote Login
credentials.
D. Bank Account Number: b) Click on “Investor Mapping” tab under the Menu Section
Enter your Bank Account Number (last four digits), as recorded with your c) Map the Investor with the following details:
DP/Company.
. _ _ _ A.  'Investor ID' -
Shareholders holding shares in NSDL form, shall provide ‘D’ above . NSDL demat account — User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by
**Shareholders holding shares in physical form but have not recorded ‘C' and 8 Digit Client ID i.e.,, INOOO00012345678
‘D, shall provide their Folio number in ‘D" above ii. CDSL demat account — User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.
B. ‘Investor's Name - Enter Investor's Name as updated with DP.
v Set the password of your choice C. ‘'Investor PAN' - Enter your 10-digit PAN.
(The password should contain minimum 8 characters, at least one special D.  'Power of Attorney’ - Attach Board resolution or Power of Attorney.
Character (1#%$8&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one
capital letter). *File Name for the Board resolution/ Power of Attorney shall be - DP ID and Client
v Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code ID or 16 Digit Beneficiary ID. Further, Custodians and Mutual Funds shall also
v Click “Submit” (You have now registered on InstaVote). upload specimen signatures.
Shareholders who have registered for INSTAVOTE facility: E. Click on Submit button. (The investor is now mapped with the Custodian /
Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund Entity). The same can be viewed under the
c) Click on “Login” under ‘SHARE HOLDER' tab. "Report Section”.

A. User ID: Enter your User ID . A

B. Password: Enter your Password STEP 3 - Voting through remote e-voting

C. Enter Image Verification (CAPTCHA) Code _ _

D Click “Submit” The corporate shareholder can vote by two methods, during the remote e-voting
period.

d) Cast your vote electronically:
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METHOD 1- VOTES ENTRY

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.inand login with InstaVote Login
credentials.

b) Click on *Votes Entry” tab under the Menu section.

c) Enter the “Event No.” for which you want to cast vote.

Event No. can be viewed on the home page of InstaVote under "On-going
Events”.

d) Enter *“16-digit Demat Account No.” for which you want to cast vote.

e) Refer the Resolution description and cast your vote by selecting your desired
option ‘Favour / Against’ (If you wish to view the entire Resolution details, click
on the View Resolution’ file link).

f)  After selecting the desired option i.e. Favour / Against, click on ‘Submit’.

A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on
Yes', else to change your vote, click on ‘No’ and accordingly modify your vote.

OR
METHOD 2 - VOTES UPLOAD

a) Visit URL: https://instavote.linkintime.co.inand login with InstaVote Login
credentials.

b) After successful login, you will be able to see the “Notification for e-voting”.

c) Select “View"” icon for “Company’s Name / Event number”.

d) E-voting page will appear.

e) Download sample vote file from “Download Sample Vote File” tab.

f)  Cast your vote by selecting your desired option 'Favour / Against' in the sample vote
file and upload the same under “Upload Vote File” option.

g) Click on ‘Submit’. ‘Data uploaded successfully’ message will be displayed.
(Once you cast your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify or
change it subsequently).

Helpdesk:

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders
holding
securities in demat mode:

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode facing any technical issue in login may contact INSTAVOTE
helpdesk by sending a request at enotices@in.mpms.mufg.com or contact on: - Tel: 022
— 4918 6000.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode:

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode may contact the respective
helpdesk for any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e.,, NSDL and
CE5L:

Login type Helpdesk details
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Individual Shareholders Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL
holding securities in helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsd|.co.in or call at:
demat mode with NSDL | 022 - 4886 7000

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL
helpdesk by sending a request at
helpdesk.evoting@ecdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800
2255 33

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with CDSL

Forgot Password:

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders

holding

securities in demat mode:

Shareholders holding securities in physical mode / Non-Individual Shareholders holding
securities in demat mode have forgotten the USER ID [Login |D] or Password or both
then the shareholder can wuse the “Forgot Password” option available on:
https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

§ Click on *Login" under 'SHARE HOLDER' tab.

§ Click “forgot password?”

§ Enter User ID, select Mode and Enter Image Verification code (CAPTCHA).
§ Click on "SUBMIT".

In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her
registered e-mail address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by
providing information about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN,
DOB/DOI, Bank Account Number (last four digits) etc. The password should contain a
minimum of 8 characters, at least one special character (1#%$&%), at least one numeral,
at least one alphabet and at least one capital letter.

User ID:

NSDL demat account — User ID is 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID.
CDSL demat account — User ID is 16 Digit Beneficiary ID.

Shareholders holding shares in physical forrm — User ID is Event No + Folio Number
registered with the Company.

In case Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund has forgotten the USER ID [Login ID]
or Password or both then the shareholder can use the "Forgot Password” option

available on: https://instavote.linkintime.co.in

§ Click on ‘Login’ under “Custodian / Corporate Body/ Mutual Fund” tab

§ Click “forgot password?”

§ Enter User ID, Organization ID and Enter Immage Verification code (CAPTCHA).
§ Click on “SUBMIT".

In case shareholders have a valid email address, Password will be sent to his / her
registered e-mail address. Shareholders can set the password of his/her choice by
providing information about the particulars of the Security Question and Answer, PAN,
DOB/DOI| etc. The password should contain a minimum of 8 characters, at least one
special character (1#$&*), at least one numeral, at least one alphabet and at least one
capital letter.

Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode with NSDL/ CDSL has
forgotten the password:
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Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode have forgotten the USER ID
[Login ID] or Password or both, then the Shareholders are advised to use Forget User ID
and Forget Password option available at above mentioned depository/ depository
participants website.

v It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential.

v For shareholders/ members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only
for voting on the resolutions contained in this Notice.

v During the voting period, shareholders/ members can login any number of time till they
have voted on the resolution(s) for a particular “"Event”.

Miscellaneous:

30. BOOK CLOSURE: The Company has notified closure of Register of Members and
Share Transfer Books from Saturday, 20% September 2025 to Friday, 26" September,
2025 (both days inclusive) for Annual General Meeting.

31. Kindly note that once you have cast your vote through e-voting process, you cannot
modify or vote on poll at the Annual General Meeting. However, you can attend the
meeting and participate in the discussions, if any

32. Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of the shares registered in the
name(s) of the Shareholders(s) on the cut-off date, i.e. Friday, 19" September 2025.

33. The voting period commence on 23™ September 2025 (09:00 AM) and ends on the
close of 25" September 2025 (05.00 PM). The e- voting module shall also be disabled
by MUFG Intime India Private Limited for voting thereafter.

34. The Scrutinizer will submit his report to the Managing Director or the Company
Secretary of the Company after completion of the scrutiny of the e-voting and the
results of the e-voting will be announced at the registered office on 29" September,
2025. The results of the e-voting will also be posted on the Company's website
www.braceport-logistics.com and communicated to the stock exchanges where
the Company's shares are listed.

35. As required by Rule 20(3)(V) and Rule 22(3) of the Companies (Management &
Administration) Rules 2014, details of dispatch of AGM Notice to the Shareholders
will be published in at least one English language and one vernacular language
newspaper circulating in Delhi.

Information as per regulation 36 (3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) 2015 and Secretarial Standard -2 with respect to Mr. Tarun Sharma is as
follows -

Disclosure Mr. Tarun Sharma
Date of Birth 02/12/1983
Brief Resume Tarun Sharma is the Non-Executive

Director of our Company. He completed his
bachelor's in arts in Business Studies from
Leeds Metropolitan University, United
Kingdom in 2007,

Nature of expertise in specific functional | Ocean Freight Industry

area
Relationship between Directors inter-se| Brother of Mr. Yashpal Sharma
and KMP

Dlafivering withh Pazsion

No of Board Meetings attended 10

Name of Listed Companies in which the| NONE
person holds directorship and the

membership of the committee of the
board.

No. of Shareholding

84,700

Information as required pursuant to BSE| Mr. Tarun Sharma Is not debarred from
Circular with ref. noLIST/COMP/14/2018-19 | holding the office of Director by virtue of
and NSE circular with ref.| any SEBI order or any authority

NoNSE/CMI./2018/24 dated June20, 2018

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS PER PROVISIONS OF SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

Pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"”), the following
Explanatory Statement sets out all material facts relating to the business mentioned
hereunder:

ITEM NO: 3

Mr. Sachin Arora was Designated as Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. 08t August,
2023 for a period of five years at a remuneration as approved by Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Board of Directors and Shareholders of the Company from time
to time.

Further on the basis of recommmendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 30" August, 2025 has approved
to fix the scale of remuneration payable to Managing Director of the Company as per the
details mentioned below:

A. Scale of Remuneration: INR 43,00,000/- to INR 60,00,000/- per annum, including
perquisites.

B. Re-imbursement- The Managing Director shall be entitled to reimbursement of
expenses incurred in connection with the business of the Company.

C. The Revised remuneration scale shall be applicable w.ef. O1* April, 2025 for his
remaining period of tenure.

As per the provision of Sections 197, 198 and 203 and other applicable Sections and
Provisions, If any, of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 other applicable rules (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force),
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable regulations and schedule of SEBI
(Listing obligations and disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015, any revision in the
remuneration of Managing Director shall require prior approval of shareholders , therefore
in Compliance of aforesaid provisions resolution as mentioned in notice placed before the
Members for their approval.
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None of the directors, key managerial personnel and relatives of directors and/or key
managerial personnel (as defined in the Companies Act, 2013) are concerned or interested
in the proposed resolution, except Mr. Sachin Arora.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 3 of the Notice for
approval by the members.

ITEM NO: 4

Mr. Rishi Trehan was Designated as Whole Time Director of the Company w.e.f. 08" August,
2023 for a period of five years at a remuneration as approved by Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Board of Directors and Shareholders of the Company, from time
to time.

Further on the basis of recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on 30" August, 2025, has approved
to fix the scale of remuneration payable to Whole Time Director of the Company as per the
details mentioned below:

A. Scale of Remuneration: INR 38,00,000/- to INR 55,00,000/- per annum, including
perqguisites.

B. Re-imbursement- The Whole Time Director shall be entitled to reimbursement of
expenses incurred in connection with the business of the Company.

C. The Revised remuneration scale shall be applicable w.ef. 01% April, 2025 for his
remaining period of tenure.

As per the provision of Sections 197, 198 and 203 and other applicable Sections and
Provisions, If any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act"), read with the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 other applicable rules (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force),
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable regulations and schedule of SEBI
(Listing obligations and disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015, any revision in the
remuneration of Whole Time Director shall require prior approval of shareholders |
therefore in Compliance of aforesaid provisions resolution as mentioned in notice placed
before the Members for their approval.

None of the directors, key managerial personnel and relatives of directors and/or key
managerial personnel (as defined in the Companies Act, 2013) are concerned or interested
in the proposed resolution, except Mr. Rishi Trehan.

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item No. 4 of the Notice for
approval by the members.
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